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PART 17 FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)
(in millions, except per shag@mount}

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016

Revenues
Premiums.......cccvceeeeiiiieeeeeieieeee e, $ 6,351 $ 6,067 $ 12,534 $ 12,048
Net investment inCOme...........ccccceeeeeeennne. 598 549 1,208 1,093
Fee inCome....ccccccceveeeeii e, 116 119 229 236
Net realized investment gaifs................. 80 19 85 10
Other revenuEs.......cccceeeeeeeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeeees 39 31 70 84

Total revenues.........ooeeeeeeevevveevinieeeee, 7,184 6,785 14,126 13,471
Claims and expenses
Claims and claim adjustment expenses.. 4,225 3,762 8,319 7,474
Amortization of deferred acquisition cost: 1,032 989 2,035 1,960
General and administige expenses......... 1,045 1,054 2,041 2,049
INterest eXpense.........coevvvvvevvevnnineennnnnns 92 93 181 184

Total claims and expenses................ 6,394 5,898 12,576 11,667

Income before income taxes.............. 790 887 1,550 1,804
INCOMeE BX EXPENSE.......coevveiirrirrereeee, 195 223 338 449

NEet iNCoOME.......ccceeevveiiiieeeeeeceeee e, $ 595 $ 664 $ 1,212 $ 1,355
Net incomeper share

BaASIC...uuuiiiiiieieeeeeee e $ 2.13 $ 2.27 $ 4.32 $ 4.60

Diluted.......ooveeeiiiieeee e $ 2.11 $ 2.24 $ 4.28 $ 4.55
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding

BaSIC...ocvveeeie et 2775 290.1 278.6 292.1

Diluted......ovveeeiiiiiieee e 280.0 293.6 281.2 295.6
Cash dividends declared per

CommoN Share.........ccoccvvveeeeeccivieeenn, $ 0.72 $ 0.67 $ 1.39 $ 1.28

(1) Total otherthantemporary impairment (OTTlpsseswere %5) million and $(4) million for the three months ended June 30,7201
and 208, respectively, and($) million and $(32) million for the six months ended June 30, 2@hd 208, respectively. ©®total
OTTI, credit losses of $j million and $@) million for the three months ended June 30,72&1d 208, respectively, and $J million
and $22) million for the six months ended June 30, 2@hd 208, respectively, were recognized in net realizagstment gainsin
addition, unrealized gaingosses)rom other changes in total OTTI o0$nillion for each ofthe threemonths ended June 30, 201
and 208, and & million and %10) million for the six months ended June 30, 2@&hd 208, respectivly, were recognized in other
comprehensive incomas part of changein net unrealized gains on investment securities having credit losses recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

The accompanyingotesare an integral part of treonsolidagéd financial statements.



THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
(in millions)

NEet INCOME......cooveiiiieeieeeeeeeeeee e,

Other comprehensive income:
Changsin net unrealized gains on
investment securities:

Having no credit losses recognized
the consolidated statement of
INCOME....ooeiiiiiiieieeeeceee e

Having credit losses recognized in
consolidated statement of incom

Net changes in benefit plan assets and
obligations...........cccceevviiiiiiiiie

Net changes in unrealized foreign
currency translation................ccccoe...,

Other comprehensive income
before income taxes....................
Income tax eXPense.......cccceevevveeeeeeerienn.

Other comprehensiveincome,
net of taxes.......cccovvveviiiiieeiiiieeens

Comprehensive income....................

The accompanyingotesare an integral part of tr@nsolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
595 $ 664 $ 1,212 $ 1,355
327 879 471 1,593
2 12 2 17
17 18 34 34
48 (35 89 68
394 874 596 1,712
123 323 185 590
271 551 411 1,122
866 $ 1,215 $ 1,623 $ 2477




THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in millions)

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016
Assets (Unaudited)
Fixed maturities, available for sakt fair value(amortized cost&0,482and $9,650)......... $ 61,907 $ 60,515
Equity securitiesavailable for saleat fair value (cost¥b8and $04)..........ccovcveeeriiereriinans 700 732
R e T t= L g V=TS =] 0] £ OO 920 928
SNAT-TEIM SECUITIES.....evvviiiiiie et et eeeee ettt sr b a et e e e e eeeeeeeeesbenneeeeseesreres 5,292 4,865
OthEr INVESIMENES. ...cvvviiiii ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e eeessbbenneeseesarbsbananns 3,612 3,448
TOtal INVESIMENES.....oviiiiiiiie et e et e e e e e e eeees 72,331 70,488
(OF- T o H P PRUUUPUPPRPPUIRt 328 307
INVESTMENT INCOME ACCIUEBM.........oiieieiiiiit ettt e e e et eene e e e e et s e e e e e e e aneenes, 602 630
Premiums FECEIVADIE. ...........cvviiiic ettt ee e e e e s seeen e e e e eeeeees 7,345 6,722
REINSUranCe reCOVEIADIES. .........coii i eee e e e e e e e e nmran s 8,150 8,287
Ceded Unearned PremiUMS. .. ...ooiii ittt eee et eeeaibbbbb bbb e e eeeeeeeeeesaerenes 665 589
Deferred aCqUISITION COSES........ciiiiiiiiiiiiis e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eneeeeeeas 2,051 1,923
(B LY (=T (=T = DS TR 201 465
Contractholder reCEIVADIES............oi it aeemeees 4,700 4,609
(0 To o 1.1/ U 3,589 3,580
Other NANGIDIE ASSELS......ciiiiiiiiiii et 264 268
(@] 1 oY =TT = £ 2,443 2,377
B o]tz =TT o $ 102,669 $ 100,245
Liabilities
Claims and claim adjustment eXPeNSE FESEIVES..........uuurrrrureerreerienrrrerrereeeeeeereeeeaaaeenes $ 48,574 $ 47,949
Unearned Premilm FESEIVES. .. .cic i uuurietieireeieeesasnnseestesteeeeeeeeeesaaaassssssesseeeeeesaeeeeeeeseessses 13,052 12,329
Contractholder PAYADIES. .......coo it 4,700 4,609
Payables for reinSurance PrBIMS...........ccooeiiiiiiiiee ittt e e st e e e s smee e sibee e e e e e s nnnens 364 273
[0 1] o) TR 6,920 6,437
Other NADIHTIES......cve e e e e eeeeee e et e e e e e raa s 5,201 5,427
TOtal HADINTIES ..vvvvvvvieie i eeee e e e emnnren) 78,811 77,024
Sharehol ders6é equity
Common stock (150.0shares authorize@75.9and279.6shares
issued anUESTANAING)........cooiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e aeeeaeeees 22,781 22,614
LR ] = 1T = To == T T o L 33,016 32,196
Accumulated otheCcomprenenSIVEDSS .........ooooiiiiiiii e (3449 (755
Treasury stock, at cosAg5.7 and489.5 SNAreP........evvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, (31,595 (30,839
Total sharehal.der.s.f..e.qui.t Y . 23,858 23,21
Tot al l'iabilities .a.nd..shar.ehol.der $ 102,669 $100,245

The accompanyingotesare an integral part of tr@nsolidated financial statements.



THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOFCHAN GES I N SHAREHOL
(in millions)

D E(Ri&dditeB)QU | T Y

For the six months endedJune 3Q 2017 2016
Common stock
Balance, beginning of year............ccoo oo $ 22614 $ 22,172
Employee sharbased COMPeNnSation..............eeveeiiiiimeniiieeee s, 94 95
Compensatioramortizationundersharebased planand otherchanges.... 73 82
Balance, end gBeriod............cooooiiiiiiiiiiieee e 22,781 22,349
Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year..........occvviiiiiiiee e, 32,196 29,945
L= A g Tolo ] o 1TSS 1,212 1,355
DIVIAENAS. ...t (391 (378)
(O] 1 0= S TP PP PUP TR PPPR Q) 1)
Balance, end gberiod............cooririiiiiiiiiie e 33,016 30,921
Accumulated othercomprehensive incoméloss) net of tax
Balance, beginning of year..........occvviiiiiiee e, (7595 (157)
Other comprehensive INCOME..........ccoeeiviiiii e 411 1,122
Balance, end gieriod.............oueiriiiiiiicirre e (349 965
Treasury stock (at cos)
Balance, beginning of year..........occvviiiiiiee e, (30,839 (28,363
Treasury ®ckacquired’ share repurchasithorization...............cccco..... (700 (1,200
Net shares acquired related to employee shased compensation plan (61) (59)
Balance, end gBeriod..........coooriiiiiiiiiieee e (31,595 (29,521
Total sharehal.der.s.b..eqgui.t.y... $ 23858 $ 24,714
Common shares outstanding
Balance, beginning of Year...........coooiiiiiiicce e 279.6 295.9
Treasury ®ckacquired share repurchasauthorization......................... 5.7 (10.0
Net sharesssuedunde employee sharbased compensation plans....... 2.0 24
Balance, end gBeriod..........coooeiiiiiiiiiiiceee e 275.9 288.3

The accompanyingotesare an integral part of thnsolidated financial statements.



THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

(in millions)

For the six months endedJune 3Q 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
N INCOMIB. ..ttt eeree s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e se b e emnnren) $ 1,212 $ 1,355
Adjustments to reconcile net incorteenet cash provided by operating
acivities:
Net realizednvestmengainS..........coevviiiiiiieeiien e (85) (20
Depreciation and amortizatiQn.............eeeeeviiviirnnieeeeeesriiieeee e 409 413
Deferred federal income tax eXPense..........ccccovvvvveeiceeeeeeeeninnnn. 106 75
Amortization of deferred acquisition COSES...........ccccovvviiriiieaceennns 2,035 1,960
Equity in income from other investments..............occcvveveiiecceeeeee (210 (44
Premiums receivable..............coooiiiie (609 (567
Reinsurance recoverables............uuviiiiiiiiiieeciiiiiiieieee e, 157 316
Deferred acquiSItion COSES.........cccciiiiiiiiiiieae e (2,157 (2,062)
Claims and claim adjustment eXpense reServes..........ovvveeeevenee. 498 (387
Unearned premilm FESEIVES. .....ccuiiiiiaeeee ettt ies 689 531
OB (460 (287)
Net cash provided by operating activities............cccccceviriiiieenn, 1,585 1,293
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturities of fixed maturities..............ccccoveivieeereeeinieenens 4,300 3,773
Proceeds from sales of investments:
FiXed MatUIitieS. ......eeviiiiiiiieee e, 563 739
EQUILY SECUNMTIES ....eiiiiiiiiiiieeee e, 200 38
Real estat@VestMENts..........cccuuiiiiiiiiiie e 20 69
Other INVESIMENTS.......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e 403 343
Purchases of investments:
Fixed Maturities.........coccviiiiiiie e, (5,6M) (5,709
EQUILY SECUIMLIES .....eiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt (166 (26)
Real eStat@VeStMENTS...........cocciiiiiiiie e e e (26) (20
Other INVEINENTS.........ooiiiiiiiiiiiee e (259) (290)
Net (purchases$alesof shortterm Securities...............ueveeeeieiiiieeciiiviiinenen, (424 681
Securities transactions in course of settlement..............ccccccveeeecivinnnnnen, 170 461
OBt (129 (159
Net cashused ininvesting activities...........cccccoovvveeiiiincen e, (1,021 (91
Cash flows from financing activities
Treasury ®ckacquiredi share repurchasauthorization..............cccceee... (700 (1,100
Treasury ®ckacquired net employee shafisased compensatian.......... (61) (59
Dividends paid to shareholders...............oooieei e (389 (379
Payment Of debl..........cooiii i (207 (400
ISSUANCE Of AEDL....oeiiiiiieeieee e 689 491
Issuance of common stotkemployee share options...........cccocvvveereeaee. 118 129
Net cashused in financing activities..........ccccccceeeeeeiiiiiecceceeeee, (550 (1,319
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash..........cccccooviimeeiiie e, 7 3
Netincreasedecreasgin Cash........cccvviiiiiiiiiiceec e 21 (115
Cash at beginning Gfear...........ccuvviiiiiiiieee e 307 380
Cash at end of PEriod............ccoveeiiiiiiii e $ 328 $ 265
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
INCOME tAXES PAIL.....eiiiiiiiiiiiiie et $ 323 $ 467
INEEIESE PAI. ... et $ 178 $ 180

The accompanyig notesare an integral part of thmnsolidated financial statements.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Travelers Companies, Inc. (together with its
subsidiaries, the Company). These financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP)and ar e unaudited. I n t he ,abadjpstmemts neckssatyHtoe a fairo mp a
presentation have been reflected. Certain financial information that is normally included in annual financial statements
prepared in accordance with GAABYt that is not required for interim reporting purposes, has been omatédhaterial
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminBbedaccompanying interim consolidated financial statements

and related notes should be read in conjonati wi t h t he Companyds consolidated f
included i n Anfua Refostrap Pomylls f or t he year ended December 31
Annual Reportae s updat ed b Curterii Repdlt ofopra3K ¥ilédson June 20, 2017. The ForaK8vasfiled

to reclassify certain ot h e C o nihpstoncgl egment information to conform the presentation of such segment

i nformation to the manner i n whi c hbegirmiagAmiloln?201d (agydésribddins i ne s
more detail belowand reflect the revised names and descriptions of certain businesses comprising these segments and other
related changes

The preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements in conformity with GécpAres management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets ani
liabilities at the date of the interim consolidated financial statements and the reported amowgswgsrand claims and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

On March 13, 2017the Company announced an agreement to acquire Simply Buysindsading dital provider of
insurance policieso small bsinessedn the United Kingdomfor total consideration of approximateld®0 million, which
includesthe repayment of debt and other obligati@she completion of the transactionThe transaction is expected to
close in the third quarter of 2017, setj to regulatory approvals and other customary closing condititims.Company will
usea portion of thenet proceeds from the issuance of senior notes in May 2017 (described in more detail iy avude 8
internal resource® fund this transaction

Adoption of Accounting Standards

Investment$ Equity Method and Joint Ventures: Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting

In March 2016, the iRancial Accounting Standards BoardA®B) issued updated guidance that eliminates theirement

to retroactively apply the equity method of accounting when an investment that was previously accounted for using another
method of accounting becomes qualified to appby equity method due to an increase in the level of ownership interest or
degee of influence.If the investment was previously accounted for as an avaifablgale security, any related unrealized

gain or loss in accumulated other comprehensive income at the date the investment becomes qualified for the equity method
is recognzed through earningsThe updated guidanceas effective for reporting periods begimg after December 15,

2016, and waspplied prospectivelyThe adoption of this guidanecBdn ot have a materi al effect
of operations, financlgosition or liquidity.

Derivatives and Hedging: Contingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instruments

In March 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance clarifying that when a call (put) option in a debt ins@nraeoelerate

the repayment of princg on the debt instrumerd reporting entity does not need to assess whether the contingent event that
triggers the ability to exercise the call (put) option is related to interest rates or credit risk in determining whehtérthe

should be accountddr separately.The updated guidancgaseffectivefor reporting period®eginningafter December 15,

2016. The adoption of this guidanckddn ot have a materi al effect on the Compal
or liquidity.



THE TRAVEL ERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) , Continued
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES , Continued

Compensationi Retirement Benefits: Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pensioh a@aok Net Periodic
Postretirement Benefit Cost

In March 2017, thé&ASB issued updated guidance to improve the presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic
post retirement cost (net benefit costs). Net benefit costs comprise several cosploaereflect different aspects of an

empl oyerds financi al arrangements as we€he lupdatesrequirdsahatdhe s t o
employer service cost component be reported in the sangaiether employee compensation castl that the other
components (nosenice costs) be presented separafetyn the service cost and outside of a subtotal of income from
operations if one is presented. The update also allows only the service cost component to be eligible for ocapitalizati
assets when applicable.

The updated guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The update is to be applied
retrospectively with respect to the presentation of service cost andemdne cost and prospectively tivirespect to

applying the service cost only eligible for capitalization in assets guidance. Early adoption is permitted as of tieeifirst in
period of an annual period if an entity issues interim financial statements.

The Company adopted the updatpddance effective January 1, 2017. See n@te/lich has been expanded to disclose the
amountof service cost and neservice cost components of net periodic benefit cost and the line items in the consolidated
statement of incomé which such amounts areeported. The updated guidance with respect to only service costs being
eligible for capitalization in assets was not applicable.

For informationregardingaccounting standards that the Company adopted during the years presesited, Adogtion of
AccountingStandardg section ofnote 1of notesto the consolidated financial statements in@e mp a ny 6Asnua2 0 1 6
Reportas updat ed b Current Repo@ offaymaBK filedl sn June 20, 2017

Compensatioii Stock Compensation: Scope of Modifion Accounting

In May 2017, the=ASB issued updated guidance related to a change to the terms or conditions (modification) of a share
based payment award’he updated guidance provides that an entity should account for the effects of a modifidaien un
the fair value and vesting conditions of the modified avardthe classification of the modified award (equity or liability
instrumentjarethe same sthe original award immediately before the modification.

The updated guidance is effective the quarter ending March 31, 2018he update is to be applied prospectively to an
award modified on or after the adoption date. Early adoption is permitted in any interim periods for which financial
statements have not yet been made available for issuanc

The Company adopted the updated guidance effective April
results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

For informationregardingaccountingstandards that the Company has not yet adopte, h e  AADdounting Standards
Not Yet Adopted section ofnote 1of notesto the consolidated financial statements in@he mp a n y @snual Refiof
as updat ed b gurrent Repot offopna-K filed sn June 20, 2017

Nature of Operations

Ef fective April 1, 2017, the Companyds r ed Business Iresurancer epor
Bond & Specialty Insurance and Personal Insurance, reflecting a change inthemani n whi ch t he Compeé
are managed as of that date, as well as the aggregation of products and services based on the type of customer, how th
business is marketed and the manner in which risks are underwiitteife the segmentation ofegh Company 6s don
businesses is unchanged, the Companyds international bu
within the Business and International Insurance segment, are now disaggregated by product type among the three newly
aligned reportablebusiness segment®\ll prior periods presented have been reclassifiedanform to this presentatiorn

connection with these changes, the Company has revised the names and descriptions of certain businesses comprising th
C o mp a regntergs asd has reflected other related changes.

9



THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The new reportable business segments are asvillo
Business Insurance
Business Insurance offers a broad array of property and casualty insurance and insurance related servisesnelrigs ¢
primarily in the United Statess well as in Canada, the United Kingdom, the Republic of Ireland, Braztheoughout
other parts of the world as a corporate member of Lloyd
Business Insurands comprised of Select Accountsliddle Market National AccountsNational Property and Other,
and International. Business Insurance also includes the Specaall.i | i ty Group (which manage
and environmental liabilities) and the assumed reinsurance and certain other runoff operations, which are collectively
referred to as Business Insurance Other.
Bond & Specialty Insurance
Bond & Spedcilty Insurance provides surefigelity, managemeritability, professional liability and other property and
casualty coverages and related risk management servides dastomersin the United Stateand certain specialty
insurance products in Canadhe United Kingdom, the Republic of Ireland and Brazil, utilizing various degrees of
financially-based underwriting approaches.
Personal Insurance
Personal I nsurance writes a broad range of algsksgpprmaniyt v anoc

in the United States, as well & Canada. The primary products of automobile and homeowners insurance are
complemented by a broad suite of related coverages.

1C



THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) , Continued

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following tables u mmar i ze t he ¢ o mp omenuesscomeand totaleassélsy rapodably Husiness
segments

(for the three months Total
endedJune 3Q Business Bond & Specialty Personal Reportable
in millions) Insurance Insurance Insurance Segments
2017
Premiums.....ccccccooevvveeeiciinene $ 3,504 $ 575 $ 2,272 $ 6,351
Net investment income.......... 447 56 95 598
Fee income...........ccccvvevenens 112 d 4 116
Other revenues..................... 15 6 15 36
Totalsegmentevenues?.... $ 4,078 $ 637 $ 2,386 $ 7,101
Segmentncome® ............... $ 429 $ 163 $ 12 $ 604
2016
Premiums..........cccovvveeeeeeeennee $ 3,439 $ 559 $ 2,069 $ 6,067
Net investment income.......... 404 58 87 549
Feeincome..........cccoeevvvneennn. 115 0 4 119
Other revenues............cc........ 8 5 15 28
Totalsegmentevenues?..... $ 3,966 $ 622 $ 2,175 $ 6,763
Segmentncome™® ................ $ 401 $ 215 $ 95 $ 711

(1) Segmentevenues for ggortable business segments exclude net realized investment gains (lBege®nincome for reportable
business segments equals net income excluding theaftampact of net realized investment gains (losses).

(for the six months Total
endedJune 3Q Business Bond & Specialty Personal Reportable
in millions) Insurance Insurance Insurance Segments
2017
Premiums.......ccccoeeeveeveennns $ 6,933 $ 1,130 $ 4,471 $ 12,534
Net investment income......... 900 117 191 1,208
Fee income..........cccoovuunneenn. 221 fs) 8 229
Other revenues..................... 24 11 31 66
Total segmentevenueél).... $ 8,078 $ 1,258 $ 4,701 $ 14,037
Segmentncome................ $ 871 $ 308 $ 101 $ 1,280
2016
Premiums......ccceeeeeieeieieeenne $ 6,853 $ 1,111 $ 4,084 $ 12,048
Net investment income......... 803 118 172 1,093
Fee income...........ccoeeuvvneenn. 229 o 7 236
Other revenues..................... 38 9 31 78
Total segmentevenues?.... $ 7,923 $ 1,238 $ 4,294 $ 13,455
Segmentncome™ .............. $ 848 $ 375 $ 247 $ 1,470

(1) Segmentevenues for reportable business segments exclude net realized investment gainsS&gsesjincomefor reportable
business segments equals net income excluding thetaftanpact of net realized investment gainsgés.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) , Continued
2.  SEGMENT INFORMATION, Continued

Business Segment Reconciliations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 30, June30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenue reconciliation
Earned premiums
Business Insurance:
Domestic:
Wor ker sdé c.omp.ens.at $ 999 $ 987 $ 1,975 $ 1,968
Commercial automobile........................ 521 503 1,027 994
Commercial POPety.......c.coevvvveeeiinerennns 443 442 878 879
General liability........cccocvveveeiiiicienne 498 485 989 967
Commercial multperil...........ccccoeoeeens 797 786 1,571 1,568
(@] 1 =T T 7 9 14 14
Total DOMESLIC.......ccvvvvvvrreriiiiviriieennns, 3,265 3,212 6,454 6,390
INternational............evvvvvvveeeeeenimmmreeeeeennnnns 239 227 479 463
Total Business Insurance.................. 3,504 3,439 6,933 6,853
Bond & Specialty hsurance:
Domestic:
Fidelity and surety..........ccccovveeneeencnnnn, 245 239 479 469
General liability.........ccocvvevieiiiicicnnen 239 235 474 469
(©]1 01 46 44 91 88
Total Domestic. 530 518 1,044 1,026
International...........cccevveeeeneiiiimneeeeneenennns 45 41 86 85
TotalBond & Specialty hsurance....... 575 559 1,130 1,111
Personal Insurance:
Domestic:
AUtOMODIIE......eveiieiiiie e 1,145 974 2,239 1,910
Homeawners andDther................coouueee... 977 944 1,932 1,882
Total DOMESLIC.......ccvvvvvirreriiiiiiiiieenes, 2,122 1,918 4,171 3,792
International..........ccooeeeviiiiiiiiiieeeee e, 150 151 300 292
Total Personal Insurance................... 2,272 2,069 4,471 4,084
Total earned premiums............cccueeeee, 6,351 6,067 12,534 12,048
Net investment income 598 549 1,208 1,093
FEE IiNCOME......cvveeiiiiiiee e, 116 119 229 236
Other reVENUES.........cccvvveeeeeeeieme e, 36 28 66 78
Totalsegmentevenues...............c....... 7,101 6,763 14,037 13,455
Other reVENUES........cocevvveieeieeiemee e, 3 3 4 6
Net realizel investment gains............cccceeeeee. 80 19 85 10
Total reVENUES........ccevvveeeeeieiiineen, $ 7,184 $ 6,785 $ 14,126 $ 13,471
Income reconciliation, net of tax
Totalsegmentncome..........ccccceeeeiveeeecceennneen. $ 604 $ 711 $ 1,280 $ 1,470
Interest Expense and OtH&k.......................... (61) (62) (123 (123
COreiNCOME.......ccevviieeeeeeeiiiieeceeeee s 543 649 1,157 1,347
Net realized investment gains...........c.cc........ 52 15 55 8
Net iNCOME.........ccveeeeeiiiiieeceeee e, $ 595 $ 664 $ 1,212 $ 1,355

(1) The primary component of Interest Expense and Qtheaftertax interest expense 860 million in each ofthe three months ended
June 302017 and 2a6, and$118million and$120 million in the six months ended June 30, 2@hd 208, respectively
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION, Continued

June 3Q December 31
(in millions) 2017 2016
Asset reconciliation
BUSINESINSUIANCE. ... .cevvtieieeiettie et eeee e e et e e e e et e eeaee e e e s esbnseesesbanseesesrennes $ 77653 $ 75,730
Bond & SpecCialtyNSUIANCE. .........cciieiiiiiiiiii e, 8,998 8,726
PErSONaAl INSUIANCE. ... ciiiieieieiiieeeevet ettt e e e e e e e e s eeeee s e e e e e e e e e eeeasbebb s annnes 15,666 15,426
TOtal SEPMENASSELS. .. .uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt a e e e 102,317 99,82
OUhEE ASSER) ..ottt ettt ee e et e et et et et et e e e raeneeenenn 352 363
Total consSolidated ASSEIS.....uuuuiiieiiiieieiiiiieeet e $ 102,669 $ 100245

(1) The primary componesbf other assets dune 30, 204 and December 31, 2016 wenther intangible assetsmddeferred taxes.
3. INVESTMENTS

Fixed Maturities

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities classified as availaale were as follows:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized Fair
(at June 30, 20Z, in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury secities and obligations of U.Sogernment and
government agencies and authorities..........c.ccoovvevieeneee e, $ 2023 % 10 $ 5 $ 2,028
Obligations of states, municipaég and political subdivisions
Local general obligation..............ccoviiiiiieeriiie e 14,010 410 79 14,341
REVENUE........ it 11,589 317 63 11,843
State general obligation.............oocuveiiiiiicce e, 1,612 45 11 1,646
Prerefunded........co e 4,112 172 o} 4,284
Total dbligations of states, municipalities and political
SUDAIVISIONS......oviiiiiiie i 31,323 944 153 32,114
Debt securities issued by foreign governments............c.ccoeevveeneee 1,537 24 5 1,556
Mortgagebacked securities, collateralized mortgage obligations a
PAaSStNroUgh SECUIILIES. ... .uveiiiieiiiiie e 1,675 97 5 1,767
All other corporate bonds............coocciiiiiiiieien e eeeeaees 23,835 589 77 24,347
Redeemable preferred StoCK. ..o, 89 6 o} 95
LI ] = | P PSPPI $ 60482 $ 1670 $ 245 $ 61,907
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

3. INVESTMENTS, Continued

Gross Unrealized

Amortized Fair
(at December 31, 2016, in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of g&errment and
government agencies and authorities............ccceveveervieeenne $ 2031 3 9 $ 5 $ 2,035
Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivision
Local general obligation.............cccooiiiiiiieeneeeeiiiieieeees 13,955 271 182 14,044
REVENUE. .....ciii ittt e e 10,910 215 147 10,978
State general obligatian.................cocoocciie 1,717 36 22 1,731
Prerefunded..........cccooiiiiiiii e 4,968 190 1 5,157
Total dbligations of states, municipalities and political
510 o Jo 1A VIS o] o YRR 31,550 712 352 31910
Debt securities issued bgreign governments................cc....... 1631 34 3 1,662
Mortgagebacked securities, collateralized mortgage obligati
and pasghrough securitieS........c.cccccceeeiiiiiiiccceee, 1614 100 6 1,708
All other corporate bonds...........cccccvvviiiiiiieeer e 22,737 508 138 23,107
Redeemable preferred StoCK.........ccceeevviiiiiiiieeeiiieeeeie, 87 6 o} 93
1] 7= | RS PRRR $ 59,650 $ 1,369 $ 504 $ 60515

Prerefunded bonds of428billion and $5.16 billion at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, were bonds for
which states or municipalities have establishedv@cable trusts, almost exclusively comprised of U.S. Treasury securities

and obligations of U.S. government and government agencies and authorities. These trusts were created to fund the paymen
of principal and interest due under the bonds.

Proceedsrbm sales of fixed maturities classified as available for sale w&88 illion and $739 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Gross gaih% wiilfon and $46 million and gross losses of $
million and $8 million wee realized on those sales during the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Equity Securities

The cost and fair value of investments in equity securities were as follows:

GrossUnrealized

Fair

(at June 30, 207Z, in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
PUblic @MMON STOCK........iiiiiiii e e $ 443 $ 130 $ 6 $ 567
Non-redeemable preferred StQCK............c.uuuiuiiiiieeeiiiiii e 115 23 5 133
LI = | TR $ 558 $ 153 $ 11 $ 700

GrossUnrealized Fair

(at December 31, 208, in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
PUDIIC @MMON STOCK.......cciiiiiiiieeieie e e et ee e e et e e e e e e $ 390 $ 216 $ 3 $ 603
Nornrredeemable preferred StACK..........oocveeeiiiiiice e 114 20 5 129
Lo 12 | PSR UUPPURRRN $ 504 $ 236 % 8 $ 732

Proceeds from sales of equity securitidsssified as available for sakere $00 million and $88 million during the six
months ended June 30, Z0dnd 208, respectively.Gross gains of 8 million and $8 million and gross losses ofi$nillion
and $2million were realized on those sales digrthe six months ended June 30, 28a4d 208, respectively.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued
3. INVESTMENTS, Continued

Unrealized Investment Losses

The following tablesummarize, for all investments in an unrealized loss positidora#30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,

the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time those securities have been continuously in an unrealized
loss position. The fair vab amounts reported in the tables are estimates that are prepared using the process described in note
4 herein and in note 4 of notes to the consoldsdpadateddy f i na
t he Co nQureentyRépsrt ofrorm 8K filed on June 20, 2017 The Company also relies upon estimates of several
factors in its review and evaluation of individual investmenising the process described ioten 1 of notes to the
consolidated financial statemenitsn t he ColdpruayRemta 20 updated by the Company
Form 8K filed on June 20, 2011 determining whethesuch investments are othrantemporarilyimpaired

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(at June 3Q 2017, in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed maturities
U.S. Treasury secities and obligations
of U.S. government and governmen
agencies iad authorities.................... $ 1342 $ 5 $ 5 $ O $ 1347 % 5
Obligations of states, municipalities al
political subdivisions....................... 6,088 142 179 11 6,267 153
Debt securities issued by foreign
QOVEINMENTS......ccciiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeaas 432 5 o} o} 432 5
Mortgagebacked sedaities,
collateralized mortgage obligations
and pasghrough securities.............. 470 5 37 o} 507 5
All other corporate bonds................... 4,980 66 279 11 5,259 77
Total fixed maturities.................. 13,312 223 500 22 13,812 245
Equity securities
Public @mmon stock.......................... 150 3 14 3 164 6
Non-redeemable preferred stock......... o] o] 61 5 61 5
Total equity securities................. 150 3 75 8 225 11
Total.....uveeiiiiiiiiiii e $ 13,462 $ 226 $ 575 % 30 $ 14,037 $ 256
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

3. INVESTMENTS, Continued

12 monthsor

Less than 12 months longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(at December 31, 2016, in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed maturities
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations
U.S.government and government
agencies and authorities..................... $ 1,124 $ 5 $ o $ o $ 1124 % 5
Obligations of states, municipalities and
political subdivisions............cccc.ecee.... 9,781 352 12 o} 9,793 352
Debt securities issued by foreign
JOVEINMENTS......cceeeiiiiniiinieeeee s 360 3 o} o} 360 3
Mortgagebackedsecurities, collateralizec
mortgage obligations and pattsough
SECUNTIES .. 528 5 43 1 571 6
All other corporate bonds........................ 6,470 115 437 23 6,907 138
Total fixed maturities............cc........ 18,263 480 492 24 18,755 504
Equity securities
Public @mmon StocK.........cccccevveeiiiinneee 45 2 10 1 55 3
Nonredeemable preferred stack............ 2 o} 59 5 61 5
Total equity securities.................... 47 2 69 6 116 8
Total..coooiieeie e, $ 18,310 $ 482 $ 561 $ 30 $ 18871 $ 512

Unrealized lossesof all fixed maturities and equity securities reported at fair value for which fair value is less than 80% of

anortized cost atlune 30 2017 totaled 4 million, representing less than 1% of thembined fixed maturity and equity

security portfoliosonapreax basi s and

Impairment Charges

ess

t han

1-tx basis.

shar ehol

der s o

Impairment charges included in net realized investment gains in the consolidated statencem®fwere $ million and $!
million for the three months ended June 30,7228td 208, respectively, andBmillion and $£2 million for the six months

ended June 30, 20knd 208, respectively.

The cumulative amount of credit losses fixed maturitiesheld at June 30, 2017 and 2016, that wemognized in the
consolidated statement of income from ottr@antemporary impairments (OTTEBnd for which a portion of the OTTI was
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated baleetewas$83 million and 88 million,
respectively. These credit losses represent less than 1% of the fixed maturity portfolio ofiea peesis and less than 1% of
shar ehol der s 6-tar lopsis at bpth dated.hara weaefnd significant chges in the credit component of OTTI
during thesix months endedune 30 2017 and 205 from that disclosed in note 3 of notes to the consolidated financial
statements i n 6tAhneal Reponapsa nupddsa t2e0dl b yCurtterit Bepdlt @iopnadK yilédson June

20, 2017

Derivative Financial Instruments

From time to time, the Company enters into U.S. Treasury note futures contracts to modify the effective duration of specific

assets within the investment portfolio. U.S. Treasury futuresamistrequire a daily maiio-market and settlement with the
broker. At bothJune 302017 and December 31, 201#he Company ha#i400 million notional value of oped.S. Treasury
futures contracts Net realized investment losses related to U.S. Tredstuyes contractfor the three monthand six

monthsended June 30, 2017 and 204€re not significant.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued
4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT S

The Companyo6s est ifinnadakessetscahfinahaalliabilitiesaate hased forothe framework established in

the fair value accounting guidancehe framework is based on the inputs used in valuagimes the highest priority to

guated prices in active markets and requires that observable inputs be used in the valuations when available. The disclosure
of fair value estimates in thiir value accounting guidandgerarchy is based on whether the significant inputs into the
valuationare observableln determining the level of the hierarchy in which the estimate is disclosed, the highest priority is
given to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and
significart market assumptionsThe level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is reported is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the measurement in its erifinetyhree levels of the hierarchy are as
follows:

1 Level 1- Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company
has the ability to access.

1 Level 2- Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in inactive markets; or valuations based on models where the significant inputs are
observable (e.g., interest rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severities, etc.) or can be
corroborated by observable markieta.

1 Level 3- Valuations based on models where significant inputs are not observable. The unobservable inputs
reflect the Companyés own assumptions about the ing

Valuation of Investments Reported at Fair Value Financial Statements

The Company utilize a pricing service to estimate fair value measurements for approxind@@pf its fixed maturitiesat
both June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016

While the vast ma j bxed nbaturitiesdre nclided inClevelp2a they @ompany holds a number of
municipal bondsaind corporate bondshich are not valued by the pricing service and estimates the fair vallnesef bonds

using an internal pricing matrix with some unobservable inputs that are sighifiicdime valuation. Due to thamited

amount of observable market information, the Company includes the fair value estimates for these particular bonds in Level
3. The fair value of the fixed maturities for which the Company used an internal pricinigg mas 08 million and $99

million at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdlitionally, the Company holds a small amountotiier

fixed maturity investmentshat have characteristics that make them unsuitable for matrix pricing. Ferfittesmaturities,

the Companybtains a quote from a brokgar{marily the market maker).The fair value of the fixed maturities for which the
Companyreceived a broker quote was $8ifllion and $85 million at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, taghec

Due to the disclaimers on the quotes that indicate that the price is indicative only, the Company includes these fair value
estimates in Level.3

For more information regarding the val uaadndaherinwestmeants, seeCo mp

note 4 of notes to the consolidated financial statements i@ thenp a 20g60Asnual Repoh s updated by t he
Current Report ofform 8K filed on June 20, 2017

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following table presenth e | ev el within the fair v didaocilasketsamnddimaeccialy at

liabilities are measured on a recurring bagis investment transferred between levels during a period is transferred at its fair
value as of the beginning tfat period.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, Continued

(at June 30, 207, in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Invested assets
Fixed maturities
U.S. Treasury secities and obligations of U.Sogernment
and government agencies and authorities..................... $ 2,028 $ 2,028 $ o) $ o]
Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisi 32,114 o} 32,109 5
Debt securities issued by foreign governments................ 1,556 o} 1,556 o}
Mortgagebacked securities, collateralized mortgage
obligations and pagfirough securities...............cccveeeene 1,767 0 1,735 32
All other corporate bonds.............oooeciiiiieeen s 24,347 2 24,177 168
Redeemable preferred stacK..........ccccoevviiiiieeciiiiiniie, 95 3 92 o}
Total fixed Maturities.........ccceeeeieeiieeiiiiieeee e, 61,907 2,033 59,669 205
Equity securities
Public common StOCK ..., 567 567 0 o}
Non-redeemable preferred stack.............cccccuvvviieeeniiininiinns 133 61 72 o}
Total equity SECUIMLIES.......uuuviiiiiiiiiiiiei e 700 628 72 o}
Other INVESIMENTS........coiiiiiiiiiiiee e eeerie e seeenes 54 18 0 36
TOtAl e $62661 $ 2,679 $59,741 $ 241
(at December 31, 206, in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Invested assets:
Fixed maturities
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government and government agencies and authorities. $ 2,035  $2,035 $ 0 $ o)
Obligations of states, municipalities and
political SUDIVISIONS............cocoeiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 31,910 o} 31,898 12
Debt securities issued by foreign governments................ 1,662 o} 1,662 o}
Mortgagebacked securities, collateralized mortgage
obligations and pagfirough securities.............cccocuvveeeen 1,708 0 1,704 4
All other corporate bonds..........ccoocuvviiieiiiicenne e 23,107 0 22,939 168
Redeemable preferred stack..........ccccceeviiiieniiiiiiinnee 93 3 90 0
Total fixed MaturitiesS..........oeeeeiiveeeieeieeeeeee e, 60,515 2,038 58,293 184
Equity securities
Public common StOCK..........eeiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 603 603 o} o}
Non-redeemable @ferred StOCK.............ooooiiiiiiiiieeene e, 129 51 78 o}
Total equity SECUIMLIES .......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeiiiiie e 732 654 78 o}
Other INVESIMENTS.......c.uiiiiiiiiii et 53 17 o} 36
TOtAl oo $61,300 $ 2,709 $58371 $ 220
During the six months ended June 30, 201d ant he year ended December 31, 2016,

1 and Level 2 were not significant.

t

There was no significant activity in Level 3 of the hierarchy during the six months ended June 30, 2017 or the year ended

December 31, 2016.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued
4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, Continued
Financial Instruments Disclosed But Not Carried, At Fair Value
The following tables preseithe carrying value and fair value of the Cc

disclosed, but not carried, at fair value, dhd level within the fair value hierarchy at whishch assets and liabilitiese
categorized

Carrying Fair

(at June 30, 2017, in millions) Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Shortterm securities.........ccoeevvveeeeennen. $ 5,292 $ 5292 $ 1,134 % 4124 $ 34
Financial liabilities:
DD $ 6,920 $ 8,023 $ o] $ 8,023 $ o)

Carrying Fair

(at December 31, 2016, in millions) Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Shortterm securitieS..........ccoeeeeeevvvennnn. $ 4,865 $ 4865 $ 1,223 $ 3,607 $ 35
Financial liabilities:
DD $ 6,337 $ 7,262 $ o] $ 7,262 $ o]
Commercial paper........cccoceevieeeiieenenn, $ 100 $ 100 $ 0o 3 100 $ o)

The Company utilized a pricing service to estimate fair value for approxin@ggtyandd8% of shortterm securities atune

30, 2017 andDecember 312016 repectively For adescription of the process and inputs used by the pricing service to
estimate fair valueseet h €&ixedi Maturitie® s e im thdteodnof notes to the consolidated financial statements in the
C o mp a 20y66Asnual Repords updated bytheo mpany és Cur r e nKfileRenpgumne 20,20l For m 8

The Company utilized a pricing service to estimate fair valu&@6f60f its debt atlune 30, 2017 and December, 2016

The Company had nmaterialassets or liabilities that were nsemed at fair value on a naacurring basis during thsix
months endedune 302017 or year ended December 31, 2016

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
The following table presents t he c aent ¥acimrgportaeosagment inciudes h e
goodwi | | associated with the Companyés international bus
exchange rates.
June 3Q December 31,

(in millions) 2017 2016
BUSINESTNSUIAICE.......eeeetieeeeeiete e ee e eeeemee e e et e e e s et s eeaeeeeeeeaaa e e e eesaan e e esssbmmntan s eeseebaneesenranns $ 2,229 $ 2,227
BONd & SPECIAItYNSUIANCE. ... ..uiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt eeme e e e s senme e e s 550 549
PersONal INSUIANCE.........coiiiieiiieit e e e e e e ettt eeee e e e e e e e et e bt e s e e e e emaasaeseeeeeaaaeeesssrnnes 784 778
L 11 1= PSPPSR 26 26

1] - | PP PEPPSSR $ 3,589 $ 3,580
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudite d), Continued
5.  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS , Continued

Other Intangible Assets

The followingtablespr esent a summary of the Companyés other intangi
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
(at June 30, 2017, in millions) Amount Amortization Net
Subject to amMOTtiZAtION ...........ccoii i e $ 210 $ 163 $ 47
NOt SUDJECE 10 aMOITIZALION. ......ieeeeiiieei e 217 0 217
LI ] = | OO PRPT $ 427  $ 163 $ 264
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
(at December 31, 2016, in millions) Amount Amortization Net
Subject to amMOrtizatiof .............ccceiiiiiric e $ 210 $ 159 $ 51
NoOt Subject to amOrtiZAtiON.............ocociiieree e e 217 o} 217
TOMAL e et e e amn e e e e aaree e e $ 427  $ 159 $ 268

(1) Intangible assets subject to amortization are comprised of fair value adjustmentsrsnaridi claim adjustment expense reserves,
reinsurance recoverables and other contract and custetated intangiblesThe time value of money and the riakljustment
(cost of capital) components of the intangible asset run off at different ratess audhathe amount recognized in income may be
a net benefit in some periods and a net expense in other periods.

Amortization expense of intangible assets was $2 milliore&wh ofthe three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,5and $
million for eachof the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. Intangible asset amortization expense is estimated to be $
million for the remainder of 2017 8$million in 2018, $7million in 2019, $ million in 2020 and $ million in 2021.

6. INSURANCE CLAIM RESERVES

Claims and claim adjustment expense reserves were as follows:

June 30, December 31

(in millions) 2017 2016
PrOPEIMYCASUBILY. . ...ceeiiiiieeee ettt e e e bbbt e e e e eeeeeaeas $ 48,556 $ 47,929
Accident and health............oouie e ———— 18 20

Total

.............................................................................................................................. $ 48,574 $ 47,949

The following able presents a reconciliation of beginning and ending property casualty reserve balances for claims and claim
adjustment expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016:
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

6. INSURANCE CLAIM RESERVES, Continued
(for the six months ended June 30, in millions) 2017 2016
Claims and claim adjustment expense reserves at beginning of year.... $ 47,929 $ 48,272
Less reinswuance recoverables on unpaid [0SSES........cccvvvvveveeeiicecieenennn, 7,981 8,449
Net reserves at beginning of year..........cccvvviiiiicenniciie e 39,948 39,823
Estimated @ims and claim adjustment expenses for claims arising in tl
CUITENE WAL ..t itteiiee e ettt e e eeme e e e sttt e e e e sttt e e s eemee e s s snbbeeeeeessnsbeeeeeans 8,493 7,859
Estimatedncrease decreasgin claims and claim adjustment expenses f
claims arising in Prior YEAIS.......cccoiiuiiiiieaiiieeeiiiieee et eeeeees (214 (418
B o] v T g o] Y= LY=o 8,279 7,441
Claims and claim adjustment expense payments for claims arising in:
LGN T o1 YT TP RPPPI 2,69 2,49
PrION YEAIS ..ciiiiiie et ee e 4,966 5,004
TOtAl PAYMENTS. ...ttt rmee e 7,665 7,458
Unrealized foreign exchange [0SS........cvvviiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeeeeeee, 117 36
Net reserves at end of periad..........cccooovviiiiiicce e, 40,679 39,842
Plus reinsurance recoverables on unpaid I0SSES.......ccccvvvveeeeiceciieennnnn, 7,877 8,089
Claims and claim adgiment expense reserves at end of period............. $ 48,556 $ 47,931

Gross claims and claim adjustment expense reserves at June 30, 2017 incre&@&tintilliéh from December 31, 2016,
primarily reflecing theimpacs of (i) higher volumes of insuredkposures and loss cost trends for the current accident year
and (ii) catastrophe losses incurred in the first six months of 2017, partially offset by the impacts of (iii) paymedtsorelat
operations in runoff and (iv)et favorable prior year reservevddopment.

Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses at June 30, 2017 decreakedrbili®n from December 31, 2016, primarily
reflecting the impact otash collectionsn the first six months 02017, including the settlement of certain disputes as
discussed in more detail in note 13.

Prior Year Reserve Development
The following disclosures regarding reserve devel opment

For thesix months endedune 302017 and 2016stimated claims and claim adjustmerpenses incurred includ&214

million and 18 million, respectivelyof net favorable development for claims arising in prior years, includ28g fillion

and $68 million, respectively,of net favorable prior year reserve development impacting thepComy 6 s resul t
operationsand$25 million of accretion of discourih each period

Business InsuranceNet favorable prior year reserve development in the second quarter of 2017 tdtafechifion,

primarily driven by better than expected loss eipee in thesegmeri s domestic otpheer awo omhar s
compensation product line fonultiple accident years, (iijhe commercial mukperil product line for liability coverages for
multiple accident yearsand (iii) the general liability produdine for both primary and excess coveragesfioitiple accident

years (excluding an increase to environmental reserves discussed bBletwfavorable prior year reserve development in

the second quarter of 2016 totaled $125 million, primarily drivemdtyer than expected loss experience insbgment s
domestic operationsihi ) t he workersé compensation product I ine for
2015 and (ii)the general liability product line for both primary and excesgerages for accident years 2011 and 2015
(excluding an increase to environmental reserves discussed below), as well asdgntlesh s i nt er nat i onal
Europe. These factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve developmergdoathé quarters of 2017 and 2016

were partially offset by @ million and $82 million increases, respectively, to environmental reserves.
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6. INSURANCE CLAIM RESERVES, Continued

Net favorable prior year reserdevelopment in the first six months of 2017 total&é8@million, primarily driven bybetter

than expected loss experience inskgment s domesti ¢ o0 per atompemsationiprodudnie for multipke wo r k
accident yeargji) the general liability product line (excluding the increase to environmental reserves) for both pmhary a
excess coverages for multiple accidgetrsand (iii) the commercial muktperil productline for liability coverages for

multiple accident yearspartially offset by(iv) net unfavorable prior year reserve development irstleeg neeinternational
operations in Europe due to the U.K. Mi nliedstd ungp sunf bodilyu st i ¢
injury payouts. Net favorable development in the first six months of gfthGed #99 million, primarily driven by better

than expected loss experience intkgment s domesti ¢ ower Rer e scomplnafpradcidemtn pr o
years 2006 and prior as well as accident year 2015, (ii)gtheral liability product line (excluding the increase to
environmental reserves), related to both primary and excess covéagesident years 2011, 2013 and 2015 iiidthe
commercial automobile product line for accident years 2010 and prior, as well asagtherd s i nt er nat i onal
Europe and CanadaThese factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve development in the first six months of
2017and 2016 were partially offset blye $65million and $82 million increases, respectively, to environmental reserves.

Bond & Specialty InsuranceNet favorable prior year reserve development instheond quarter and first six months26f17
totaled ¥8 million and 2 million, respectivelyprimarily driven bybetter than expected loss experiencéhmsegment s
domestic operations in the general liability product line for accident & through 2015 Net favorable prior year
reserve developmerih the secondquarterof 2016 totaled $59 million, primarily driven bybetter than expected loss
experience inhes e g msedonbesétic operations {i) the fidelity and suretyproduct line for accident yea?910,2013 and
2014 and (ii) the general liabiyf product line for accident years 2007 through 201Net favorable prior year reserve
development irthe first six months 02016 totaled £25 million, primarily driven bybetter than expected loss experience in
thesegmerh s d ome st i o) tlefidelityandiswetysoductrine for accident yeaP910 through 2014 and (ii) the
general liability product line for accident years 2007 through 2011.

Personal Insurance Net favorable prior year reserve development in the second quarter asifirsinths of 2017 totaled

$0 and % million, respectively. Net favorable prior year reserve development in the second quarter and first six months of
2016 totaled $4 million and $44 million, respectiveéliet favorable prior year reserve developmerthinfirst six months of

2016 was primarily driven by better than expected loss experiencehensegmerth s domestic ()ahwer at i
Homeowners and Other product line for liability coverafpgsaccident year 2014 and (ii) tautomobile product linefor

accident year 2014s wellasintheegmert s i nt er nati onal operations in Canada
7. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following table presestt he changes in the Company o6 sconeqAOCInforlttesixed ot

monthsendedJune 302017.

Changes in Net Unrealized Gains on
Investment Securities

Net Benefit Plan

Having No Credit Having Credit Losses Assets and Total Accumulated
Losses Recognized i Recognized in the Obligations Net Unrealized Other

the Consolidated Consolidated Recognized in Foreign Currency Comprehensive
(in millions, net of taxe3 Statement of Income StatementofIncome Shar ehol de Translation Income (Loss)
Balance,December 31, 2016........... $ 528 $ 202 $ (703 $ (7182 % (755

Other comprehensive income (OCI)

before reclassifications............... 365 1 o} 83 449
Amounts reclassified from AOCI...... (62) o} 23 o} (39
Net OCI, currenperiod............... 304 1 23 83 411
Balance, June 302017..................... $ 832 $ 203 $ (680 $ (699 $ (344
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7. OTHER COMPREHE NSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
Continued

The following table presesithe pretax components af h e  C o mofher noynBrehensive income atine related income
tax expense

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Changes in net unrealized gains on investment securities:
Having no credit losses recognized in the
consolidated statement of income...........ccccooveiiicnninenn. $ 327 % 879 $ 471 $ 1,593
INCOME taX EXPENSE......ci ittt e e e 116 305 167 552
NEt Of tAXES....cii i 211 574 304 1,041
Having credit losses recognized in the consolidated
statement Of INCOME..........uuviiiiiiiiiiii e 2 12 2 17
INCOME tAXEXPENSE. ......eiviiriiiiiiiiie e e 1 4 1 6
NEt Of tAXES....ci i 1 8 1 11
Net changef benefit plan assets and obligatians................. 17 18 34 34
INCOME tAXBXPENSE.....ieiieiiiiiiiiii ettt 6 6 11 11
NEt Of tAXES....ci i 11 12 23 23
Net changes in unrealized foreign currency translatian......... 48 (35) 89 68
INCOME tAXBXPENSE.....ieiieiiiiiiiiii ettt o} 8 6 21
NEL OF tAXES....uviiiiiiiiiii i 48 (43) 83 47
Total other comprehensive iNCOME............ccccoeevvveeenee. 394 874 596 1,712
Total iINCoOMe taX EXPENSE.......evieeiiiiiiiiiee e, 123 323 185 590

Total other comprehensive incomenet o taxes....... $ 271 % 551 $ 411 $ 1,122
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7. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
Continued

The fdlowing table presestthe pretax and related income tgexpensg benefit components of the amounts reclassified

from the Companyds AOCI to the Companyédés consolidated st
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Reclassificatioradjustments related to unrealized gains on
investment securities:
Having no credit losses recognized in the

consolidated statement of inCOMe..........ccoovviiiieiineennnn $ B $ (24 $ (99 $ (39
INCOME taX EXPENSE........ecveriiieiieteesieaeere et (30) (8) (33 (12
NEt OF tAXES ...eiii i (59 (16) (61 (23

Having credit losses recognized in the

consolidated statement of iNCOME............ccceevvveirivieeeene. o) 1 o} 12
Income tax brefit @ ... ........cceoiiii e ) 0 3 4
NEt Of tAXES. .. .uuiiviiiiiiieiei ettt o} 1 o} 8
Reclassification adjustment related to benefit plan
assets and obligations
Claims and claim adjustment expenSes................cccceevernene 7 6 14 12
General and administtive expense® ...........ccccovveveeieiieenens 11 9 21 19
TOtALL .. 18 15 35 31
Income tax beneft®) ...........cccoov e, 7 6 12 11
NS o) - R 11 9 23 20
Reclassification adjustment related to foreign
currency translatiof?..............ccceeeeerieseemre e ) 3 3 0
Income tax beneft®) ...........cccooveiii e, ) 3 ) 0
NEL Of tAXES. ... ueiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt o} 0 o} o}
Total reclassifications...........cccccovceeeiieeee e (66) (8) (59 8
Total income tax (expense) benefit.............ccccooviieenene. (23 (2) (21 3
Total reclassifications, net otaxes..............ccccve..... $ 43 $ 6 $ (39 $ 5

(1) (Increases) decreases net realized investment gains on the consolidated statement of income.
(2) (Increases) decreases income tax expense on the consolidated statement of income.
(3) Increases (decreases) expanse the consolidated statement of income.
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8. DEBT

Debt Issuance On May 22 2017, the Company issued’80 million aggregate principadmount 0f4.00% senior notes that
will mature onMay 30, 2047. The net proceeds of the issuance, after deduction of the underwriting discount and
expenses payable by the Companyaledapproximately $89 million. Interest on the senior notes is phle semiannually

in arrears orMay 30 andNovember 30commencingon November 302017. Prior to November 30, 204&hé senior notes
may beredeened,inwholeor i n part, at atdngtim®ofromp tane to finse, ab pdempmtion,pricecrial

to the greater of (a) 100% of the principal amouramf senior notes to be redeemed or (b) the sum of the presens value
the remaining scheduled payments of principal and intécestovember 30, 2046n any senior notes to be redeemed
(exclusive of interest accrued to the date mdemption) discounted to the date of redemption on a-aemial basis
(assuming a 36@ay year consisting of twelve lay months) at the then currefteasuryrate (as defined in the senior
notes),plus 15 basis poird. On or after November 30, 264the senior notemay beredeenad,in wholeor in part, at the
Comp any 6 st awygimeodrdrom time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amowmyof
senior notes to be redeem@tus accrue and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date.

Debt Redemption On June 2, 2017, the Company redeemed the remainingriilibon aggregate principal amount of its
6.25% Fixedto-Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures due 206 prteaper debenture df00% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaidreggt to the redemption date.

Commercial PaperThe Company had $0 and $100 million of commercial paper outstanding at June 30, 2017 and December
31, 2016, respeactely.

9. COMMON SHARE REPURCHASES

During the three months and six months ended June 3@, 2@ Company repurchas8® million and5.7 million shares,
respectively, under its share repurchase authorization, for a total co$f®fmillion and %00 million, respectively. The

average cost per share repurchased Was8.94and $.22.33 respectively.In addition,the Company acquired 1,88Bares

and 0.5 million shares for a total cost of $0.2 million and $61 million during the three months anah&iz exaled June 30,

2017, respectively, that were not part of the publicly announced share repurchase authorization. These shares consisted o
shares retained to cover payroll withholding taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted stock urst aawdard
performance share awards, and shares used by employees to cover the price of certain stock options that were exercised.

OoOn April 20, 2017, the Companyés Board of Directors app

$5.0 bilion of repurchase capacityAt June 30, 207, the Company had5&3billion of capacity remaining undets share
repurchase authorization.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of theet income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computationdor the periods presented

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Basicand Diluted
Net income, as reported.........cccccovcvvvveeeeecceeeennns $ 595 $ 664 $ 1,212 $ 135
Participating sharbased awards allocated
INCOME....eeiiiiiiee et (5) (5) 9 (10)
Net income availale to common shareholdérs
basicand diluted............cc..cooeeiiviiiieeiceiee, $ 590 $ 659 $ 1,203 $ 1345
Common Shares
Basic
Weighted average shares outstanding.............. 277.5 290.1 278.6 2921
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstagdin................ 277.5 290.1 278.6 2921
Weighted average effects of dilutive securiiies
stock options and performance shares........... 25 35 2.6 35
TOtAl. i 280.0 293.6 281.2 295.6
Net Income perCommon Share
T ] o $ 2.13 $ 2.27 $ 4.32 $ 4.60
Diluted.......oo oo e, $ 2.11 $ 224 $ 4.28 $ 4.55
11 SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE COMPENSATION
The following informatiorrelates tdully vested stock option awards.aine 302017:
Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Life Value
Stock Options Number Price Remaining (% in millions)
Vested at end of peridd..........c..cccocveuvee.e. 5,999,122 $ 87.63 6.4years $233
Exercisable at end of period.................... 3,276,192 $ 69.02 4.6years $188

(1) Represents awards for which the requisite service has been rendered, including those that are retirement eligible.

The total compensation cdstr all sharebased incentive compensation awaresognized in eaings was$31 million and
$32 million for the three monthendedJune 30 2017 and 26, respectivelyand &3 million and $82 million for the six
months ended June 30, Z0and 208, respectively The related tax beneditecognized irthe consolidatedtatement of
incomewere $.0 million and &1 million for the three month€ndedJune 302017 and 26, respectively, an&§24 million
and$28 million for the six months ended June, 2017 and 208, respectively

The total unrecognized compensation aesated to all nonvested sharased incentive compensation awardgwate 30
2017 was $#.86million, which is expected to be recognized over a weightegtage period d.0years.
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12. PENSION PLANS, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND SAVINGS PLANS

The following table summarizghe components afet periodic benefitcost or t h e [2psimmp anch pogtrstirement
benefitplans recognized ithe consolidated statement of incorfioe the three months ended June 30, 2017 and.2016

PensionPlans Postretirement Benefit Plans
(for the three months endedJune 3Q in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
SEIVICE COSL..uvviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceeeeeee e, $ 30 % 30 $ o} $ 0
Nonservice cost:
Interest cost on benefit obligation........ 30 31 1 2
Expected return on plan assets........... (60) (58) o} 0
Settlement.......ccccvvvveeeiiiiiec o} 1 o} 0
Amortization of unrecognized:
Prior service benefit...............ccceeee o} 0 Q) 1)
Net actuarial 10SS..........ccoevveviiiiiiiien 19 16 o} o}
Total nonservice COSt...........cccecc... (11 (10) o} 1
Net periodic benefit cost................ $ 19 % 20 $ o} $ 1

The following table indicates the line items in which the respective service cost®medrvice benefit costs are presented
in the consolidated statement of income for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

PensionPlans Postretirement Benefit Plans
(for the three months ended June 30, in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Service Cost:

Claims and claim adjustment expenses.. $ 12 $ 12 $ 0 $ 0

General and administrative expenses.... 18 18 0 0
Total service COSt......ccccvvveveeeennnnnnne 30 30 o} 0

Non-Service Cost:

Claims and claim adjustmentgenses...... 5) (5) 0 1

General and administrative expenses.... (6) (5) 0 0
Total nonservice COSt..................... (1 (10 o} 1
Net periodic benefit cost................ $ 19 3 20 % 0 $
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12. PENSION PLANS, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND SAVINGS PLANS, Contnued

The following table summarisd he components of net periodic benefit cos
bendit plans recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

PensionPlans Postretirement Benefit Plans
(for the six months ended June 30, in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
SEIVICE COSL..uviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeecceeeeee e, $ 60 $ 59 $ o} $ 0
Non-service cost:
Interest cost on benefit obligation........ 61 61 3 4
Expected return on plan assets........... (120 (115 o} 0
Settlement.......covevvvvveeeiiiiiii 0 1 o} 0
Amortization of unrecognized:
Prior service benefit.............cccceeen. o} o} 2 2
Net actuarial l0SS...........ccceeieeiiienenn. 37 33 o} o}
Total nonservice COSt..................... (22 (20) 1 2
Net periodic benefit cost................ $ 38 $ 39 $ 1 $

The following table indicates the line items in which thepextive service costs and reervice benefit costs are presented
in the consolidated statement of income for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

PensionPlans Postretirement Benefit Plans
(for the six months ended June 30, in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Service Cost:

Claims and claim adjustment expenses.. $ 24 $ 24 $ o $ 0

General and administrative expenses.... 36 35 o} 0
Total service COSt.......cccceeveeeennnnnne 60 59 o} 0

Non-Service Cost:

Claimsand claim adjustment expenses... (9) (9) o} 1

General and administrative expenses.... (13 (11 1
Total nonservice COSt...........ccec.... (22 (20 2
Net periodic benefit cost................ $ 38 % 39 $ 1 $ 2

13. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENT S AND GUARANTEES

Contingencies

The major pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries is a party describedbelowhi ch any of

Asbestosand Environmental Claims and Litigation

In the ordinary course of its insurance business, the Company has received and continues to receive claims for insurance
arising under policies issued by the Company asserting allegeies and damages from asbestasd environmental

related exposures that are the subject of related coverage litigation. The Company is defending asthestesonmental

related litigation vigorously and believes that it has meritorious defensesvln the outcomes of these disputes are
uncertain. In this regard, the Company employs dedicated specialists and aggressive resolution strategies to manage ashestc
and environmental loss exposure, including settling litigation under appropriate ¢aogas Currently, it is not possible to

predict legal outcomes and their impact on the future development of claims and litigation relating to asbestos and
environmental claims. Any such development will be affected by future court decisions and tatiernse as well as
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13. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES, Continued

changes in applicdd legislation. Because of these uncertainties, additional liabilities may arise for amounts in excess of the

Company6s current i nsurance Treserves. I n addition, t he
expenses may change. These &oldit liabilities or increases in estimates, or a range of either, cannot now be reasonably
estimated and could result in income statement charges

future periods.

Other Proceedings Not Arisng Under Insurance Contracts or Reinsurance Agreements

The Company is involved in other lawsuits, including lawsuits alleging -ertngractual damages relating to insurance
contracts or reinsurance agreements, that do not arise under insurancescontreicisurancegaeements The legal costs
associated with such lawsuits are expensed in the period in which the costs are inBased.upon currently available
information, the Company does not believe it is reasonably possible that any such tawslated lawsuits would be
materi al to the Compawoyldhsa vree sau Imast eafi ad p eardavteirsres edrf ect or
or liquidity.

Gain Contingency

On August 17, 2010, in a reinsurance dispute in New York staté captionedJnited States Fidelity & Guaranty Company

v. American Rénsurance Company, et athe trial court granted summary judgment for United States Fidelity and Guaranty
Company (USF&G), a subsidiary of the Company, and denied summary judgmém feinsurers. The Court of Appeals
largely affirmed the entry of summary judgment, but remanded two discrete issues for trial.

On November 7, 2016, the Company agreed to a settlement with one of the three defendants then remaining in this dispute.
The Company received payment under the settlement in the fourth quarter of 2016 and, as a result, recognized a $126 million
pretax ($82 million aftet a x ) gain in the fourth quarter, whi ch was
statement of incme for the year ended December 31, 20k6connection with that settlemeniiet reinsurance recoverable

bal ance related to this case was reduced from approxi mat
consolidated balance sheet.March 31, 2017, the claim related to the remaining defendants totaled $71 million, comprising

the $31 million of reinsurance recoverable plus interest amounting to $40 million as of thafluaiaterest was treated for
accounting purposes as a gain taogency in accordance with FASB Topic 480pntingenciesand accordingly was not
recognized in the Companyds consolidated financial state

On May 1, 2017, the Company agreed to a settleroktiis disputewith the two remaining defendantalongwith the

settlement of several other disputes with these same parties. As a result of the settlement of all of these mattgranthe Com
recorded an | mmateer iraelveqaliers 0i n nAd t s dootheshree mahthe eadtdnis30,at e me |
2017, and the reinsurance recoverable of s#&is8fiégd mi I I i on i n th

Other Commitments and Guarantees
Commitments

Investment Commitmends The Company has unfunded commitments to private equity limitedgvahips and real estate
partnerships in which it investsThese commitments totaled $8billion and $160 billion at June 302017 and December
31,2016, respectively.

Guarantees

The maximum amount of the Compdeyontingent obligation for inderfitationsrelated to the sale of businessleat are
quantifiable was $58 million at June 302017, of which £ million was recognized on the balance sheet at that date.

The maximum amount of the Compdmyobligation for guarantees of certain investtseand thireparty loans related to

certain investments that are quantifiable wab $nillion at June 30, 2017 approximately $3 million of which is
indemnified by a third party. The maxi mum amount of the Companycéertamobl i ge
insurance policy obligations of a former insurance subsidiary Wa8 ifillion at June 302017, all of which is indemnified

by a third party. For more information regarding Company guarantees, see note 16 of notes to the consolidated financial
¢ atements in the Companyds 2016 Ann «KKdiledoRRMPERO, 20172as updat ed
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14. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

The following consolidating financial statements of the Company have been prepared pursuant tbORafl®@8gulation S

X. These consolidating financial statements have been prepared fromtipeaCony 6 s f i nanci al i nfor mat
of accounting as the consolidated financial statements. The Travelers Companies, Inc. (excluding its subsidiaries, TRV) has
fully and unconditionally guaranteed certain debt obligations of Travelers Proetal/ Corp. (TPC), which totaled $700

million at June 30, 204

Prior to the merger of TPC and The St. Paul Companies, Inc. in 2004, TPC fully and unconditionally guaranteed the payment
of all principal, premiums, if any, and interest on certain debgiations of its whollyowned subsidiary, Travelers Insurance

Group Holdings, Inc. (TIGHI). Concurrent with the merger, TRV fully and unconditionally assumed such guarantee
obligations of TPC. TPC is deemed to have no assets or operations independd@tHbf Gonsolidating financial
information for TIGHI has not been presented herein because such financial information would be substantially the same as
the financial information provided for TPC.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)
For the thee months ended June 30, 2017

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Premiums.......ccccoeeeeecvveeeeeeeeee e, $ 4345 $ 2,006 $ o} $ 0 $ 6,351
Net investment income................. 401 191 6 0 598
Fee income.......cccccevvviiiiinie s, 116 o} o} 0 116
Net realized investment gains
(10SSESIY...veeeeeee e, (4 25 59 3 80
Other revenues...........ccceevvvvvvvenenn. 30 12 o} (©)] 39
Total revenues....................... 4,888 2,234 65 (©) 7,184
Claims and expenses
Claims and clem adjustment
EXPENSES. ..o e 2,851 1,374 o} 0 4,225
Amortization of deferred acquisitior
COSES . uuiiieiiieeiiieeeee e, 693 339 o] o} 1,032
General and administrative expens 737 305 6 (©)] 1,045
Interest expense..........occcceevvvrnnnnns 12 o} 80 0 92
Total claims and expenses.... 4,293 2,018 86 (©) 6,394
Income (loss) before income
tAXES. oo 595 216 (21 o} 790
Income tax expense (benefit)......... 157 54 (16) o} 195
Net income of subsidiaries............. o] o] 600 (600 o}
Netincome.......cccceeeevvivieeneenn, $ 438 $ 162 $ 595 $ (600 % 595

(1) Total otherthantemporary impairment (OTTI) for the three months ended June 30, 2017, and the amounts comprising total OTTI
that were recognized in net realizeglestment gains (losses) and in other comprehensive income (OCI) were as follows:

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Total OTTI I0SSES.....ccvveeveeeirennee. $ @ $ 3 % 0 $ 0 $ (5)
OTTI losses recognized in net
realized investment gains (loss $ @ $ 3 % 0 $ 0 $ (5)
OTTI losses recognized in OCI..... $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ d
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)
For the three months ended June 30, 2016

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Premiums.........ccccoeeevveeeeeeeeeeee, $ 4161 $ 1,906 $ o} $ 0 $ 6,067
Net investment income................... 377 168 4 o} 549
Fee income.......ccccceevvviiiinieviceeen, 119 o} o} 0 119
Net realized investment gains
(10SSESIY ... (1) 20 ) ) 19
Other revenues...........cccccevvvvvvnenn, 33 1 o} (©)] 31
Total revenues............coocuueeee. 4,689 2,095 4 3 6,785
Claims and expenses
Claims and claim adjustment
EXPENSES. ..ot e, 2,575 1,187 o} 0 3,762
Amortization of deferred acquisitior
(o0 1] £ SRR 666 323 o} o} 989
General and administrative expens 743 313 1 (©)] 1,054
Interest eXpense........ccceeveeveeenneene 12 o} 81 0 93
Total claims and expenses.... 3,996 1,823 82 (©) 5,898
Income (loss) efore income
122 VLS T 693 272 (78 o} 887
Income tax expense (benefit)......... 191 69 (37 o} 223
Net income of subsidiaries............. o} o} 705 (705 o}
Netincome.........ccoeeeeevveeennn, $ 502 $ 203 $ 664 $ (705 % 664

(1) Total otherthantemporary impairment (OTTI) for the three months ended June 30, 2016, and the amounts comprising total OTTI
that were recognized in net realized investment gains (losses) and in other comprehensive income (OCI) were as follows:

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Total OTTI I0SSES....cccveeeeiieeene. $ 3 % @ $ o} $ o} $ 4
OTTI losses recodred in net
realized investmemjains(losses, $ 3 $ @ $ o} $ o} $ (4)
OTTI gains (losses) recognized in
OCl . $ o $ o $ o $ o $ d
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)
For thesix months ended June 30, 201

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Premiums........cccoceeeviiveeeciiieeeeeee, $ 8573 % 3961 $ o} $ 0 $ 12,534
Net investment income................... 813 385 10 o} 1,208
Fee income.......ccccceevvviiiinieviceeen, 229 o} o} 0 229
Net realized investment gains
(10SSESIY ... (8) 34 59 ) 85
Other revenues...........cccccevvvvvvnenn, 54 21 o} 5) 70
Total revenues............coocuueeee. 9,661 4,401 69 (5) 14,126
Claims and expenses
Claims and claim adjustment
EXPENSES....eevieieiee e e e, 5,603 2,716 o} 0 8,319
Amortization of deferred acquisitior
(o701 £ 1,361 674 o] o] 2,035
General and administrative expens 1,440 597 9 (5) 2,041
Interest expense..........ccccccvvvvvnnnns 24 o} 157 0 181
Total claims and expenses.... 8,428 3,987 166 5) 12,576
Income (loss) before income
122 VLS T 1,233 414 (97 o} 1,550
Income tax expems(benefit)............ 287 108 (57 0 338
Net income of subsidiaries............. o} o} 1,252 (1,252 o}
Net income.......cccceveeviiiieennenns $ 946 3 306 $ 1,212 $ (1,252 % 1,212

(1) Total otherthantemporary impairment (OTTI) for th&x months ended June 30, Z0nd the amounts comprising total OTTI that
were recognized in net realized investment glosseskynd in other comprehensive income (OCI) were as follows:

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Total OTTI 10SSES......cvveeeiiieeannnee. $ @ $ 4 3 o} $ o} $ (6)
OTTI losses recognized in net
realized investment gairflosses, $ 3 $ 4 3 o} $ o} $ @)
OTTI gainsrecognized in OCI........ $ 1 $ o} $ o} $ o} $ 1
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2016

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Premiums........cccoceeeeiiveeeciiieeeeee e, $ 8246 $ 3,802 $ o} $ 0 $ 12,048
Net investment income................... 753 334 6 o} 1,093
Feeincome........cccccvevvvcivienie i, 236 o} o} 0 236
Net realized investment gains
(10SSESIY.....oeeees (17 27 ) 3 10
Other revenues...........cccecvvvvvvvennnn. 81 17 o} (19 84
Total revenues.............oocuueeee. 9,299 4,180 6 (19 13,471
Claims and expenses
Claims and claim adjustment
EXPENSES.....ceveeeviiiiiiiae e eeaeennns 5,095 2,379 o] o] 7,474
Amortization of deferred acquisitior
(o701 (Y 1,316 644 o] o] 1,960
General and administrative expens 1,447 611 5 (14 2,049
Interest expense...........ccccevvvvnnvnnns 24 0 160 o} 184
Total claims and expenses.... 7,882 3,634 165 (19 11,667
Income (loss) before income
TAXES..ici i 1,417 546 (159 0 1,804
Income tax expense (benefit)......... 390 138 (79 o} 449
Net income of subsidi@s................ o} o} 1,435 (1,439 o}
Netincome.......cccceeeevviiieeneenn, $ 1027 % 408 $ 1,355 $ 1435 % 1,355

(1) Total otherthantemporary impairment (OTTI) for the six months ended June 30, 2016, and the amounts comprisDifTiotat
were recognized in net realized investment gains (losses) and in other comprehensive income (OCI) were as follows:

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Total OTTIOSSES.....ccveeeeiieeene. $ an $ 15 $ o} $ o} $ (32
OTTI losses recognized in net
realized investment gairflosses, $ 12 $ 109 $ o} $ o} $ (22
OTTI losses recognized in OCI..... $ 5 $ 5 $ o} $ o} $ (10
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
For the three months ended 880, 2017

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Net inCome.......ccocveeviieeeiiiecceen, $ 438 $ 162 $ 595 $ (600 $ 595

Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Changes in net unrealized gaion
investment securities:
Having no credit losses recogniz
in the consolidated statement ¢
INCOME....coiiiiiiiiiiiie e 296 85 (59 0 327
Having credit losses recognized
the consolidated statement of

INCOME....evvieiiiiiiiieeeeeeivieeeeees 1 1 o} 0 2
Net changes in benefilan assets

and obligations...........ccccceeee... o} D 18 o} 17
Net changes in unrealized foreigr

currency translation................. 14 34 o} 0 48

Other comprehensive income
(loss)before income taxes
and other comprehensive

incomeof subsidiaries.......... 311 119 (36) o} 394
Income tax expengpenefit).......... 102 33 (12 o} 123
Other comprehensive income
(loss) net of taxes, before
other comprehensivencome
of subsidiaries............c......... 209 86 (29 0 271
Othercomprehensivincomeof
sulsidiaries.......ccovvvveeeeeeiieiieienn, o} o} 295 (295 o}
Other comprehensiveincome... 209 86 271 (299 271
Comprehensive income.......... $ 647 $ 248 $ 866 $ (895 $ 866
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND

SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)

(in millions)

For the three months ended June 30, 2016

Other
TPC Subsidiaries

TRV

Eliminations Consolidated

Net iNCOMEe.......cveeviieieieeeee e,

Other comprehensive income
(loss)

Changes in net unrealized gains «
investment scurities:

Having no credit losses recogniz
in the consolidated statement ¢
INCOME...covviieieeeeiii e,

Having credit losses recognized
the consolidated statement of
INCOME...cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e

Net changes in benefit plan asset
and oblgations...............ceeeees
Net changes in unrealized foreigr
currency translation.................

Other comprehensive income
(loss)before income taxes
and other comprehensive
incomeof subsidiaries..........

Income tax expense (benefit).......

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of taxes, before
other comprehensivencome
of subsidiaries...........cccc.......

Othercomprehensivincomeof
subsidiaries.........ceeeeeieeiiiiiiienns

Other comprehensiveincome...
Comprehensive income...........

502 $ 203

664

$ (7059 $ 664

570 306

18 19

25 (60)

(19

0 879

3 (35)

619 271
216 113

(16)
(6)

874
323

ox Ox

403 158

(10

0 551

561

(561) 3

403 158

551

(561) 551

905 $ 361

$

1,215

$ (1,266 $ 1,215
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

14. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND

SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)

(in millions)

For thesix months ended June 30, 201

Other
TPC Subsidiaries TRV

Eliminations

Consolidated

Net iNCOMEe......ocvveiiiiieieeee e,

Other comprehensive income
(loss)

Changes in net unrealized gains «
investmen securities:

Having no credit losses recogniz
in the consolidated statement ¢
INCOME.....cvvviiieeieeeeeeeeeeeieeee,

Having credit losses recognized
the consolidated statement of
INCOME...ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e,

Net changes in benefit plan asset
and obligations................cccoe...
Net changes in unrealized foreigr
currency translation.................

Other comprehensive income
(loss)before income taxes
and other comprehensive
incomeof subsidiaries..........

Income tax expense (benefit).......

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of taxes, before
other comprehensivencome
of subsidiaries...........ccccc.....

Othercomprehensivincomeof
subsidiaries.......ccccccveeiriiiiiieeeans

Other comprehensiveincome...
Comprehensiveincome............

946 $ 306 $ 1,212

$

(1,252

$

1,212

389 129 (47)

3 (1) 35

39 50 )

471

34

89

430 178 (12
139 49 (3)

ox Ox

5%
185

291 129 (9)

411

o) o} 420

(420

201 129 411

(420

411

$ 1,237 $ 435 $

1,623

$

(1,672

$

1,623
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND

SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
For the six months ended June 30, 2016

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
NetinCome........cocveeviieeiiiieeceeeas $ 1,027 408 $ 1,355 $ (1,439 $ 1,355
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Changes in net unrealized gains
investment seurities:
Having no credit losses recogni:
in the consolidated statement
INCOME....cvveiiiiiiiie e, 1,055 534 4 o] 1,593
Having credit losses recognized
the consolidated statement of
INCOME...ceiiieiiiiiiiee e 8 9 o} o} 17
Net changes in benefit plan asse
and olligations.............cccvveeee, 18 20 4 0 34
Net changes in unrealized foreigt
currency translation................ 119 (52) o} o} 68
Other comprehensive income
before income taxesand
other comprehensiveincome
of subsidiaries.................... 1,200 512 o} o} 1,712
Income tax expense.................... 397 192 1 o} 590
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of taxes, before
other comprehensivencome
of subsidiaries..................... 803 320 Q) o} 1,122
Othercomprehensivincomeof
subsidiaries.......cccccvvveieeeeeeenn. o} o} 1,123 (1,123 o}
Other comprehensiveincome.. 803 320 1,122 (1,123 1,122
Comprehensive income......... $ 1,830 728 $ 2,477 $ (2,53) $ 2,477
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14. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (Unaudited)
At June 302017

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited), Continued

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Fixed maturities, available for sak fair value
(amortized cOStE,483 ......ccvvveireiiiieeeeeiiieans $ 43029 $ 18,829 $ 49 $ 5] $ 61,907
Equity securitiesavailable for saleat fair value (cost
B558) it 176 357 167 o) 700
Real estattnvestmentS........covvvveveeiiinieniieeneneennns 55 865 o] o) 920
Shortterm SECUNIES. .....uvvirieiiieieeie e 2,065 715 2,512 0 5,292
Other iNnVestmeNntS........coveviviiiieeiceee e 2,612 899 1 0 3,512
Total iINVEStMENTS....ccvvvviiiiiiieee e rereeas 47,937 21,665 2,729 0 72,331
(OF2 1] 1 134 192 2 o 328
Investment inComMe acCrued..........cvevevveenernermenenn. 422 176 4 0 602
Premiums receivable..........coovveviiiiiiiiiecinicens 4,952 2,393 0 0 7,345
Reinsurance recoverables.........cccovivveviiiniimcennenns 5,594 2,556 0 0 8,150
Ceded unearned premiumsS. .......ccuueerineeennrennneenn. 587 78 o} o} 665
Deferred acquisition COSES........cuvveviiinieinieimeenenns, 1,847 204 0 6] 2,051
Deferred taxes........ovveviiiiiiiiei e (43) 188 56 o} 201
Contractholder receivables...........ccocoveveiiiiieeennen, 3,759 941 o] 4 4,700
GOOAWIll...ceneineiiei e e 2,586 1,003 4 3,589
Other ntangible assefs.........cccovvvvviiiiiiieeeeieee, 202 62 o} o} 264
Investment in subsidiaries..........cocovviiiiiiieennns, 0 0 27,451 (27,45) 0
Other AaSSeLS....cuiviiniiiiii i 2,122 283 38 0 2,443
Total ASSELS...vuiviiriiiiiiieieie et $ 70,099 $ 29,741 $ 30,280 $ (27,45) $ 102,669
Liabilities
Claims and claim adjustment expense reseru....... $ 32564 $ 16,010 $ o) $ 6] $ 48,5574
Unearned premium reServesS........ovevevueverneeeenness 9,043 4,009 0 0 13,052
Contractholder payables............ccoovviiviiiiieannnen. 3,759 941 0 0 4,700
Payables for reinsurance premiums..................... 214 150 o} o} 364
D= o] ST 693 6] 6,227 d 6,920
Other liabilities.......ccoeeiiiie e 3,956 1,040 205 d 5,201
Total liabilities .....oeevveeiiiieii e 50,229 22,150 6,432 d 78,811
Shareholdersdé equity
Common stock (150.0shares authorize@75.9
sharedssued andutstanding)............cccocevvneeenn, o} 390 22,781 (390 22,781
Additional paidin capital............ccooeeeviiiiiiiieeneennn. 11,634 6,499 o} (18,133 o}
Retained earnings.........coooevviiniiiiiccenicineeeeens 7,917 706 33,006 (8,613 33,016
Accumulated othecomprehensive incomoss)........ 319 (4) (344) (319 (344
Treasury stog, at cost4957 shares)............ceeeeeen.. o} 0 (31,595 0 (31,595
Tot al shar ehol.de.r.s.d.. 19,870 7,591 23,848 (27,45) 23,858
Tot al l'iabilities .an $70099 $ 29,741 $ 30,280 $ (27,45) $ 102,669
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14, CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SH EET (Unaudited)

At December 31, 2016

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations  Consolidated
Assets
Fixed maturities, available for sale, at fair value
(amortized cost $59,650).........ccevureirinrirrnnnnns $ 42,014 $ 18,452 $ 49 $ o} $ 60,515
Equity securities, available for sale, at fair value
(COSEB504). .. i eem e 169 408 155 o} 732
Real estate iNVeStMENtS.........covvvevrerriniereeennnnes 56 872 o} o} 928
Shortterm SECUNtieS........vvivviiiiieiie e eeaeene, 2,447 791 1,627 0 4,865
Other investmentS........coocviiiiiiiiceee e, 2,569 878 1 0 3,448
Total iInvestments.......c.ccevveveeiniiiiiiieeeenn. 47,255 21,401 1,832 o] 70,488
CaSh e e 141 164 2 o} 307
Investment income accrued...........ceevueeennnereennes 441 183 6 o} 630
Premiums receivable...........cooveviiiiiiiiceninenens 4,545 2,177 0 0 6,722
Reinsurance recovables............ccovvveiiniiiinivennnne. 5,664 2,623 0 0 8,287
Ceded unearned premiums..........ccuveiernnerenmnnnn. 536 53 o} o} 589
Deferred acquisition COSES...........ovvereeniiiniinannnes 1,741 182 0 0 1,923
Deferred tars. .......ccvuveeeriiiiie e 216 224 25 o} 465
Contractholder receivables..........cc.cocevveiniimnnns 3,656 953 0 0 4,609
GOOAWI ... e e 2,578 1,002 o} 3,580
Other intangible assets.......c.c.ocvevveiiiiiieeeeneeeenn, 202 66 o} o} 268
Investment in subsidiaries.............coceeviiiiiiieennnns o] 4 27,137 (27,137 4
Other aSSetS....cciviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,973 370 34 0 2,377
Total aSSEtS...cvvuieerieieiiieei e eeemee e $ 68,948 $ 29,398 $ 29,036 $ (27137 $ 100,245
Liabilities
Claims and claim adjustment expense reserves... $ 32,168 $ 15,781 $ o} $ o} $ 47,949
Unearned premium reSEerves.......coeeuvveueeuneenanns 8,575 3,754 0 0 12,329
Contractholder payables..........c...cooiveiiiiieeneennn. 3,656 953 o} o} 4,609
Payables for reinsurance premiums................... 156 117 o} o} 273
DEDE. it e 693 o} 5,744 o} 6,437
Other liabilities..........cooeeviiiiiiieee e, 4,106 1,239 82 o} 5,427
Total liabilities .......cccvveveeiiiiee e, 49,354 21,844 5,826 o} 77,024
Sharehol dyersé equit
Common stock (1,750.0 shares authorized; 279.€
shares issued and outstanding)..................... o} 390 22,614 (390 22,614
Additional paidin capital............coeeeviiiiiiiiiiiennnnn. 11,634 6,499 o} (18,133 0
Retained earnings...........ccoeveeeeiieicemeneeneennnes 7,933 797 32,185 (8,719 32,196
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 27 (132 (755 105 (7595
Treasury stock, at cost (489.5 shares)................ o} o} (30,834 o} (30,839
Tot al shar ehuol.d.e.r.s.a. 19,594 7,554 23,210 (27,137 23,221
Tot al l'iabilities .ar $68948 $ 29,398 $ 29,036 $ (27,137 $ 100,245
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SUBSIDIARIES, Continued

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

For thesix months endedune 302017

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Cash flows from operating activities
NEet INCOME........oiiiiiiiiciiiee e $ 946 $ 306 $ 1,212 $ (1,252 $ 1,212
Net adjustments to reconcile net income to net ¢
provided by operating activities...................... 224 31 223 (105 373
Net cash provided byoperating activities.............. 1,170 337 1,435 (1,357 1,585
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturities of fixed maturities....... 3,211 1,087 2 0 4,300
Proceeds from sales of investments:
Fixed maturitis........cccoeevieeeeeiiiireeee e 285 278 o} o} 563
Equity SeCcUrities........cccoovvveeviiiiieicensiieen, 4 75 121 o} 200
Real estate investments..............ccccceeeeeee o) 20 0 4 20
Other investmentS..........cccccvveeviieiiecceeeennn. 294 109 o} o} 403
Purchases of investments:
Fixed maturitiesS........cooovvveeeeiiiiiceee e (4,160 (1,51) (2 o} (5673
Equity SecUrities........cccccvveeviiiiie e, (3) 4y (122 o} (166
Real estaténvestments..........ccccceevviveeeeneen. o} (26) o} o} (26)
Other investments............coccceveviviieeceeenns (202 (57) o} o} (259)
Netsales(purchasespf shortterm securities......... 383 78 (885 o} (429
Securities tragactions in course of settlement..... 105 64 1 o} 170
OtNer e (139 6 o} s} (129
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie (218) 82 (885 o} (1,021
Cash flows from financing activities
Treasury ®ckacquired’ share repurchase
AUtNONZAtION. ... o} o} (700 o} (700
Treasury ®ock acquiredi net employee shatfeased
COMPENSALION.....oeiiiiiiieeiirie e rcremiree e o} o} (67 o} (61
Dividends paid to shareholders...............c........... o) 0 (389 0 (389
Payment of diBt.............ccoeeviiiiiiiienc e o} o} (207 o} (207
Issuance of debt..........ccceeveiiiiiiiece e o} o} 689 o} 689
Issuance of common stockemployee share optiol o} o} 118 0 118
Dividends paid to parent company............cccc....... (961 (396 o} 1,357 0
Net cash used in financing actidies..................... (961 (399 (550 1,357 (550
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash........... 2 5 o} 0 7
Netincreasedecreasgin cash..........cccoccveeirnnenens (7) 28 o} o} 21
Cash at beginning gfear..........cccoocceeiivieieeeeeene 141 164 2 0 307
Cash at end of period...........cccovvieviiniiennieniees $ 134 $ 192 $ 2 $ o} $ 328
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Income taxes paifteceived).........c.cceeceeiiiiiniiienens $ 336 $ 119 $ (132 $ o} $ 323
INterest PaiId........ccoeeveeereiiieceeee e $ 24 $ o) $ 154 $ o) $ 178
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
For thesix months endedune 302016

Other
(in millions) TPC Subsidiaries TRV Eliminations Consolidated
Cash flows from operating activities
NEet INCOME........ooiiiiiiieiiiiie e $ 1,027 $ 408 $ 1355 % (1,439 $ 1,355
Net adjustments to renoile net income to net casl
provided by(used inJoperating activities........... ()] (222 116 61 (62
Net cash provided byoperating activities.............. 1,010 186 1,471 (1,379 1,293
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturities of fixed maturities......... 2,728 1,040 5 0 3,773
Proceeds from sales of investments:
Fixed maturities...........ccooeeieeeieiiicee e 385 352 2 o] 739
Equity SeCUNties.........coccvveeiiiiieeiieemrieee, 10 28 o} o} 38
Real estate investments.............cccccceeeeeenee, o] 69 o] o] 69
Other investmentS..........ccccveevieeeiiiccee e 233 110 o] o] 343
Purchases of investments:
Fixed maturitiesS........cccoevrveeeeiiiireeeee e (3,588 (2,108 9) o} (5,709
Equity SeCUNtieS.........covceeeeiiiieieereeenieee, (5) (129 2 o} (26)
Real estatvestments..........cccceeevvveeeeieenn, o} (20 o} o} (20
Other hvestments.........cccoovvveeeiiiieeceee (223 (69 o} o} (290
Net (purchasesales of shofterm securities.......... 193 639 (153 o] 681
Securities transactions in course of settlement.... 325 137 (1) o} 461
(@101 (15) () o} o} (154
Net cash provded by (used in) investing activities (91 156 (156 o] (91
Cash flows from financing activities
Treasury ®ockacquired’ share repurchase
AUtNONZAtION. ... o} o} (1,100 o} (1,100
Treasury ®ockacquiredi ne employee sharbased
COMPENSALION.....eeieiiiiiiee it e s reeeeieee e eeeee e, o} o} (59 o} (59
Dividends paid to shareholders...............ccceeuueee. o} o} (379 o} (379
Payment of deht...........cccooviiiiiiiin o} o} (400 o} (400
Issuance of debt..........cccceeeiiiiiiiecn e o} o} 491 o} 491
Issuance of common sto¢kemployee share optiot o] 0 129 o] 129
Dividends paid to parent company....................... (1,029 (349 o} 1,374 o}
Net cash used in financing activities................... (1,029 (349 (1,319 1,374 (1,319
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash............ 2 (5) o} o} (©)
Netincreasedecreasgin cash.........ccccooeveeeeninnnee (109 (12 1 o} (115
Cash at beginning gfear..........cccoeceeeiiiieieeeeee e 225 153 2 o} 380
Cash at end of period............ccccoeevviiiicmeeccneee. $ 121 $ 141 $ 3 $ 0 $ 265
Supplemental disclosure otash flow information
Income taxes paifteceived)............cccceeveerriennne. $ 398 $ 142 $ 73 $ 0 $ 467
INtErest PAId........ccoveveiiiiiieieeee e $ 24 $ 0 $ 156 % 0 $ 180
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 2 . MANAGEMENTG6S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANKIDNSI S OF FI NANCI AL
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Compan
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
2017 Second Quarter Consolidated Results of Operations

Net income of $595 million,d$2.13 per share basic and $2.11 per share diluted
Net earned premiums of $6.35 billion

Catastrophe losses of $403 million ($262 million aftet)

Net favorable prior year reserve development of $203 million ($132 milliontafter
Combined r#o of 96.7%

Net investment income of $598 million ($468 million aftax)

Operating cash flows of $810 million

T>o I>0 T> T To To I

2017 Second Quarter Consolidated Financial Condition

Total investments of $72.33 billion; fixed maturities and stemn securites comprised 93% of total investments
Total assets of $102.67 billion

Total debt of $6.92 billion, resulting in a debttotal capital ratio of 22.5% (23.3% excluding net unrealized
investment gains, net of tax)

Repurchased 3.8 million common sbs for total cost of $475 million and paid $199 million of dividends to
shareholders

Sharehol dersdé equity of $23.86 billion

Net unrealized investment gains of $1.59 billion ($1.04 billion gy

Book value per common share of $86.46

Holding @mmpany liquidity of $2.55 billion

ToToToTo  To o Tode

Realignment of Reportable Business Segments

Ef fective April 1, 2017, the Companyo6s r egd Business Iresuramcer epor
Bond & Specialty Insurance and Personal Insurancer ef | ect i ng a change in the mannei
are managed as of that date, as well as the aggregation of products and services based on the type of customer, how th
business is marketed and the manner in which risks are undenwkitte i | e t he segmentation of t
businesses is wunchanged, the Companyés international bu
within the Business and International Insurance segment, are now disaggregateduoy typed among the three newly

alignedreportablebusiness segmentall prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.

In connection with these changes, the Company has revised the names and descriptions ofsiegsgedoomising the

Companyds segments and hasThe fellbwing didciession of segrment resuitd issbasedion thé a n ¢
realigned reportable business segment structure effective April 1, 2017.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MANAGEMENTO®6S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S, Cont i
CONSOLIDATED OVERVIEW
Consolidated Results of Operations
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in_millions, except ratio and per shareamounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Premiums........oooooiiiiieeecceeee e $ 6,351 $ 6,067 $ 12,534 $ 12,048
Net investment inCOMe............ccoevvvereereenn. 598 549 1,208 1,093
Fee inCome.....coooovvvvieeiiiiicc e 116 119 229 236
Net realized investment gains................. 80 19 85 10
Other revenUEeS...........c.covvvvvvvvvviimemenninnnenn, 39 31 70 84
Total revenues........cccceeeeveevveeeeeieeneen. 7,184 6,785 14,126 13471
Claims and expenses
Claims and claim adjustment expenses... 4,225 3,762 8,319 7,474
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs 1,032 989 2,035 1,960
General and administrative expenses...... 1,045 1,064 2,041 2,049
INterest eXPense.........coevveevvvenniiieesennnnnnns 92 93 181 184
Total claims and expenses................. 6,394 5,898 12,576 11667
Income before income taxes.............. 790 887 1,550 1,804
INCOME tax EXPENSE.......uvvveriiiiieeeeeeeaaennn 195 223 338 449
Net iNCOME........ccooevviiiiiiiieeceeeeeeee e, $ 595 $ 664 $ 1,212 $ 135
Net incomeper share
BaSIC. .t $ 2.13 $ 227 $ 4.32 $ 4.60
Diluted.....ccooe e $ 211 $ 2.24 $ 4.28 $ 455
Combined ratio
Loss and loss adjustment expense ratia 65.6% 61.1% 65.9% 61.1%
Underwriting expense ratiQ..................... 31.1 32.0 30.9 316
Combined ratio.......cccooeevvvviiieeriiviinnnn. 96.7%6 93.1% 96.%% 92. 70
The following discussionso f t he Companyods net i ncome and s-taxg bagsn t

Discussions of the components of net income and segment income are presenf@étar basis, unless otherwise nated

Discussions of net income per common share gggepted on a diluted basis.

Overview

n u

Diluted net income per share of $2.11 in the second quarter of 2017 decreased by 6% from diluted net income per share of
$2.24 in the same period @016. Net income of $595 million in the second quarter of 20Xtedesed by 10% from net
income of $664 million in the same period of 2016. The lower rate of decrease in diluted net income per share reflected the
impact of share repurchases in recent periods. The decrease in net income primarily reflectedxlimmpaets of (i) lower
net favorable prior year reserve development, (ii) higher catastrophe losses and (iii) lower underwriting margins excluding

catastrophe |l osses and

prior

year

reserve

d e v (&) highemmetn t

realized investment gains and (v) higher net investment inc@@agastrophe losses ihe second quarters of 2017 a216
were $403 milion and 833 million, respectively. Net favorable prior yeareservedevelopment in the second quastef
2017 and 2016 was $203 million and $288 million, respectively. The lower underlying underwriting margins primarily
resulted from (i) the timing of higher loss estimates in personal automobile bodily injury coverages that were conkistent wit
the hidher loss trends recognized in the last half of 2016 and (ii) normal quarterly variability “catastrophe weather
related losses. Partially offsetting this net-fzne decrease in income was a related decrease in income tax expense.
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Diluted net income per share o4.28in the first six months 02017 deadeased by% from diluted net income per share of

$4.55 in the same period 8016. Net income of $21 billion in the first six months of 2017 decreased by 11% from net
income of $1.36 billion in the same period of 2016. The lower rate of decrease in diluted net income per share reflected the
impact of share repurchases in recent periods. The deanazsteincome primarily reflected the ptax impacts of (i) lower

net favorable prior year reserve development, (ii) lower underlying underwriting margins and (iii) higher catastrophe losses,
partially offset by (iv) higher net investment income and (ghér net realized investment gains. Catastrophe losses in the
first six months of 2017 and 2016 were $750 million and $651 million, respectively. Net favorable prior year reserve
development in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 was $284 million$468 million, respectively. The lower
underlying underwriting margins primarily resulted from (i) the timing of higher loss estimates in personal automobile bodily
injury coverages that were consistent with the higher loss trends recognized in thé 2016 and (ii) normal variability

in non-catastrophe weatheelated losses. Partially offsetting this net-fae decrease in income was a related decrease in
income tax expense. Income tax expense in the first six months of 2017 was also rgdi@@driilion as a result of the
resolution of prior year tax matters in the first quarter of 2017.

The Company has insurance operations in Canada, the United KinguoRepublic of Ireland and throughout other parts

of the world as a corporate memlzef L | oy d 6 s Brazdaand Gulerhbia, pansarilyi through joint ventureBecause

these operations are conducted in local currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the Company is subject to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates:or thethree nonths and six monthsndedJune 302017 and 2016changes in foreign currency
exchange rategnpactedreported line items in the statement of income by insignificant amounts. The impact of these
changes wsnot material to the Compay 6 s n et mantnocome foraheperiodsrgported.

Revenues

Earned Premiums

Earned premiums in the second quarter of22@&re %.35billion, $284 million or 5% higherthan in the same period of
2016. Earned premiums in the first six months of 2@dere #2.53billion, $486 million or 4% higher than in the same
period of 208. In Businesdnsurancegarned premiums in the second quaatad first six months of 2017 increased by 2%
and 1%, respectively, over the same periods of 20a®ond & Specialtyinsuranceegarned premiums in the second quarter
and first six months of 2017 increased by 3% and 2%, respectively, over the same periods dhZx€onal Insurance
earned premiums in the second quarter and first six months @fi@freased by 0% and 9%, resectively, overthe same
periods of 206. Factors contributing to the changes in earned premiums in each segmestwssedn more detail in the
segment discussions that follow.

Net Investment Income

The following table sets forth informationredar ng t he Companyés investments.
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Average investment®....................... $ 71,385 $ 70033 $ 71,154 $ 69,989
Pretax net investment income.......... 598 549 1,208 1,093
After-tax net investment income...... 468 442 948 881
Average pretax yield® ..................... 3.4% 3.1% 3.4% 3.1%
Average aftettax yield®................... 2.6% 25% 2. % 25%

(1) Excludes net unrealized investment gains and lcmsdgeflects cash, receivables for investment sales, payables on investment
purchases and accrued investment income.
(2) Excludes net realized and net unrealized investment gains and losses.

Net investment income in the second quarter of7204s %98 million, $49 million or 9% higherthan in the same period of
2016. Net investment income in the first six months of 20as #.21billion, $115million or 11% higherthan in the same
period of 208. Net investment income from fixed maturity investmeintshe second quarter and first six months of 201
was $71million and #48million, respectively, 26 million and %2 million lower, respectively, than in the same periods of
2016. The decreasgwimarily resuled from lower longterm reinvestmentates available in the markepartially offset by
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the impact of a slightly higher level of fixed maturity investiserNet investment income generated by +iicied maturity
investments in the second quarded first six monthef 2017 was $124 million and $255 million, respectively, $71 million
and $158 million higher, respectively, than in the same periods of pabarily due to higher returns from private equity
limited partnerships.

Fee Income

The National Accounts mark@t Business Insurancetsh e pr i mary s o ur c-aseanlfbusinessdhe 80 mp a n:
million and $7 million decreases in fee incomettie second quarter and first six months of 2017, respectively, compared

with the same periods of 2016 aliscussed in the Business Insurance segment discussion that follows

Net Realized Investment Gains

The following table sets forth informationredar ng t he Companyés net realized inves
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Net Realized Investment Gains

Otherthantemporary impairment losses... $ (5) $ (4 $ @ $ (22
Other net realized invasent gains.............. 85 23 92 32
Net realized investment gains.............. $ 80 $ 19 $ 85 $ 10

The increases in other net realized investment gains in the second quarter and first six months of 20&d eétinghe
same periods of 2016 were primarily driven by net realized gains on the sale of equity securities.

Other Revenues

Other revenues in all periods of 2017 and 2016 included installment premium chatgesrevenues in the second quarter
of 2017alsoincluded a gain related to the settlemena oinsurancedispute SeefiGain Contingenayin note 13of notes to
the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further discusSidrer revenues in the first six months of 2016 also
included proceeds from the favorable settlement of a clagteded legal matter in the first quarter of 2016.

Claims and Expenses

Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenseshim second quarter of 2017 were $4.23 billior34nillion or 12% higher than in

the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the impacts of (i) higher volumes of insured exposures, (ii) loss coftifrends,
lower net favorable prior year reserve development, (iv) higher catastrophe losses tifanipef higher loss estimates in
personal automobile bodily injury liability coverages that were consistent with the higher loss trends recognized in the last
half of 2016 and (vi) normal quarterly variability in noatastrophe weatheelated lossesCatastrophe losses in the second
quarter of 2017 primarily resulted from wind and hail storms in several regions of the United States. Catastrophé¢hesses in
second quarter of 2016 primarily resulted from wind and hail storms in several regiondJoifitde States and wildfires in
Canada.

Claims and claim adjustment expengeshe first six months of 2017 wef8.32billion, $845 million or 11% higher than in

the same period of 261 primarily reflectingthe impacts of (i) higher volumes of insdrexposures, (ii) loss cost trends, (iii)

lower net favorable prior year reserve development, (iv) higher catastrophe losses, (v) the timing of higher loss estimates i
personal automobile bodily injury liability coverages that were consistent withigher loss trends recognized in the last

half of 2016 and (vi) normal variability in nezatastrophe weatheelated losses. Catastrophe losses in the first six months of
2017 and 2016 included the second quarter events described above, as well asl\waitisdorms in several regions of the

United States and a winter storm in the eastern United States in the first quarter of 2017, and wind and hail storms in Texas
and several other regions of the United States and winter storms in the eastern Uteiteith 8ta first quarter of 2016.

Factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve development during the second quarters and first six months of 2017
and 2016 areiscussed in more detail in note 6 of notes to the unaudited consolidateddirstaiements.
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Significant Catastrophe Losses

The following table presents the amount of losses recorded by the Company for significant catastropbesrtedtiathe

three months and six months ended June28@y and 2016the amount of net unfavorable (favorable) prior year reserve
development recognized the three and six months ended June 30, 207205 for significant catastrophes that occurred

in 2016 and 2015and the estimate of ultimate losses for those catastroplieseat3Q 2017 and December 31, 261 For

purposes of the table, a significant catastrophe is an event for which the Company estimates its ultimate losses will be $100
million or more after reinsurance and beforetaxéesar t he Companyobs definitidgdem7df a c.
Management 6s Di scussion and Anal ysi s TioQo nFsionlaindcatad d Clwnedri vt
Compa2yp@dmnudReportas updated by t he Comp a-Kfiedl enJaha 2052017t Repor t

Losses Incurred/Unfavorable (Favorable)
Prior Year Reserve Development

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, Estimated Ultimate Losses
June 30, December 31,

(in millions, pre-tax and net of reinsurance 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
2015
PCS Serial Number:

681 Winter storm...........cccoeee.. $ 3 % 2 $ 4 $ 2 3 133 % 129
2016
PCS SeriaNumber:

2171 Severe wind and hail storm 1 (16) 2 147 152 150

2571 Severe wind and hail storm 4 163 9 163 177 168
2017
PCS Serial Number:

2271 Severe wind and hail storm o) n/a 115 n/a 115 n/a

3271 Severe wind and hail storm 198 n/a 198 n/a 198 n/a

n/a: not applicable.

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs

Amortization of deferred acquisition costisthe second quarter of 2017 wkk 03 hllion, $43 million or 4%higher than in
the same period of 2016. nfortization of deferred acquisition coststhe first six months of 2017 wé&2.04 billion, $75
million or 4% higher than in the same period of 2016. Amortization of deferred acquisition alistsigsed in me detail
in the segment discussions that follow.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expengeshe second quarter and first six months of 2017 \B&r@5 hllion and $2.04 billion,
respectively compared to $1.05 billion an#2.05 billion, respectively, in the same periods of 2016. General and
administrative expenses afiscussed in more detail in the segment discussions that follow.

Interest Expense
Interest expensia the second quarter and first six months of 2017 $8&smillion and $181 million, respectively, compared
with $93 million and $184 million, respectively, in the same periods of 2016.

IncomeTax Expense

Income tax expense in the second quarter of72@ds .95 million, $28 million or 13% lower than inthe same period of
2016, primarily reflectingthe impact of the $7 million decreasen income before income taxes in the second quarter of
2017. Income tax expense in the first six months of 20&s $838 million, $111 million or 25% lowerthan in the sae
period of2016, primarily reflecting the impact of the254 million decrease in income before income taxes in the first six
months of 207 and the $39 million reduction in income tax expense resulting themesolution of prior year tax matténs
thefirst quarter of 2017.
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The Companyds effective tax rate was 25% in the second ¢
was 22% and 2% in the first six months of 2017 and 2016, respectively. The effective tax rates in all periods were lower
than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the impact ofei@mpt investment income on the calculation of the
Companyo6s i ncwo rneadditienxthe pffeaive itas rate in the first six months of 2017 was reduced by the impact

of the resolution of prior year tax matters discussed above.

Combined Ratio

The combinedratio of 96.7%in the second quarter @017 was 3.6 points highiehan the combined ratio of 93.1% in the
same period of 2016The combinedratio of 96.4%in the first six months 02017 was 3.7 points higher than the combined
ratio of 92.7% in the same period of 2016.

Theloss and loss adjustment expense rafi65.6% in the secondquarter of 20T was 4.5 pointshigherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratio of 61.1%Hha same period of 2016 Catastrophe lossexccounted foi6.4 points and5.5

pointsof the 2017 and 2016 second quarter loss and losstadjnsexpense ratipsespectively Net favorable prior year

reserve development in the second quarters of 2017 and 2016 provided 3.2 points and 4.7 points of benefit, respectively, to
the loss and loss adjustment expense rafibe 207 secondquarterloss and loss adjustment expense ratio excluding prior
year reserve development and catastrophe | was2sleantshighernder |
thanthe 206 ratio on the same basigrimarily reflecting the impacts of (the timing ofhigher loss estimates in personal
automobile bodily injury liability coverages that werensistent with thdnigher loss trerglrecognizedin the last half of

2016and (i) normal quarterly variability in necatastrophe weatheelated losss.

Theloss and loss adjustment expense rafi65.5%in thefirst six monthsof 2017 was 4.4 pointshigherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratio of 61.1%Ha same period of 2016 Catastrophe lossesccounted fo16.0 points ands.4

pointsof the 2017 and 2016 sixonth loss and loss adjustment expense ratispectively Net favorable prior year reserve
development in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 provided 2.3 points and 3.9 points of benefit, respectively, to the loss
and loss djustment expense ratid-he underlyingloss and loss adjustment expense rigtithe first six months of 201Was

2.2 points higher than the 26 ratio on the same basiprimarily reflecting the impacts of (the timing ofhigher loss
estimates in peohial automobile bodily injury liability coverages that weomsistent with thdigher loss trerglrecognized

in thelasthalf of 2016and (ii) normal variability in norcatastrophe weatheelated losses.

Theunderwriting expense ratiof 31.1% forthe £cond quarter of 2017 was 0.9 points lower than the underwriting expense
ratio of 32.0% in the same period of 2016. In the first six months of 2017, the underexitiegse ratio a80.9%was 0.7
points lower than the underwriting expense ratio of 31il6%e same period of 2016.

Written Premiums
Consolidated gross and net written premiums were as follows:

Gross Written Premiums

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Business Insurance..............ccceeeeeeeeen $ 3,794 $ 3,780 $ 8,065 $ 7,979
Bond & Specialty Insurance............... 620 589 1,221 1,166
Personal Insurance..............cccceevvvveee 2,513 2,319 4,659 4,255

TOtal uveeieieieeeee $ 6,927 $ 6688 $ 13,945 $ 13,400

Net Written Premiums

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Business Insurance.............cccceeeeeevenees $ 3,544 $ 3,472 $ 7399 $ 7,232
Bond & Specialty Insurance............... 598 570 1,142 1,092
Personal Insurance.............cccceeeeeevineee 2,498 2,303 4,594 4,187

o] = | $ 6,640 $ 6,345 $ 13,135 $ 12,511
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Grosswritten premiums irboth the secondquarterand first sixmonths 0f2017 increased by 4% over the same periods of
2016. Netwritten premiums irboththe second quarter arfitst six monthsof 2017 increased by 5% over the same periods
of 2016. Factors contributing to the changes in gross and net written premieach segment adiscussed in more detail

in the segment discussions that follow.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT
Businessinsurance

Results of Business Insurance were as follows:

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Earned premiums..............ccevvvvvnnnne $ 3,504 $ 3,439 6,933 6,853
Net investment income.................... 447 404 900 803
Feeincome......ccccoeeeviiiiiiiiiiiieenn e, 112 115 221 229
Other revenues..........cccccceeeeieieeeeeenn, 15 8 24 38
Total revenues........cccccoeeeeeeeveeenne $ 4,078 $ 3,966 8,078 7,923
Total claims and expenses................. $ 3,509 $ 3,446 6,938 6,820
Segment iNCOME.........ccceeeeeeeiiivieeeiens, $ 429 $ 401 871 848
Loss and loss adjustmesxpense ratio.. 64.3%6 63.70 64.%% 63.9%
Underwriting expense ratia................. 32.2 32.8 32.1 32.3
Combined ratio.........ccccceeeveeeeeeenn. 96.%0 96.5% 96.%% 95.8%

Overview

Segment income in the second quarter of 2017 was $429 million, $28 million or 7% HMghesegment income of $401
million in the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the-fave impacts of (i) higher net investment income and (ii)
slightly higher underlying underwriting margins, partially offset by (iii) higher catastrophe lossestr@jdia losses in the
second quarters of 2017 and 2016 were $184 million and $167 million, respectively. Net favorable prior year reserve
development in the second quarters of both 2017 and 2016 was $125 million. Partially offsetting thisaxeingease in
segment income was a related increase in income tax expense.

n u

Segment income in the first six months of 2017 was $871 million, $23 million or 3% higher than segment income of $848
million in the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the-fae impacts of (i) higher net investment income, partially
offset by (ii) slightly lower underlying underwriting margins, (iii) lower other revenues and (iv) lower net favorablgeairior
reserve development. Catastrophe losses in the first six mon2&ldfand 2016 were $316 million and $315 million,
respectively. Net favorable prior year reserve developmianthe first six months of 2017 and 2016 v&is86 million and
$199 million, respectivelyPartially offsetting this net prax increase in segmeincome was a related increase in income

tax expense.ncome tax expensa the first six months of 2017 was reduced by $15 million as a result of the resolution of

prior year tax matters in the first quarter of 2017.
Revenues

Earned Premiums

Earnedpremiums in the second quarter of 2017 were $3.50 billion, $65 million or 2% higher than in the same period of 2016.
Earned premiums in the first six months of 2017 were $6.93 billion, $80 million or 1% higher than in the same period of

2016.
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Net Investment Income

Net investment income in the second quarter of 2017 was $447 million, $43 million or 11% higher than in the same period of
2016. Net investmentcome in the first six months of 2017 was $900 million, $97 million or 12% higher than in the same

period of 2016. Refer to the fANet I nvestment I ncomeodo se
for a description of the facter cont ri buting to the increases in the Comp
second quarter and first six months of 2017 compared with the same periods of 2016. In addition, refer to note 2 of notes to
the consolidated financial statememisit he Companydéds 2016 Annual Report as wupo
Form8K f il ed on June 20, 2017 for a discussion of the Comp
Fee Income

National Accounts is the primary source of feeome. Fee income in the second quarter of 2017 was $112 million, $3
million or 3% lower than in the same period of 2016. Fee income in the first six months of 2017 was $221 million, $8
million or 3% lower than in the same period of 2016. The decreabetim periods of 2017 primarily reflected lower
serviced premium volume due to the depopul ation of worke

Other Revenues

Other revenues in all periods of 2017 and 2016 included installment premium ch@tbes.rezenues in the second quarter
of 2017alsoincluded a gain related to tisettlement of a reinsurance dispuBeefiGain Contingenayin note 13of notes to
the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further discusSitrer revenues in the firsix months of 2016 also
included proceeds from the favorable settlement of a cledétased legal matter in the first quarter of 2016.

Claims and Expenses

Claimsand Claim Adjustment Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenses insémondquarte of 2017 were $.31billion, $62 million or 3% higher than in the
same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the impacts of (i) loss cost tréijdsigher volumes of insured exposures and (iii)
higher catastrophe losses.

Claims and claim adjustmeakpenses in thérst six monthsof 2017 were 8.57 billion, $114 million or 3% higher than in
the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the impacts of (i) loss arsddy(ii) higher volumes of insured exposures and
(i) lower net favorable prior gar reserve development.

Factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve development duriegdtied quarters arfist six monthsof 2017
and 2016 are discussed in more detail in note 6 of notes to the unaudited consolidated fineme@itsta

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs

Amortization of deferred acquisition coststhe second quarter of 2017 ws&67 million, $14 million or 3% higher than in

the same period of 261 Amortization of deferred acquisition coststhe first six months of 2017 wakl.12 hllion, $22

million or 2% higher than in the same period of 2016. The increases in both periods of 2017 were generally consistent with
the increases in earned premiums.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and adinistrative expenses ithe second quarter @017 were $636 million, $13 million or 2% lower than in the

same period of 2016. General and administrative expenses in the first six months of 2017 were $1.25 hillion, $18 million or
1% lower than in the saarperiod of 2016.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense the second quarter @017 was$140million, $21 million or 18% higher than ithe same period of
2016, primarily reflecting the $49 million increase in income before income taxeonie tax ¥pense irthe first six months

of 2017 was 69 million, $14 million or 5% higher than ithe same period 02016, primarily reflecting the $37 million

increase in income before income taxes, partially offset by the impact of the $15 million reduaticonie itax expense in
the first quarter of 2017 resulting from the resolution of prior year tax matters.
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Combined Ratio
The combinedratio of 96.5%in the second quarter af017 was level with the same period of 2018he combinedratio of
96.5%in the first six months 02017 was 0.7 points higher than the combined ratio of 95.8% in the same period of 2016.

Cont i

The loss and loss adjustment expense @itie4.3%in the secondquarter of 20T was 0.6 points higherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratio of 63.7%hiasame period of 2016Catastrophe losses in teecondquarters of 2071 and

2016 accounted fob.3 points and4.8 points, respectivg| of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio. Net favorable prior
year reserve developmenteéach of the second quarters2@17 and 2016rovided3.6 points ofbenefit to the loss and loss
adjustment expense ratio. The Z&kcondquarterunderlyingloss and loss adjustment expense ratio &vapoints higher
thanthe 2@.6ratio on the same basis

The loss and loss adjustment expense K@#tied.4%in thefirst six monthsof 2017 was0.9 pointshigherthanthe loss and
loss adjustment expense ratib63.5% inthe same period of 2016Catastrophe losses @ach ofthefirst six monthsof 2017

and 2d6 accounted for4.6 points of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio.
development irthe first six months 02017 and 2016orovided2.7 points and 2.9 points dfenefit respectivelyto the loss
and loss adjustment expense ratio. Thderlyingloss and loss adjustment expense rigtithe first six months of 201Was

0.7 pointshigher tharthe 2A.6 ratio on the sae basis

The underwriting expense rataf 32.2 forthe second quarter of 2017 was 0.6 points lower than the underwriting expense

Net favorable prior year reserve

ratio of 32.8% in the same period of 2016. In the first six months of 2017, the underexipegse ratio d82.1%was 02
points lower than the underwriting expense ratio of 32.3% in the same period of 2016.

Written Premiums
ness | ns umetwntterpiesniurgsrby reasket weredas follows:

Busi

Gross Written Premiums

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Domestic:
Select Accounts.............cvueeennns 722 $ 721 $ 1,487 $ 1,465
Middle Market............ccceeeeeernnnnn. 1,902 1,828 4,166 3,971
National Accounts...............uu..... 336 377 807 911
National Property an@ther.......... 522 548 982 1,034
Total DomestiC........cccoeevvevennn... 3,482 3,474 7,442 7,381
International.........cccoovevveieiiiiiieee. 312 306 623 598
Total Business Insurance....... 3,794 $ 3,780 $ 8,065 $ 7,979

Net Written Premiums

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Domestic:
Select Accounts.......ccceeeeeeeeennnn.. 720 $ 709 $ 1,475 $ 1,433
Middle Market..........ccoeeeeevvvvnnnne.. 1,820 1,741 3,997 3,804
National Accounts...........c..cuue..... 219 234 507 554
National Property and Other........ 496 521 882 931
Total DomestiC.......c.cccvvveeennneee. 3,255 3,205 6,861 6,722
International.........cccooeviiiiiiiiiiceene, 289 267 538 510
Total Business Insurance......... 3,544 $ 3,472 $ 7,399 $ 7,232
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Gross written premiums in the second quarter of 2017 were comparable with the same period of 2016. Gross written
premiums in the first six months of 2017 increased by 1% tiwesame period of 2016. Net written premiums in both the
second quarter and first six months of 2017 increased by 2% over the same periods of 2016.

Select AccountsNet written premiumsf $720 million and $1.48 billion in the second quarter arst §ix months of 2017,
respectively, increased by 2% and 3%, respectively, over the same periods of 2016. Business retention rates remained strong
in the second quarter and first six months of 2017. Renewal premium changes in the second quartesiamddingts of

2017 remained positive but were lower than in the same periods of 2016. New business premiums in the second quarter and
first six months of 2017 increased over the same periods of 2016.

Middle Market. Net written premium®f $1.82 billon and $4.00 billion in the second quarter and first six months of 2017,
respectively, both increased by 5% over the same periods of 2016. Business retention rates remained strong in the secon
quarter and first six months of 2017. Renewal premium clsaingie second quarter and first six months of 2017 remained
positive and were higher than in the same periods of 2016. New business premiums in the second quarter and first six months
of 2017 decreased from the same periods of 2016.

National Accounts Net written premiumf $219 million and $507 million in the second quarter and first six months of
2017, respectively, decreased by 6% and 8%, respectively, from the same periods of 2016. Business retention rates remaine
strong in the second quartend first six months of 2017. Renewal premium changes in the second quarter of 2017 were flat,
compared with positive in the same period of 2016. Renewal premium changes in the first six months of 2017 remained
positive but were lower than in the sameipe of 2016. New businespremiums in the second quarter and first six months

of 2017 decreased from the same periods of 2016.

National Property and OtherNet written premiumf $496 million and $882 million in the second quarter and first six
months of 2017, respectively, both decreased by 5% from the same periods ofB2&iBess retention ratés the second
quarter and first six months of 2DMeclined from the same periods of 201Benewal premium changés the second
quarter and first i months of 2017 were positive, compared with slightly negative in the same pefi@@46. New
businespremiums in the second quarter and first six months of 2017 decreased from the same periods of 2016.

International. Net written premiums of 289 million and $38 million in the second quarter and first six months of 201

respectively, ioreased by8% and5%, respectivelypver the same periods of 201 primarily driven by increases in the
Companyds operations at Lloydoés.

Bond & Specialty Insurance

Results of Bond & Specialty Insurance were as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Earned premiums...............cceeeeeens $ 575 $ 559 $ 1,130 $ 1,111
Net investmat income.................... 56 58 117 118
Other revenues..........ccccceevvveeeeeenns 6 5 11 9
Total revenues.........ccceeeeeeereennn... $ 637 $ 622 $ 1,258 $ 1,238
Total claims and expenses............... $ 398 $ 306 $ 841 $ 694
Segment iNCOME.......ccceeevcvveeevvreeeaen, $ 163 $ 215 $ 308 $ 375
Loss and loss adjustmesxpense ratio 29.70 16.206 35.1% 24.1%
Underwriting expense ratia............... 39.0 38.3 38.9 38.0
Combined ratio............ccceeeeeeenee. 68.70 54.5% 74.0% 62.1%
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Overview

Segmenincomein the second quarter of 2017 was $163 milli$s2 million or 24% lower than segment income of $215
million in the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the-tare impact of lower net favorable prior year reserve
development. Net favorable prior year reserve developmenthi& second quarters of 2017 and 20d6 $78 million and

$159 million, respectively.Catastrophe losses in the second quarters of 2012@1® were $1 million and $3 million,
respectively.Partially offsetting this net prax decrease in segment income was a related decrease in income tax expense.

Segmenincomein the first six months of 2017 was $308 millicg7 million or 18% lowerthan segment income of $375
million in the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the-fane impact of lower net favorable prior year reserve
development. Net favorable prior year reserve developmenthi first six months of 2017 and 20&&s $92 million and

$225 million, respectively.Catastrophe losses in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 were $2 million and $4 million,
respectively. Partially offsetting this net prax decrease in segment income was a related decrease in income tax expense.
Income tax expense in the first six months of 2017 was also reduced by $17 million as a result of the resolution af prior yea
tax matters in the first quarter of 2017.

Revenues

Earned Premiums

Earned premiums in the second quarter of 2017 were $lidn, $16 million or 3% higher than in the same period of 2016.
Earned premiums in the first six months of 2017 were $1.13 billion, $19 million or 2% higher than in the same period of
2016.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income in the secoquarter of 2017 was $56 million, $2 million or 3% lower than in the same period of
2016. Net investment income in the first six months of 2017 was $117 million, $1 million or 1% lower than in the same
period of 2016. Included inBond & Specialtylnsuranceare certain legal entities whose invested assets and related net
investment income are reported exclusively in this segment and not allocated among all business segments. As a result,
reported net investment income Bond & Specialtylnsurance reflecta significantly smaller proportion of allocated net

i nvest ment i ncome, i ncl ud Hixed matufitya investments nthattexperien€d arpiacregsé ; n o
investment income ithe second quarter and first six months of 2017 as compared wigathe periods of 2016Refer to

the fANet Il nvest ment I ncomedo section of AConsolidated Res
Companyds consolidated net i nvest ment i nc o menpared withithe s ec
same periods of 2016. I n addition, refer to note 2 of |
Annual Report as updated by t hlkfile@ onndpne A0y 2047 fo€ a discussioh béRe p o r
Companyds net investment income allocation methodol ogy.

Claims and Expenses

Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses
Claims and claim adjustment expenses in the second quarter Hiv20a 874 million, $81 million or 87% higherthan in
the same periodf 2016, primarily reflectinglower net favorable prior year reserve development.

Claims and claim adjustment expenses infitts¢ six monthsof 2017 were$401 nillion, $129million or 47% higher than in
the same periodf 2016,primarily reflecting bwer net favorable prior year reserve development.

Factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve development durisgdabed quarters arfiist six monthsof 2017
and 2016 are discussed in more detail in note 6 of notes to the unaudgsetideded financial statements.

Amortization of Deferred AcquisiticBosts

Amortization of deferred acquisition coststhe second quarter of 2017 whBEI8 million, $4 million or 4% higher than in

the same period of 2016. nfortization of deferred acqui®n costsin the first six months of 2017 wa&211 million, $5

million or 2% higher than in the same period of 2016. The increases in both periods of 2017 were generally consistent with
the increases in earned premiums.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenseshi@a second quarter @017 were$116 nillion, $7 million or 6% higher than in the
same period of 2016. Generaldaadministrative expenses in the first six months of 2017 were $229 million, $13 million or
6% higher than in the same period of 20Tthe increases in both periods of 2017 primarily reflected higher employee and
technology related expenses.

Income Ta Expense

Income tax expense ithe second quarter @017 was %6 million, $25 million or 25% lower than ithe same period of

2016, primarily reflectng the impact of the $77 million decrease in income before income taxes in the second quarter of
2017. Income tax expense the first six months 02017 was $.09 million, $60 million or 36% lower than ithe same

period of2016, primarily reflecing the impact of the $127 million decrease in income before income taxes in the first six
months of 2016 and ¢h$17 million reduction in income tax expense in the first six months of 2017 resulting from the
resolution of prior year tax matters in the first quarter of 2017.

Combined Ratio

The combinedratio of 68.7%in the second quarter @017 was 14.2 pointsigher than the combined ratio of 54.5% in the
same period of 2016The combinedratio of 74.0%in the first six months 02017 was 11.9 points higher than the combined
ratio of 62.1% in the same period of 2016.

The loss and loss adjustment expens® KGEti29.7%in the secondquarter of 207 was 13.5pointshigherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratio of 16.2%hea same period of 2016. Net favorable prior year reserve development in the
second quarters of 2017 and 2016 provided Y@ibts and 28.4 points obenefit respectively,to the loss and loss
adjustment expense ratioCatastrophe losses in tisecondquarters of 202 and 206 accounted for0.2 points and0.5
points, respectively, of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio.20Lhesecondquarterunderlying loss and loss
adjustment expense ratio wh4 pointslower than the 2@6 ratio on the same basis

The loss and loss adjustment expense @Ht®56.1%in thefirst six monthsof 2017 was11.0 pointshigherthanthe loss ad

loss adjustment expense ratio of 24.1%himsame period of 2016. Net favorable prior year reserve development in the first
six months of 2017 and 2016 provided @@nts and 20.2 points dfenefit respectivelyto the loss and loss adjustment
expeng ratio. Catastrophe losses in thist six monthsof 2017 and 206 accounted for0.2 points and0.3 points,
respectively, of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratiountleelyingloss and loss adjustment expense ritithe first

six months of 207 was0.9 points lower than the 2@6 ratio on the same basis

The underwriting expense ratad 39.0% inthe second quarter of 2017 was 0.7 points higher than the underwriting expense
ratio of 38.3% in the same period of 2016. In the first six mooktiZD17, the underwritingxpense ratio 088.9%was 0.9
points higher than the underwriting expense ratio of 38.0% in the same period of 2016.

Written Premiums
The Bond & Specialty I nsurance segmentds gross and net w

Gross Written Premiums

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Domestic:
Management Liability..................... $ 352 $ 340 $ 697 $ 676
SUretY...cooiieeee e 219 209 423 409
Total DomestiC.......cccevvveeeereennnn... 571 549 1,120 1,085
International............ccoovveeieiiivviemnnnnn.. 49 40 101 81
Total Bond & Specialty
INSUFANCE .....vvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, $ 620 $ 589 $ 1,221 $ 1,166
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Net Written Premiums

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Domestic:
Management Liability..................... $ 341 $ 331 $ 671 $ 656
YU /T 211 205 385 372
Total DomestiC.........coeevvvnveennnenee. 552 536 1,056 1,028
International........ccoovevieiiiiiiieeeeeen, 46 34 86 64
Total Bond & Specialty
INSUFANCE .....vvvveeeeieeeeeeeieeeeiien, $ 598 $ 570 $ 1,142 $ 1,092

Grossand netwritten premiums inboth the secondquarterand first six month®f 2017 were 5% higher than in the same
periods of 2016.

Domestic. Net written premiumf $552 million and $1.06 billion in the second quarter and first six months of 2017,
respectively, both increased by 3% over the same periods of 2016. Excluding the isarefyblusiness, for which the

following are not relevant measures, business retention rates remained strong in the second quarter and first six months of
2017. Renewal premium changes in the second quarter and first six months of 2017 remained qbsiive higher than

in the same periods of 2016. New business premiums in the second quarter of 2017 increased slightly over the same period
of 2016. New business premiums in the first six months of 2017 decreased slightly from the same period of 2016.

International. Net written premium®f $46 million and $86 million in the second quarter and first six months of 2017,
respectively, increased by 35% and 34%, respectively, over the same periods of 2016, driven by increases in management
liability business in the United Kingdom and contract surety business in Canada.

Personallnsurance

Results of Personal Insurance were as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Earned premiums.........ccccooevvveeennn. $ 2,272 $ 2,069 $ 4471 $ 4,084
Net investment income................... 95 87 191 172
Fee income.......cccoeeveiiiiiieieiiieennenn, 4 4 8 7
Other revenues.............cccceeeeeeeevneee, 15 15 31 31
Total revenues...........cccceeeeeeeeennnn. $ 2,386 $ 2,175 $ 4,701 $ 4,294
Total claims and expenses................ $ 2,387 $ 2,046 $ 4,600 $ 3,954
Segment iNCOMe..........cccoeeeeeevvieeeene. $ 12 $ 95 $ 101 $ 247
Loss and loss adjustmesxpense ratio. 76.8% 68.9% 74.9% 67.20
Underwriting expense ratia................ 27.3 28.9 27.0 28.6
Combined ratio...........ccccvvveeeeeenn. 104.2%6 97.8% 101.9% 95.8%
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Overview

Segment income in the second quarter of 2017 wasn@llidn, $83 million or 87% lower than segment income of $95
million in the same period of 2016, primarily reflecting the-faoe impacts of (i) lower underlying underwriting margins and
(i) higher catastrophe losses, partially offset by (iii) higherimetstment incomeCatastrophe losses in teecondjuarters

of 2017 and 205 were 218 million and &.63 million, respectively. There was no net prior year reserve development in the
second quarter of 2017, compared wittt favorable prior year resengevelopmenbf $4 million in the same period of
2016. The lower underlying underwriting margins primarily resulted from the impacts of (i) normal quarterly variability in
non-catastrophe weatheelated losses and (ii) the timing bfgher loss estimateis personal automobile bodily injury
liability coverages that wermeonsistent with thaigher loss trenslrecognizedn thelasthalf of 2016 Partially offsetting this

net pretax decrease in segment income was a related decrease in income tax expense.

Segment income in the first six months of 2017 was $101 million, $146 million lower than segment income of $247 million
in the sameperiod 0f2016, primarily reflecting the préax impacts of (i) lower underlying underwriting margins, (ii) higher
catastophe losses and (iii) lower net favorable prior year reserve development, partially offset by (iv) higher net investment
income. Catastrophe losses in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 were $432 million and $332 million, respsetively.
favorable pior year reserve development the first six months of 2017 and 20i6as $6 million and $44 million,
respectively. The lower underlying underwriting margins primarily resulted from the impacts of (i) the timimgtwér loss
estimates in personal autohile bodily injury liability coverages that weoensistent with théigher loss trenslrecognized

in thelasthalf of 2016and (ii) normal variability in norcatastrophe weatheelated losses. Partially offsetting this net-pre

tax decrease in segmentome was a related decrease in income tax expense. Income tax expense in the first six months of
2017 was also reduced by $7 million as a result of the resolution of prior year tax matters in the first quarter of 2017.

Revenues

Earned Premiums

Earnedpremiums in the second quarter of 2017 were $2.27 billion, $203 million or 10% higher than in the same period of
2016. Earned premiums in the first six months of 2017 were $4.47 billion, $387 million or 9% higher than in the same period
of 2016. The inzases in both periods primarily reflected the impact of increases in net written premiums over the preceding
twelve months.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income in the second quarter of 2017 was $95 million, $8 million or 9% higher thanaméhgesiod of

2016. Net investment income in the first six months of 2017 was $191 million, $19 million or 11% higher than in the same
period of 2016. Refer to the HANet I nvest ment | ncemeodo se
for a description of the factors contributing to the in
second quarter and first six months of 2017 compared with the same periods of 2016. In addition, refer to note 2 of notes to
theconsol i dated financial statements in the Companyo6s 201E¢
Form8K f il ed on June 20, 2017 for a discussion of the Comp

Other Revenues
Other reenues in the second quarters and first six months of 2017 and 2016 primarily consisted of installment premium
charges.

Claims and Expenses

Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenses in the second quarteroi2od 8.75 billion, $320million or 22% higherthan in

the same period of 281 primarily reflecting(i) higher volumes of insured exposures, (ii) higher catastrophe losses, (iii)
normal quarterly variability in nonatastrophe weatheelated losses, (iv) loss dasends and (vjhe timing of higher loss
estimates in personal automobile bodily injury coverages that were consistent with the higher loss trends recognized in the
last half of 2016.
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Claims and claim adjustment expenses in the first six months @hg&k $8.35billion, $602 million or 22% higherthan in

the same period of 2@1primarily reflecting(i) higher volumes of insured exposures, (ii) higheast@bphe losses, (iii) loss

cost trends, (iv) the timing of higher loss estimates in personal automobile bodily injury coverages that were coniistent wit
the higher loss trends recognized in the last half of 2016, (v) normal variability icatastropheveatherrelated losses and

(vi) lower net favorable por year reserve development.

Factors contributing to net favorable prior year reserve development during the first six months of 2016 are discussed in mor
detail in note 6 of notes to the unaudieonsolidated financial statements.

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs in the second quarter of 2017 was $357 million, $25 million or 8% higher than in
the same period of 2016. Amortization of deferaedyuisition costs in the first six months of 2017 was $703 million, $48
million or 7% higher than in the same period of 2016. The increases in both periods of 2017 were generally consistent with
the increases in earned premiums.

General and Administteve Expenses

General and administrative expenseshi@ second quarter @017 were$285 million, $4 million or 1% lower than in the

same period of 2016. General and administrative expenses in the first six months of 2017 were $550 million, $4 million or
1% lower than in the same period of 2016.

Income Tax ExpengBenefit)

The ncome taxbenefitin the second quarter @017 was %13) million, compared with income tax expense of $34 million in

the same period ¢f016, primarily reflecing the $130 million decreasén income before income taxesncbme tax expense

in the first six months 02017 was ¥, compared with income tax expense of $93 millionthe same period 02016,

primarily reflectng the $239 million decreasen income before income tazeand the $7 million reduction in income tax
expense resulting from the resolution of prior year income tax matters in the first quarter of 2017. The level of income tax
expense (benefit) in all periods reflectib@ impact oftax-exempt investment inconen t he cal cul ati on o
tax provision.

Combined Ratio

The combinedratio of 104.1%in the second quarter @017 was 6.3 points higher than the combined ratio of 97.8% in the
same period of 2@ The combined ratio df01.% in the first & months of 207 was6.1 pointshigherthan the combined
ratio of95.8% in the same period of 261

The loss and loss adjustment expense 1@ti66.8%in the secondquarter of 20T was 7.9 points higherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratib 68.9% inthe same period of 2016 Catastrophdosses accounted for 9.6 points and 7.8
points of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratitgisecondquarter of2017 and 2.6, respectively.Net favorable

prior year reserve development in the secqguarters of 2017 and 2016 provided 0.0 points and 0.2 points of benefit,
respectively, to the loss and loss adjustment expense T&i020L secondquarterunderlyingloss and loss adjustment
expense ratio was.9 points higher than the 2@6 ratio on he same basiprimarily reflecting the impacts of (i) normal
quarterly variability in norcatastrophe weatheelated losses, (ii) the timing bfgher loss estimates in personal automobile
bodily injury liability coverages that wemnsistent with thdigher loss trengirecognizedn the last half of 2016and (iii)

the tenure impact of higher levels of new business in recent years in the Automobile product line.

The loss and loss adjustment expense i@tind.9%in thefirst six monthsof 2017 was 7.7 pointshigherthanthe loss and

loss adjustment expense ratio of 67.2%Ha same period of 2016 Catastrophdosses accounted for 9.7 points and 8.2
points of the loss and loss adjustment expense ratithgeffirst six monthsof 2017 and 2.6, respedtely. Net favorable

prior year reserve development in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 provided 0.2 points and 1.1 points of benefit,
respectively, to the loss and loss adjustment expense ftmunderlyingloss and loss adjustment expense ritithe first

six months of 201%vas 5.3 points higherthan the 2Q6 ratio on the same basigrimarily reflecting the impacts of (i) the

timing of higher loss estimates in personal automobile bodily injury liability coverages thatamsistent with thénigher

loss trend recognizedn the last half of 2016 (ii) normal variability in norcatastrophe weatheelated losses an(ii) the

tenure impact of higher levels of new business in recent years in the Automobile product line.

The underwriting expese ratioof 27.3% forthe second quarter of 2017 was 1.6 points lower than the underwriting expense
ratio of 28.9% in the same period of 2016. In the first six months of 2017, the underexipegse ratio a27.0%was 1.6

points lower than the underwirig expense ratio of 28.6% in the same period of 2016. The declines in both periods of 2017
primarily reflected the impact of an increase in earned premiums.
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Written Premiums
Personalnsurancé gross and net written premiums were as follows:

Gross Written Premiums

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Domestic:
Agency:

Automobile.........cccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiiinn, $ 1,164 $ 1,022 $ 2,258 $ 1,961

Homeowners and Other............. 1,085 1,045 1,920 1,848

Total Agency.......ccccceveevvevinnnns, 2,249 2,067 4,178 3,809

Directto-Consumer..............oeeeeee... 88 75 171 143

Total DomestiC.......c.cccvvvevvenneene. 2,337 2,142 4,349 3,952

International............oooeveiiiiiiiiiieeneennn, 176 177 310 303

Total Personal Insurance.......... $ 2,513 $ 2,319 $ 4,659 $ 4,255

Net Written Premiums
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016

Domestic:
Agency:

Automobile.........ccccvveeiiiiiiiiieies $ 1,159 $ 1,018 $ 2,246 $ 1,950

Homeowners and Other............. 1,077 1,036 1,871 1,796

Total AQeNCY........ceevvvevveeieennnns, 2,236 2,054 4,117 3,746

Directto-Consumer...........c..eeeee... 88 75 171 143

Total DomestiC........cccoeevvvvvnnnnnnns 2,324 2,129 4,288 3,889

International.........c.coeeviiieiiiiiieeeneenn, 174 174 306 298

Total Personal Insurance.......... $ 2,498 $ 2,303 $ 4,594 $ 4,187

Domestic AgencWritten Premiums
Personal I n s wAgency busitess canpnisesusiness writtesugh agents, brokers and other intermediaries

Domestic Agency gross and net written premiumshie second quarter and first six months of 2017 were 9% and 10%
higher, respectively, than in the same periofd3016.

Domestic Agency Automobile net written premiums of $1.16 billion and $2.25 billion in the second quarter and first six
months of 2017, respectively, increased by 14% and 15%, respectively, over the same periods of 2016. Business retention
rates remained strong in the second quarter and first six months of 2017. Renewal premium changes in the second quarter
and first six months of 2017 remained positive and were higher than in the same periods of 2016. New business premiums in
the second qusar of 2017 decreased from the same period of 2016, while new business premiums in the first six months of
2017 increased over the same period of 2016.

Domestic Agency Homeowners and Other net written premiums of $1.08 billion and $1.87 billion inctheé gearter and

first six months of 2017, respectively, both increased by 4% over in the same periods of 2016. Business retention rates
remained strong in the second quarter and first six months of 2017. Renewal premium changes in the second fisarter and
six months of 2017 remained positive but were lower than in the same periods of 2016. New business premiums in the
second quarter and first six months of 2017 increased over the same periods of 2016.

For its Domestic Agency businesbetPersorlalnsurance segment had approximatélg million and 6.4million active
policies atlune 302017 and 2.6, respectively.
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Direct-to-Consumer and Internati@ml WrittenPremiums

Direct-to-Consumer at written premiumsf $88 million and $171 million in the second quarter and first six months of 2017,
respectively, increased by 17% and 20%, respectively, over the same periods of 2016, primarily driventhoyingrow
automobile net written premiums.

International Bt written premium®f $174 million in the second quarter of 2017 were comparable with the same period of
2016. International net written premiums of $306 million in the first six months of 20t&ased by 3% over the same
period of 2016, primarily driven by growth in automobile net written premiums.

For its international and diretd-consumer business, Personal Insurance had approximately 867,000 and 843,000 active
policies at June 30, 2017dA016, respectively.

Interest Expense and Other

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
INCOME (I0SS)....vvevevieiiieriieeriieeens $ 6y $ 62 $ (123 $ (1)

Income (loss) for Intast Expense and Other in the second quarter of 2017 and 2016 was $(61) million and $(62) million,
respectively. Income (loss) for Interest Expense and Other in both the first six months of 2017 and 2016 was $(123) million.
After-tax interest expense ihd second quarter and first six months of 2017 was $60 million and $118 million, respectively,
compared with $60 million and $120 million in the respective periods of 2016.

ASBESTOS CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

The Company believes that the property and disirssurance industry has suffered from court decisions and other trends
that have exparmtl insurance coverage for asbestos claims far beyondripimal intent of insurers and policyholderBhe
Companyhas received andontinues to receive a signifikan number of asbestos c¢laims fro
(which includes others seeking coverage under a poliegktors underlying these claim filings includentinuedintensive
advertising by lawyers seeking asbestos claimants anadahtnuedfocus by plaintiffs ondefendants whavere not
traditionally primary targets of asbestos litigatiomhe focus on these defendants is primarily the result of the number of
traditional asbestos defendants who have sought bankruptcy protection in previsudryealdition to contributing to the

overall number of claims, bankruptcy proceedings may increase the volatility of agiedsted losses by initially delaying

the reporting of claims and later by significantly accelerating and increasing loss payogeimsurers, including the
Company. The bankruptcy of many traditional defendants has also caused increased settlement demands against those
policyholders who are not in bankruptcy but remain in the tort system. Currently, in many jurisdictions, hboskege

very serious injury and who can present credible medical evidence of their injuries are receiving priority trial settengs in
courts, while those who have not shown any credible disease manifestation are having their hearing dates delesed or p

on an inactive docketPrioritizing claims involving credible evidence of injuries, along with the focusl@iendants who

were not traditionally primary targets of asbestos litigat@mtributes to the claimend claim adjustment expense payment
patterns experienced by the Compariy.h e Co mp a n yrélased casms arsl tlairs adjustment expense experience

also has been impacted by the unavailability of other insurance sources potentially available to policyholders, whether
through exhaustionfgolicy limits or through the insolvency of other participating insurers.

The Company continues to be involved in coverage litigation concerning a number of policyholders, some of whom have
filed for bankruptcy, who in some instances have assertedltloatteaportion of their asbestaslated claims are not subject

to aggregate limits on coverage. In these instances, policyholders also may assert that each individual bodily injury claim
should be treated as a separate occurrence under the policylifficidt to predict whether these policyholders will be
successful on both issues. To the extent both issues ar e
not successful, the Companyd6s c oevwsuldabg mateoidhyl incrgasediamdrbsundadn d e r
only by the applicable peayccurrence limits and the number of asbestos bodily injury claims against the policyholders.
Although the Company has seereductionin the overall risk associated with these lawssui remains difficult to predict

the ultimate cost of these claims.
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Many coverage disputes with policyholders are only resolved through settlememhagi®eBecause many policyholders

make exaggerated demands, it is difficult to predict the outcome of settlement negotiations. Settlements involving bankrupt
policyholders may include extensive releases which are favorable to the Company but whichsuduid settlements for

larger amounts than originally anticipated. There also may be instances where a court may not approve a proposed settlement
which may result in additional litigation and potentially less beneficial outcomes for the Company. s past, the
Company will continue to pursue settlement opportunities.

In addition to claims against policyholders, proceedings have been launched directly against insurers, including the
Company, by individuals <c¢hal |l eonheihanglingi oh gastraghestod clains and by t \
individuals seeking damages arising from alleged asbesta®d bodily injuries. It is possible that the filing of other direct

actions against insurers, including the Company, could be made in the fittisedifficult to predict the outcome of these
proceedings, including whether the plaintiffs will be abdesustain these actions against insurers based on novel legal
theories of liability The Company believes has meritorious defenses to thesagrok and has received favorable rulings in

certain jurisdictions.

On January 29, 2009, the Company &G Industries, Inc. (PPG3Jong with approximately 30 other insurers of PPG,
agreed in principle to settle asbestekated coverage litigation undernsur ance pol i cies issued t
The Agreement was incorporated into the Modified Third £
part ofthe Pittsburgh Corning CorpPCC, which is 50% owned by PPG) bankruptcy proitepdPursuant to the Amended

Plan, which was filed on January 30, 2009, PCC, along with enumerated other companies (including PPG as well as the
Company as a participating insurer), receive protections afforded by Sg2#i¢y)of the Bankruptcy Code froroertain
asbestoselated bodily injury claimsUnder the Agreement, the Company had the option to make a series of payments over
20 years totaling approximately $620 million to the Trust created under the Amended Plan, or it could elect to make a
discouned payment.On January 7, 2016, the remaining objections to the Amended Plan were dismissed. On April 27, 20186,
the Amended Plan became effective and all the remaining conditions to the Agreement were sakisfi€dmpanyfully

satisfied its obligatin under the Agreement by makingla scounted payment in the second
paymens totaled $524million, of which $518 million was related to asbestos reserfes.e Company dés obl i gat
Agreement were included in its @las and claim adjustment expense reserves at March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

The Company quarterly asbestos reserve revieimclude an analysis of exposure and claim payment patterns by
policyholder category, as well as recent settlements, yallder bankruptcies, judicial rulings and legislative actiohke

Company also analyzes developing payment patterns among policyholders in the Homeafficield Office and
AssumedReinsurance and Other categories as well as projected reinsurdlimgs k@ind recoveries.In addition, the
Company reviews its historical gross and net loss and expense paid experienrbg;yeear to assess any emerging trends,
fluctuations, or characteristics suggested by the aggregate paid ac@atwentional atarial methods are not utilized to
establish asbestos reserves nor have the Companyds evall
asbestos defense omdemnity payment.Over the past decade, the property and casualty insurancgrindncluding the
Company, has experienced net unfavorable prior year reserve development with regard to asbestpbuttherasmpany
believes that over that period there has been asbestesduct i
exposure as the overall asbestos environment has evolved from one dominated by exposure to significant litigation risks,
particularly coverage disputes relating to policyholders in bankruptcy who were asserting that their claims were ntat subject
the aggregate limits contained in their policies, to an environment primarily driven by a frequency of litigation related to
individuals with mesothelioma. fe Co mpany & s o wwrentuhderlyingasbestos@tivirotntert is essentially
unchangd from recent periods and there remains a high degree of uncertainty with respect to future exposure to asbestos
claims.

Because each policyholder presents different liability and coverage issues, the Company generally reviews the exposure
presented byach policyholder at least annuallfimong the factors which the Company may consider in the course of this
review are: available insurance coverage, including the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the Company has issued to
the policyholder; limis and deducti bl es; an analysis of the policyhol
and anticipated future claim activity and loss development on pending claims; past settlement values of similar claims;
allocated claim adjustment panse; potential role of other insurance; the role, if any, ofasbestos claims or potential ron
asbestos claims in any resolution process; and applicable coverage defenses or determinations, if any, including the
determination as to whether or not abestos claim is a products/completed operation claim subject to an aggregate limit
and the available coverage, if any, for that claim.
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Netasbestopaidlossand loss expens@s the firstsix months 62017 were $39million, compared with 375 million in the

same period of 2@BL Net payments in the first six months of 2016 included the payment of the $518 million settlement
amounts related to PPG as désed above.Net asbestos reservegre$1.19billion at June 302017, compared with $.23

billion at June 302016.

The following table displays activity for asbestos losses and loss expenses and reserves:

(at and for the six months ended Jun&0, in millions) 2017 2016
Beginning reserves:
] (0 1TSS $ 1512 $ 1,989
LO7=To [T o F RO (186 a79
= SO PRPR 1,326 1,810
Incurred losses and loss expenses:
T 1L PSP PPRPPTPPPRRR o} 0
(©7=T0 =T o RSP PRPP o} 0
N1 S o] o}
Paid lossand loss expenses:
LT (01T PP SPURUUPPPPPPPTPTIN 166 671
LO1=T0 =T o PR PO URPPRO (27) (96)
= PP PRPR 139 575
Foreign exchange and other
LT (01T PP SPURUUPPPPPPPTPTIN 1 1)
(©7=T0 =T o S PRPP o} 0
= TP TPPTPPPPRP 1 (D)
Ending reserves:
[ (017 1,347 1,317
LO7=T0 =T o P PR PTPURPPR (159 (83
= TSRO PRPR $ 1,188 $ 1,234

SeédUmcertainty Regarding Adequacy of Asbestos and Environment a
ENVIRONMENTAL CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

The Company has received and continues to receive claims from policyholders who allege the tiadye for injury or

damage arising out of their alleged disposition of toxic substances. Mostly, these claims are due to various legigdltive as w
as regulatory efforts aimed at environmental remediation. For instance, the Comprehensive EnwdloRespinse,
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), enacted in 1980 and later modified, enables private parties as well as federal
and state governments take action with respect to releases and threatened releases of hazardous substances. This federal
statute permits the recovery of response costs from some liable parties and may require liable parties to undertake their own
remedial action. Liability under CERCLA may be joint and several with other responsible parties.

The Company has been, and coués to be, involved in litigation involving insurance coverage issues pertaining to
environmental claims. The Company believes that some court decisions have interpreted the insurance coverage to be broade
than the original intent of the insurers andipgiolders. These decisions often pertain to insurance policies that were issued

by the Company prior to the mitb80s. These decisions continue to be inconsistent and vary from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction. Environmental claimsvhen submittedrarely indcate the monetary amount being sought by the claimant from

the policyholder, and the Company does not keep track of the monetary amount being sought in those few claims which
indicate a monetary amount.
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The resolution of environmental exposures by the Company generally dbcowgh settlements with policyholders as
opposed to claimantsGenerally, the Company strives to extinguish any obligations it mag tlader any policy issued to

the policyholder for past, present and future environmental liabilities and extinguish any pending coverage litigaten disput
with the policyholder,Thi s form of settl ement -bacdfmplitiesomfutuye envieohreental e d t «
liability. In addition, many of the agreements have also extinguished any insurance obligation which the Company may have
for other claims, including but not limited to asbestos and other cumulative injury clditrs. Company andts
policyholders may also agree to settlements which extinguish any liability arising from lep®eified sites or claims.

Where appropriatehese agreements also include indemnities and hold harmless provisions to protect the Cdmeany.

Co mp a reynéesr agd purpose in executing these agreements is to
eliminate the risks presented by coverage litigation with the policyholder and related costs.

In establishing environmental reserves, the Compavgluates the exposure presented by each policyholder and the
anticipated cost of resolution, if any. In the course of this analysis, the Company generally considers the probaphle liabilit
available coveragandrelevant judicial interpretationsin addtion, the Company considers the many variables presented,
such asthe nature of the alleged activities of the policyholder at each site; the number of sites; the total number of potentially
responsible parties at each site; the natuthefillegecenvironmental harm and the corresponding remedy at each site; the
nature of government enforcement activities at each site; the ownership and general use of each site; the overalenature of t
insurance relationship between the Company and the policyholdeidiimy the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the
Company has issued to the policyholder; the involvement of other insurers; the potential for other available coverage,
including the number of years ebverage; the role, if any, of n@mvironmenthclaims or potential noenvironmental

claims in any resolution process; and the applicable law in each jurisdidtfenevaluation of the exposure presented by a
policyholder can change as information concerning that policyholder and the many vapiedsested is developed.
Conventional actuariahethodsare not used to estimate these reserves.

In its review of environmental reserves, the Company considers: past settlement payments; changing judicial and legislative
trends; its reserves for the ate of litigating environmental coverage matters; the potential for policyholders with smaller
exposures to be named in new clegnactions for both erand oftsite waste disposal activities; the potential for adverse
development; the potential for addital new claims beyond previous expectations; and the potential higher costs for new
settlements.

The duration of the Companyds investigation and review
appropriate estimate, if any, tife value of the claim to the Company vary significantly and are dependent upon a number of
factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, the cooperation of the policyholder in providing claim inforhm@ation, t
pace of underlying litigation or dia processes, the pace of coverage litigation between the policyholder and the Company
and the willingness of the policyholder and the Company to negotiate, if appropriate, a resolution of any dispute pertaining
these claims. Because these factors #tany claimto-claim and policyholdeby-policyholder, the Company cannot provide

a meaningful average of the duration of an environment
resolving these claims, the duration may vary from monthsvierakyears.

The Company continues to receive notices from policyholders tendering claims for the firdtaopently under policies

issued prior to the mid980s These policyholders continue to present smaller exposures, have fewer sites awerdier |
defendants.Further, in many instances, cleap costs have been reduced because regulatory agencies are willing to accept
risk-based site analyses and more efficient cl@gamtechnologiesOver the past several years, the Companyelkpsriened
generally favorable trends in the number of new policyholders tendering environmental claims for the first time and in the
number of pending declaratory judgment actions relating to environmental matteveever, the degree to which those
favorable tends have continued has been less than anticipateaddition, reserve development on existing environmental
claims has been greater than anticipatiiven by claims and legal developments inngited number of jurisdictionsAs a

result of these fetors, the Company increased its net environmental reserve8Sayifion and $82 million in the second
guarters of 202 and 208, respectively.

Netenvironmentapaid lossand loss expensésthe first six months 02017 were 87 million, compared wh $23 million in

the same period of 2016At June 30 2017, approximately94% of the net environmental reserve (approximate3g55

million) was carried in a bulk reserve and included unresolved environmental claims, incurred but not reported environmental
claims and the anticipated cost of coverage litigation disputes relating to these claims. The bulk reserve the Company carrie
is established and adjusted based upon the aggregate volumeaofincess environment al cl ai |
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experience in resolving those claims. The balance, approxinéelgf the net environmental reserve (approximat&lg $
million), consists of case reserves

The following table displays activity for environmental losses and loss expenses and reserves:

(at and for the six months ended June 30, in millions) 2017 2016
Beginning reserves:
LT (01T PP U PP PUPT PP P TRTPPIN $ 395 $ 375
(07 o /=0 PP (13 (19
N = PP 382 361
Incurred losses and loss expenses:
LT 011 PPN 74 87
(07T [T o F PP (9) (5)
N = PP 65 82
Paid loss and loss expenses
LT (011 T PP TPRRURPPPTPRIN 39 24
LO1=T0 [T o PP PP PP OPP RPN (2 (1)
N1 SRR 37 23
Foreign exchange and other
LT (011 T PP TPRRURPPPTPRIN 1 1
(@< o =T o PP PRRP o} o}
I L= 1 1
Ending reserves:
LT (011 T PP TPRRURPPPTPRIN 431 439
LO1=T0 [T o PO PP OPP RPN (20) (18)
N PP $ 411 $ 421

UNCERTAINTY REGARDING ADEQUACY OF ASBESTOS AND ENVIRONMENTAL RESERV ES

As a result of the processes and proceduissigsechbove, management believes that the reserves carried for asbestos and
environmental claimar e appropriately established based upon knowr
However, theuncertainties surrounding the final resolution of these claims continue, andiiffidalt to determine the

ultimate exposure for asbestos and environmental claims and related litigation. As a result, these reserves are subject to
revision as new infornmieon becomes available and as claims develop. The continuing uncertainties include, without
limitation, the risks and lack of predictability inherent in complex litigation, any impact from the bankruptcy protection
sought by various asbestos producers atfer asbestos defendants, a further increasgecreasén the cost toresolve

and/or the number pfasbestos and environmental claims beyond that which is anticigheegmergence of a greater

number of asbestos claims than anticipated as a resaktefded life expectancigssulting from medical advances and

lifestyle improvementghe role of any umbrella @xcess policies the Company has issued, the resolution or adjudication of
disputes pertaining to the amount of available coverage for astasti environmental claims in a manner inconsistent with

the Companyb6s previous assessment of these c¢cl ai ms, t he n
devel opments pertaining to the Cobegasmanddésviromnental claimg and the r e ¢
unavailability of other insurance sourgestentiallyavailable to policyholders, whether through exhaustion of policy limits

or through the insolvency of other participating insurers. In addition, uncertainfedrarn the insolvency or bankruptcy of
policyholders and other defendantdt is also not possible to predict changes in the legal, regulatory and legislative
environment and their impact on the future development of asbestos and environmental THesresvironmentcould be

affected bychanges in applicable legislation afhdure court and regulatory decisions and interpretatiorduding the

outcome of legal challenges to legislative and/or judicial reforms establishing medical criteria forsthié gfuasbestos

claims It is also difficult to predict the ultimate outcome of complex coverage disputes until settlement negotiations near
completion and significant legal questions are resolved or, failing settlement, until the dispuligdisated.This is
particularly the case with policyholders in bankruptcy where negotiations often involve a large number of claimants and other
parties and require court approval todfective. As part of its continuing analysis of asbestos and environmentalegse

the Company continues to study the implications of these and other developments.
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Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabiitsarise for amounts in excess of ® mp a cugreits

insurancereserves.| n addi ti on, the Companyb6s estimate of Tbdseai ms
additional liabilities or increases in estimates, or a range of either, canndienoeasonably estimated and could result in
income statement charges that could be material to the C

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

The Companyds invested assets at Jun evessd infixedOnhtdrity arel shert $ 7 2 .
term investments, 1% in equity securities, 1% in real estate investments and 5% in other investments. Because the primary
purpose of the investment portfolio is to fund future claims payments, the Company employsreaatiwasmvestment
philosophy. A significantnajority of funds available for investment are deployed in a widely diversified portfolio of high
quality, liquid, taxable U.S. governmertax-exempt U.S. municipalndtaxablecorporate andl.S. agencynortgaye-backed

bonds.

The carrying value ofte Companyds f i xe dunarB9 20L7wasthel.91pilion.t The Companyalbsely

monitors the duration of its fixed maturity investments, and investment purchases and sales are executed wittiih@bDb)j
having adequate funds available to satisfy the Companyéd
guality of the Companyés fixed maturity portffAada2dq @totho
June30, 2017 and December 31, 2018elow investment grade securities represe2t&& and 2.9%of the total fixed

maturity investment portfolio atune 30, 2017 andecember 312016, respectivelyThe average effective duration of fixed
maturities and shioterm securities wad.2 (4.6 excluding shorterm securitiespt June 30, 2017 and 4(2.5 excluding

shortterm securities) dbecember 31, 2016

Obligations ofStates,Municipalities andPolitical Subdivisions

The Companyods f i xnepbrifolfoaatJune BQ, 3017iambecermberm&2016included $2.11 bilion and

$31.91 billion, respectively, of securities which are obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions
(collectively referred to as the municipal bond portfpli@he municipal bond portfolio is diversified across the United

States, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico and includes general obligation and revenue bonds issued by states, cities,
counties, school districts and similar issuehscluded in themunicipal bond portfolio afune 30, 2017 and Decemt&dr,

2016 were $.28 billion and $%.16 billion, respectively,of prerefunded bonds, whiclare bonds for whicltstates or
municipaliies have established irrevocable trustBnost exclusively compriseaf U.S. Treasury securitieend obligations

of U.S. government and government agencies and authorities. These trusts were created to fund the payment of principal and
interest due under the bondEhe irrevocable trustare verified as to their sufficieg by an independent verification agent of

the underwriter, issuer or trusteA.| | of the Companydés holdings of securitie
been preefunded and therefore are defeased by U.S. Treasury securities.

The Canpany bases its investment decision on the underlying credit characteristics of the municipal security. While its
municipal bond portfoliancludesa number of securitiethat were enhanced by thiglarty insurance for the payment of
principal and interdgdn the event of an issuer defgutte Company does not rely on enhanced credit characteristics provided

by such thirdparty insurance as part of its investing decisior3f the insured municipal sec
investment portfoliat June30, 2017 approximately 9% were rated aiA3 0 or above, a®wderargtgquato xi ma
fi A a 8rabove without the benefit of insuranceThe Company believes that a loss of the benefit of insurance would not

result in a material adverse impact oeth Company6s results of operations, fil
underlying credit strength of the issuers of the eecurit

The average credit rating of the underlyingligsr s o f t h e s/Aa Zt8unai30,i2017 The avenagescredit rating
of the entire muniAaldop dke 302017, dvith pralwithdutdhleantmncenzest prévided blyird-party
insurance.

MortgageBacked Securities, Collateiaéd Mortgage Obligations and Pa$trough Securities

The Companyds fixed matJdunei3q, 2017 anBecemidensd, R@linguded & f7oblllioncanda t
$1.71billion, respectively, of residential mortgapacked securitiesvhichinclude passthroughsecurities and collateralized
mortgage obligations (CMs), all of which are subject to prepayment ri@ither shortening or lengthening of duration).
While prepayment risk fosecuritiesand its effect ofincomecannot be fully controlledharticularly when interest rates move
dramatically, the Companyds i nv e sredocehistrisk svithin expeetedyinteipst iate r a | |
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ranges.Included in the totals alune 30, 2017 andecember 31, 2@were $27 million and $63 nillion, respectively, of

GNMA, FNMA, FHLMC (excluding FHA project loangind Canadian governmegiaranteed residential mortgalgacked
passthroughsecurities classified as available for saldso included in those totals were residential CMOs classified as
available for sale with a fair value .24 billion and$1.15billion at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
Approximately51% of the Company's CMO holdingg both June 30, 2017 and December 31, 204i& guaranteed by or

fully collateralized by securities issued by GNMA, FNMA or FHLMChe average credit rating of the $603 million and

$566 million of nonguaranteed CMO holdisg was fAA30 and fABaa206 at June 30, 201°
The average credit rating of all of the above securitiesfivasa 2 oth June 30, 2017 armdkecember 312016. For further

di scussion regarding t hdee nGoinmapla nGGMGS ltermFebba hieFgaartie nlildas r Bs s c u
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiohsn ve st ment Portf ol i oo in the Col
updated by the Company-Kfled@uune 2002017Report on Form 8

Equity Securities Available for Sale, Real Estate and Shemninvestmerg

See note 1 of notes to the consolidated financi al stat
Company6s Curr e nKfileRengune 20, 2@1fbr furtler inforngtion about these invested asset classes.

Other Investments

The Company also invests in private equity limited partnerships, hedgednddsal estate partnershipsd joint ventures.
Also included in other investments are qauklic common and preferred equities and derivativeResE asset classes have
historically provided a higher return than fixed maturities$ are subject to more volatility. tAune 30, 2017 andecember
31,2014 the carrying value of the Company's otlmestments was351 billion and $8.45billion, respectively.

CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE COVERAGE

The Companybs catastrophe reinsurance coverageiitenldi scus
Businesso in thenCampReapydist 284d6u@pdated by t hifileGonmipnany 6 s
20, 2017. Except as discussed bel ow, there have been
coverage from that reportepdoritn atsh eu pGloant peadn ybdys t2hOel 6C oAmpnaunayl (
K filed on June 20, 2017.

Catastrophe BondsWi t h r espect to the Companyds indemnity reei nsul
attachment point and maximum limitere resetas requied annuallyto adjust the expected loss of the layer within a
predetermined rangeFor the period May 16, 2017 through and including May 15, 2018, the Company will be entitled to
begin recovering amounts under this reinsurance agreement if the coveelifothe covered area for a single occurrence

reach an initial attachment amount$#.346billion. The full $300 million coverage amount is availalde& a proportional

basis untilsuchcovered losses reach a maximut8gl6billion.

OtherCatastropheReinsurance TreatiesCatastrophe reinsurance treaties that renewed on July 1, 2017 were as follows:

1 NortheastProperty CatastropheExcessof-LossReinsurance TreatyThis provides up to 800 million part of $850
million of coverage, subject to 2 %5 billion retention, forcertainlosses arising from hurricangsrnadoes, hail
storms,earthquakes and winter storm or freeze losses from Virginia to Maine for the period July’ thi2Qigh
and includingJune 30, 208. Losses from a covered event (attg over several days) anywhere in the United
States, Canada, the Cdman and Mexicaand waters contiguous therehoay be used to satisfy the retention.
Recoveries under the catastrophe t&gifdany) would be first applied to reduce losses subjethitotreaty.

1 Middle MarketEarthquakeCatastropheExcessof-Loss Reinsurance Treatyhis treaty provides for up to $150
million part of $165 million of coverage, subject to an $80 million retention, for losses arising from an earthquake,
including firefollowing and sprinkler leakage incurred under policies written by Technology, Public Sector Services
and Commerci al Accounts in the Companyds Business |1In
including June 30, 2018.
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1 Canadian Property Catastrophe Excedd oss Reinsurance Treatylhis treaty, effective for the period July 1,
2017 through and including June 30, 2018, covers the accumulztioet property losses arising out of one
occurrence on business writt enThbeteaty dowwers &l nogerdywit@sby Ca n a
the Companyds Canadian businesses, i ncludi nmpertybut n
inland marine, ocean marine and auto physical damages exposures, with respect to risks located wadthéwide.
treaty provides coverage for 50% of lessn excess of C$00 million (US$77 million at June 30, 204), up to
C3$200 million (US$154 million at June 30, 20} and for 100% of logsin excess of CH00 million (US$154
million at June 30, 2037 up to CH00million (US$62million at June 30, 204).

The Company regularly reviews its catastrophe reinsurance coverage aadjostysucitovemgein the future.
REINSURANCE RECOVERABLES
For a description of the Company's reinsurance recoverables, refPatblld Iltem @ Management 6s Di scu

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperatioRse i nsur anc e irRtkecComp eam2EB Arsual
Report as updated by the Ckfiedanndyné20,2017.r r ent Report on For

The following table summarizes the composition of the Co

June 30, December 31
(in millions) 2017 2016

Gross reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense $ 3,076 $ 3,181
Allowance for uncollectible reinSUrancCe..............cccooviii i (119 (116
Net reiNSUranCe FECOVEIADIES. .......uuiiiiiiiiiii ettt 2,962 3,065
Mandatory pools and aSSOCIAtIONS..........ccuuuiiiiiiiieeer e eeee bbb eereeeeeeeeeenes 2,064 2,054
Y (U (o (U =To Y= 11 (=T =T (TP 3,124 3,168
Total reiNSUranCe rECOVEIADIES..........ceiiiiiii et e et e e eeee et e s et e e e e eaaaans $ 8,150 $ 8,287

The $.03 million decline in net reinsurance recoverabiiesn December 312016 primarily reflectedthe impacts otash
collectionsin the first six months of 2017, including the settlement of certain disputes as discussed in more detail in note 13
of notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

The following discussion provides outlook information foertainkey driversoft h e  C o mgsalts of dperations and
capital position.

Premiums.The Companydéds earned premiums are a function of net
both renewal business and new business and are recognizatied gremium over the life of the underlying policies. When
business renews, the amount of net written premiums associated with that business may increase or decrease (renewa
premium change) as a result of increases or decreases in rate and/or ingasetlesx which the Company considers as a
measure of units of exposure (such as the number and value of vehicles or properties insured). Net written premiums from
both renewal and new business, and therefore earned premiums, are impacted by competéiveonditions as well as

general economic conditions, which, particularly in the case of Business Insurance, affect audit premium adjustments, policy
endorsements and midrm cancellations. Property and casualty insurance market conditions are expentethin
competitive. Net written premiums may also be impacted by the structure of reinsurance programs and related costs, as well
as changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Overall, the Company expects retention levels (the amount of expirémiym that renews, before the impact of renewal
premium changes) will remain strong by historical standdwting the remainder of 2017 and into 201& Business
Insurance, the Company expects that domestic renewal premium changestniegnaindeof 2017 and into 2018uill
remain positive and will be broadly consistent with the levels attaingukifirst six months 02017. In Bond & Specialty
Insurance, the Company expects that renewal premium changes with resgeatesticmanagement liabilt business
duringthe remainder 02017 and into 2018&ill remain positive, buwill be slightly lower than the levels attained time first

six months of 2017 With respect t@lomesticsurety business within Bond & Specialty Insurance, the Company sxpett
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net written premium volume durirte remainder 02017 and into 2018&ill be broadly consistent witthe level attained in

the same periods of 2016 and 201lh Personal Insurance, the Company expects dbatesticAgency Auto renewal
premium changes durirtge remainder of 2017 and into 2048l remain positive and will be higher than the levels attained

in the first six months of017, and domesticAgency Homeowners and Other renewal premium changes dthing
remainder 02017 and into 201&ill remain positiveandwill be broadly consistent withhe levels attained ithe first six

months of 2017.The need for state regulatory approval for changes to personal property and casualty insurance prices, as
well as competitive market conditions, may impact the timing and extent of renewal premium chaivgesthe relatively

smaller amount of premium thite Company generates from outside the United States and the transactional nature of some
ofthose marketyar ti cul arly LIl oydéds, i ntieeachadgmenttoriadthe remaindev @017 pr e mi
and into 201&ould be somewhat higher, ladly consistent with or somewhat lower than the levels attaingkifirst six

months 0f2017.

Property and casualty insurance market conditions are expected to remain competitivehduengainder 02017 and into

2018 for newbusiness In each oft he Companyd&s b avwhusiness genesadlyghaselass &f an impact on
underwriting profitability than renewal business, given the volume of new business relative to renewal business. However, in
periods of meaningful increases in new busindsspite its positive impact on underwriting gains over time, the impact of
higher new business levels may negatively impact the combinedaatigperiod of time

General economic and geopolitical uncertainty regarding a variety of domestic andtiateinmatters, such as the political

and regulatory environment, the U.S. Federal budget and potential changes in tax laws in the United States, the repeal,
replacement or modification of the Affordable Care Act, economic uncertainty in the Uniteda®idiesvarious parts of the

worl d, the United Kingdomés withdrawal from the European
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, has added to the uncertainty regaodiig @nditions

generally. If economic conditions deteriorate, the resulting lower levels of economic activity could impact exposure changes
at renewal and the Companyds ability to writ eomtadiityhess ¢
could adversely impact audit premium adjustments, policy endorsements anidrimidancellations after policies are

written. All of the foregoing, in turn, could adversely impact net written premiums during the remainder of 2017 and into
2018, and because earned premiums are a function of net written premiums, earned premiums could be adversely impacted
on a lagging basis.

Underwriting Gain/Loss The Companyds underwriting gain/loss ean be
favorable or unfavorable prior year reserve development, as well as underlying underwriting margins.

Catastrophe andon-catastropheveathesr e | at ed | osses are inherently unpredict
results of operations coultk adversely impacted if significant catastropheraomdcatastropheveatherrelated losses occur.

For a number ofy ear s, the Companyo6s results have included sighn
development driven by better than egtael loss experience. However, given the inherent uncertainty in estimating claims

and claim adjustment expense reserves, loss experience could develop such that the Company recognizes higher or lowe
levels of favorable prior year reserve developmentfavoerable prior year reserve development or unfavorable prior year
reserve development in future periods. addition, the ongoing review of prior year claims and claim adjustment expense
reserves, or other changes in current period circumstances, sudlyinethe Company revising current year loss estimates
upward or downward in future periods of the current year.

It is possible that changes in economic conditions could lead to higher inflation than the Company had anticipated, which
coudintunlad to an increase in the Company6s | oss costs and
reserves. These impacts of inflation on loss costs and claims and claim adjustment expense reserves could be more
pronounced for those lines of sinessthat require a relatively longer period of time to finalize and settle claims for a given
accident year anaccordingly are relatively more inflation sensitveFor a f urt her diltentlAsRisk o n, s
Factor® If adual claims exceedour claims and claim adjustment expensereservespr if changesn the esimated level of

claims and claim adjugment expensereservesare ne@ssary,including asa result of, among other things, changes in

the legal, regulatory and economic environmentswimich the Company operatesyr financial reallts could be

materially and adwersely dfectedd  af@hdnges in U.S. tax laws or in the tax laws of other jurisdictionsin which we

operate coulddversdyimpactu sion t he Companydés 2016 Annual Report.
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In Business Insurance, the Company expects underlying underwriting mangirike underlying combined ratio duritig
remainder 02017 and into 2018will be broadly consistent with those the same periods @016and 2017, reflecting the
modest impact of loss trends in excess of earned pricing offset by more normalized levelsathetytophe weatheelated
losses and other loss activity.

In Bond & Specidly Insurancethe Company expects underlying underwriting margins andirtderlyingcombined ratio
duringthe remainder c2017and into 2018vill be broadly consistent with thosetime same periods @016and 2017

In Personal Insurance, the Compampects underlying underwriting margidsring the remainder of 2017 and into 2018

will be higher than in the same periods of 2016 and 2017, and the underlying combined ratio during the remainder of 2017
and into 2018 will be lower than in the same pesiofi2016 and 2017In Agency Automobile, th&€€ompany expects that
underlying underwriting margins and the underlying combined ratio will impdaviegthe remainder c2017and into 2018
compared withthe same periods @016 and 2017 reflecting action taken to improve profitabilityas well as the timing

impact of higher loss trends for bodily injury liability coverages that were recognized in the last half of [lR0Agency
Homeowners and Other, the Company expects that underlying underwritingnsnesity be slightly higher and the
underlying combined ratio will be slightly lower during the remainde2@f7 and into 2018 than ithe same periods of
2016and 2017, reflecting more normalized levels of4satastrophe weatheelated losses and othess activity

Investment Portfolio The Company expects to continue to focus its investment strategy on maintainingcadligh
investment portfolio and a relatively short average effective duration. The average effective duration of fixeiesreatdri
shortterm securities waé.2 (4.6 excluding shorterm securities) atlune 302017. From time to time, the Company enters

into short positions in U.S. Treasury futures contracts to manage the duration of its fixed maturity pdktfdiime 8,

2017, the Company had4®0 million notional value of open U.S. Treasury futures contracts. The Congmartinually
evaluates its investment alternatives and mix. Current
widely diversified portfolio of highquality, liquid, taxable U.S. government, taxempt U.S. municipal and taxable
corporate and U.S. agency mortgdgeked bonds.

The Company also invests much smaller amounts in equity securities, real estate, private equityditniéeships, hedge
funds, and real estate partnerships and joint ventures. These investment classes have the potential for higher Isdurns but a
the potential for higher degrees of risk, including less stable rates of return and less liquidity.

Neti nvest ment income is a materi al Cc 0 nBased dnuhe current irderest e C 0 n
environmentwhich remains very low by historical standarttee Company estimates that the impact of lower reinvestment
yields on fixedmaturity investments, partially offset by the impact of slightly higher levels of fixed maturities combined with
higher shorterm investment yields could, during the remainder of 2@%ult in approximately $15 million of lower after

tax net investmerihcome, and into 201&ouldresult in approximately ¥lmillion of lower aftertax net investmerincome

from those portfolios on a quarterly basis as compared to the correspguodiers of 201@&nd 2017 Theimpact of future

market conditions on nébvestment income from theonfixed maturity investment portfolio durinipe remainder 02017

and into 2018 is hard to predictf general economic conditiord/or investment market conditions deteriorate duttieg
remainder 0f2017 and into 2018the Company could experience a reduction in net investment income and/or significant
realized investment losses, including impairments.

The Company had a net pax unrealized investment gain of.43 billion ($931 million aftertax) in its fixed maturi

investment portfolio at June 30, 2017. While the Company does not attempt to predict future interest rate movements, a
rising interest rate environment would reduce the market value of fixed maturity investments and, therefore, reduce
shareholtdyer sabhdecguidecl|l i ning interest rate envi rinvestmennt wo U
portfolio hasbendited from certaintax exemptions (primarily those related to interest from municipal bonds) Gertain

other tax laws, including, but not limited to, those governing dividends-receiveddeductions and tax credits (such as

foreign tax credits). Changs in theselaws couldadvergly impact thevalueo f t h e Co nipeatportol®. Seem v e s
fiChangesin U.S.tax laws or in the tax laws of other jurisdictionsin which we operate coul@ddversay impactu sircluded

i n APEmiA RIi sk Factorso in the Companyés 2016 Annual Repo

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company had netagresalized investment gains of $80 million, athiwere primarily

driven by gains on sales of equity securitdst June 30, 2017, the carrying value
$700 million, which included $142 million afetpre-tax unrealized gainsDuring the remainder of 2017, the Coamy may

realize additional gains through the sales of ecgetyurities.
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For further discussion of tHhHd n@emp e hidewid iGar & discussiom oftthep or t
risks to the Companyds business during or following a f
portfolio, see the risk factors entit |ptodor@nbaoromicdpwntum, f ol |
our business could be mat &uwrineelknenytpodfdlialis sabgct te arediteand ynterestfrafteeisk,t e d 0
andmay suffer reducedretums or material realizedor unrealizedlosse®d i nc | u d é@dtem 1A0 RislPRa d t inlthes 0

Companybés 2016 Fonrnual diRepwggsi.on of the risks to the Co
exchange rate fluctuations, see the fisk ¢ t o r W are alsb dubgedt to & number of additionalrisks asseiated with

our business outsidethe United Staedi nc | ud e d ltermlAFiRiag kK Hiakmttomes 0Companyds 2016
and s e & ItémP7ad Quantitative and QualitativBisclosuras About Market Ris® Foreign Currency Exchange Rate

Ri silktte Companyés 2016 Annual Report.

Capital Position.The Company believes it has a strong capital position and, as part of its ongoing efforts to create
shareholder value, expects to continue to return capital not needed to support its business dpatstibraseholders. The
Company expects that, generally over time, the combination of dividends to common shareholders and common share
repurchases will likely not exceegttincome. In addition, the timing and actual number of shares to be repur@haked
future wild/ depend on a variety of additional factor s,
catastrophe | osses, mai ntaining capital l evel s commensul
agencis , funding of the Companyds qualified pension plan,
legal requirements, regulatory constraints, other investment opportunities (including mergers and acquisitions and related
financings), market ondi ti ons and other factors. For i nformati on
2017, see fiLiquidityoands Capieall ResbuthesCompanyés busine
in Canada, the United Kingdom(c | udi ng LI oydés), Brhzdyt RepGbmpanypybdslcapandl
to the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For example, strengthening of the U.S. dollar in comparison to
other currencies could result inadre ct i on of shaFerhoddeéir siborealui diyscussi on o
exchange mar ket r idllem2Md Quatitativeeand Quaimtivaibisalosgrabdut Market Risk i n t he
Companyb6s 2016 Annual Report.

Many of the statme nt s i n t hi s i Out-loakingkstatensepts; whiclo are sabjee to fissramdauncdrtainties

t hat are often difficult to pRAcudiresults caudddiffeb matesiallydfroh these Co my
expressed or implied by sl forwardlooking statementsFurther, such forwartboking statements speak only as of the date

of this report and the Company undertakes no obligation to update theamed Fdr war d Looki ng St ate
discussion of potential risks and uncentéaii es t hat coul d i mpact the Companyds r €
APadlteml1A Ri sk FactCompdad 20§6& sitnhuea | Report and ACrdtical Accou

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity is a measure ofacopany és abil ity to generate sufficient cash
operations antb satisfygeneral corporate purposes when needed.

Operating Company Liquidity.The liquidity requirements of the Compdng i n s u r ariesagemed primarily dyi

funds generated frompremiums, fegsincomereceived on investments and investment maturitfesr. further discussion of
operating company liquidity, seiPart 110 ltem @ Management 6 s Di scussion anmandAnal y
Results of OperatiodsL i qui dity and CapiCtoarlp a R@6® dnnuac Repodlas updated lhy ethe

Companyb6s Curr enKfileRempume 20,20l For m 8

Holding Company Liquidity TRV d&s | i qui di ty r e g uharelolher dividendspdebt seevicing] cgmmiom c | u
share repurchases and, from time to time, contributions to its qualified domestic pensioAtplane 302017, TRV held

total cash and shetérm invested assets in the United States aggregafrip Hillion and having a weighted average
maturity of 59 days. TRV has established a holding company liquidity target equal to its estimated annted prierest

expense and common shareholder dividends (currently approximately $1.1 biioR)Y 6 s  h o | ahy ligquditycoio mp
$2.55 billion at June 30 2017, which included net proceeds from the recent issuance of senior notes described below,
exceeded this target and it is the opraeisanfdbfct darte@b mp me
liquidity requirements.

TRV is not dependent on dividends or other forms of repatriation from its foreign operations to support its liquidity needs.
Uu. S. i ncome taxes have not been recogni zedd oum ds ush srtiadnuttiea
as of June 30, 2017, as such earnings are intended to be permanently reinvested in those operations. Furthermore, taxes pa
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to foreign governments on these earnings may be used as credits against the U.S. tax on dividend distributions if such
earnings wer¢o be distributed to the holding company. The amount of undistributed eafmung$oreign operations and
related taxes on those undistributed earnings were not r
2017.

TRV has a shelf registration statemdifed with the Securities and Exchange Commisqi8EC) ttat expires on June 17,
2019which permits it to issue securities from time to timéRVTalso has a $1.0 billion line of credit facility with a syndicate
of finarncial institutions that expiresnaJune 72018. This lineof credit alsasupportsTRV6 s $n8lionCcommercial paper
program. At June 30, 2017, the Company had no commercial paper outstarfdRigis not reliant on its commercial paper
program to meet its operating cash flow needs.

The Company utilized uncollateralized letters of credit iddme major banks with an aggregate limit of approximat@4$

million, to provide a portion of the Jnma3pkotlralfuncolaterdieed t o ¢
letters of credit are not available at a reasonable price alf iat the future, the Company can collateralize these letters of
credit or may have to seeliternative means afupportingi t s obl i gati ons at Ll oydds, whi

company funds on hand

On March 13, 2017the Company announdean agreement to acquire Simply Businesdeading dital provider of
insurance policieso small businessdrs the United Kingdomfor total consideration of approximatel¢®0 million, which
includesthe repayment of debt and other obligati@she completion of the transactionThe transaction is expected to
close in the third quarter of 2017, subject to regulatory approvals and other customary closing coffdisd@empany will
usea portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of seniorindtesy 2017 (described in more detail in note 8 of notes to
the unaudited consolidated financial statemeamsl) internal resources fund this transaction

On December 15, 2017, the Companyds $450 mwillubeiagortiond . 75 %
the proceeds from the issuance of senior notes in May 2017 (described in more detail in note 8 of notes to the unaudited
consolidated financial statements) to fund this maturity.

Operating Activities

Net cash flows provided by om#ing activities in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 were $1.59 billion and $1.29 billion,
respectivel y. Cash flows in the first six months of 201
of 2016 related to the settlementoh e PP G I ndustri es, Il nc. l'itigation as des
Litigationd section herein.

Investing Activities

Net cash flowsused ininvesting activitiesin the first six months of 2017 and 20%&re $1.02 billion and $9million,
respectively. The Company®6s consol iJua 3020l increaseably $1.84nkllian sot Iweovet year a t
end 2016 primarily reflectingthe impacts of net cash flows provided by operating activities, net proceeds from the issuance
of debt and an increase in the unrealized appreciation of investments, partially offsemion share repurchases
dividends paid to shareholdeasd the repayment of debt.

Financing Activities

Net cash flowsused infinancing activities in the firssix monthsof 2017 and2016 were $550 million and1.31 hllion,
respectively. The totals in both periods primarily reflected common share repurchases, dividends paid to shareholders and
the payment of debt, partially offset by the issuance of debt lmadotoceeds from employee stock option exercises.
Common share repurchases in the first six months of 2017 and 2016 were $761 million and $1.16 billion, respectively. Share
repurchases in the first six months of 2017 were lower than in the same pe2tbads the Company moderated its share
repurchases in the first quarter of 2017 to provide financing flexibility for the pending acquisition of Simply Business.

Dividends Dividends paid to shareholdergere $389 million and $875 million in the first six monthsof 2017 and 26,
respectively. The decl aration and payment of future dividends toc
di scretion o Boad bf® rCeootparnsy 6and wi | | depend upon imaxialy f ac
position earnings, capital requirements of the Company6s op
and other factors as ttigoard ofDirectors deems relevanDividends wil be paid by the Company only if declared by its

Board ofDirectors out of funds legally available, subject to any other restrictions that may be applicable to the C@npany.

July 20, 2017, the Company announced that it declared a regular quarterly dividend of $0.72 per share, payable September
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29, 2017 to shareholders of record on September 8, 2017.

Share Repurchase AuthorizatiomheC o mp a Bogprd efDirectorshas approved common share repurchase authorizations
under whichrepurchasemay be madé&om time to time in the open market, pursuant togeetrading plans meeting the
requirements of Rule 10bb under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, iivgte transactions or otherwiselhe
authorizationgdo not have a stated expiration dafighe timing and actual number of shares to be repurchased in the future

will depend on a variety dfactors, includingg he Companyés f i nan are prite, gatasgdpheilosses, e a
mai ntaining capital | ev el sdestedratings frenundepéndent wating hgerteiflesaling®b mp a n 'y
the Companydés qualified pension plan, capi t alrequireamgnisi r e me
regulatoryconstraints other investment opportunities (including mergers and acquisitions and related finantiad®t
conditionsand other factors During the three months and six months ended June 30, 2017, the Company repurchased 3.8
million and 5.7 million shares, respectively, under its share repurchase authorization, for a total cost of $475 million and
$700 million, respectively. The average cost per share repurchased was $123.04 and $122.33, respectively. On April 20,
2017, theBoard of Directors approved a share repurchase authorization that added an additional $5.0 billion of repurchase
capacity. At June 30, 2017, the Company had $5.23 billion of capacity remaining under the share repurchase authorization.

Capital Structue. The f ol l owing table summarizes the dJdunedph 20tramdt s of
December 312016.

June 30, December 31,
(in millions) 2017 2016
Debt:
] go1 43 (=T 1 1 WO SO RSO RROPUPRRPOPPRSNY $ 950 $ 550
0] oo (=1 o PP TRRRRR 6,004 5,911
Net unamortized fair value adjustments and debt iSSuanCe.COStS...........occuveviecvieeernnnnn (39 (29
JLIo] =110 [=1 o) SO PR 6,920 6,437
Sharehol dersdé equity:
Common stock and retained earnings, less treasury.StOCK. ..........covvviieeeieeeeniniiieeeeenns 24,202 23,976
Accumulated otheCOMPreNENSIVE T0SS.......oovviiiiiei e (344 (7595
Tot al shar ehol.der.s.Q..eQ.i b Y. 23,858 23,221
Total CaPItAliZAtION.......cciiiiiiie e reer e e e e e s et e et aa e e e e e aae $ 30,778 $ 29,658

On May 22, 2017, the Company issued $700 million aggregate principal amount of 4.00% senior theidisntéure on

May 30, 2047. See note 8 of notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further discussion regarding the
terms of the senior noteOn June 2, 2017, the Company redeemed the remaining $107 million aggregate principdl amo

of its 6.25% Fixeeo-Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2067 at a price per debenture of 100% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

The fllowing table provides a reconciliation ajtal capitalization presented in the foregoing table to total capitalization
excluding net unrealized gains on investments.

June 30, December 31,
(dollars in millions) 2017 2016
Total CaPItAliZALION........eeiie i e e s e e e e emee e aaaeeaae $ 30,778 $ 29,658
Less: net unm@ized gains on investments, Net Of taXesS.......ccccvvvvviiiirieeen s, 1,035 730
Total capitalization excluding net unrealized gains on investments.....................cee..... $ 29,743 $ 28,928
Debtto-total CapItal FALiO..........cviiiiiiriiiee e smee e 22.5% 21.7%
Debtto-total capitalratio excluding net unrealized gains on investments..................... 23.3% 22.3%
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The debtto-total capital ratio excluding net unrealized gains on investmertalésilated by dividing (a) debt by (b) total
capitalization excluding net unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of taxes. Net unrealized gains and losses on
investments can be significantly impacted by both interest rate movements and otbeniedaotors. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the Co mp a-toyofalscapitabratia caleutateddn this bakisprodided another useful metric
for investors to understand thelTheo@pmpaghbyg dethtto-total teapian lo f | &
(excluding aftetax net unrealized investment gaing)23.3%at June 302017 waswithintheCo mpany 6s t ar get
15% to 23%.

RATINGS

Ratings are an important factor i n a sssrensesiridusigy. The EomBamymp a n
receives ratings from the following major rating agenci e
Il nvestors Service (Moodyds) and Standard & P wihrésmect(oS&P) .
the Company since April 20, 2017-Q fot theeqguadea €nded March &1h 20t7twast h e
filed with the SEC. For ad ddiltenh 1 Basines&R astciursgssCGo mipra AddBdea t i n ¢

Annua | Report as wupdated by t heKfledonpane3062817.Cur rent Report o
1 OnJune 19, 2017, Fitch affirmed all ratings of the Company. The outlook for all ratings is stable.
f On July 13, 2017, Moody 6s arhedoutloakfordll ratings is stable.i ngs of t he
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

For a description of the CoreferofiParbl® Itenrd Md rcaad e maecrnctodusn t D inggc ue
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operaiiosit i ¢ a | Ac c o u nin thelC® mip & BOY6GIAauad s O
Repotas updated by the Comp aiyilédon Janer0, 2007The R@npany donsiders itdHmmst m 8
significant accounting estimates to be those applied to claims and claim adjusikpense reserves and related reinsurance
recoverables, investment valuation and impairments, and goodwill and other intangible assets imp&ixoegitas shown

in the table bel ow, there have been nnmgedstiraates sinceaDlecermbera8h, g e s
2016.

Claims and Claim Adjustment Expense Reserves

The table below displays the Companydés gross @écausete and
establishment of claims and claim adjustmexppemse reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates,
currently established claims and claim adjustment expense reserves may change. The Company reflects adjustments to the
reserves in the results of operations in the period the estimatechanged. These changes in estin@iekl result in

i ncome statement charges that coul d be ma tlreparticaldr,apostiont he C
ofthe Companyds gross <cl ai ms an dotaling &.i78billica chtj June BORAELA)are forx p e n' s
asbestos and environmental claims and related litigathksbestos and environmental reserves are included in the General
liability, Commercial multiperil and International and other lines in the summalbjet below. While the ongoing review of

asbestos and environmental claims and associated liabilities considers the inconsistencies of court decisions as to coverage

plaintiffs6é expanded theories of | inddtherduncertintiasninthetopirdonofi s k s
the Companyds management, it is possible that the outcom
in liability in future periods that differs from current reserves by an amount that boeld mat eri al t o t he C
operating resultsAs best os and environment al reserves are discusse
AEnNnvironment al Claims and Litigationdo and AUnalr RaseaetyeR
this report.

Gross claims and claim adjustment expense reserves by product line were as follows:
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June 30, 2017 December 312016
(in millions) Case IBNR Total Case IBNR Total

General liability...............cooevicicieeee e $ 4873 $ 6,792 $ 11665 $ 4951 $ 6,925 $ 11,876
Commercial Property......cccccveeeeeeiivveenennn. 826 407 1,233 752 357 1,109
Commercial multiperil...........ccoccvvvieieeeerien. 1,812 1,914 3,726 1,807 1,935 3,742
Commercial automobile.................cvvvveneee 2,209 1,182 3,391 2,190 1,178 3,368
Wor ker sd c.a.mp.e.ns.a.t.i. 10,320 9,104 19,424 10,322 8,786 19,108
Fidelity and surety.........ccccocvvveeeeiiiieennnnnnn, 253 288 541 242 323 565
Personal automobile...............ccoeeeciieeee..n. 1,895 1,149 3,044 1,852 1,038 2,890
Homeowners and persofabther................. 620 694 1,314 622 468 1,090
International and other...........cccoceeevvvvnenn. 2,714 1,504 4,218 2,740 1,441 4,181

Propertycasualty...........cccccvvvinieeeirieennnns 25,522 23,034 48,556 25,478 22,451 47,929
Accident and health..............cccooeeiiiiiieeeennnn, 18 o) 18 20 o} 20

Claims and claim adjustment expense

FESEIVES.....ccoiviiii e

The %25 million increase n gross claims rad claim adjustment expense reserves since December 3@,p2@darily

$ 25540 $ 2

3,034 $ 48574 $ 25,498 $ 22,451 $ 47,949

Cont i

n u

reflectedthe impacs of (i) higher volumes of insured exposures and loss cost trends for the current accident year and (ii)

catastrophe losses incurred in the first six months of 204afially offset by the impacts of (iii)at favorable prior year

reserve developmeand (iv) payments related to operations in runoff

FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See note 1 of notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statemeno nt ai ned i n
2016 Annual Repora s

updated t he

by

recently issued accounting pronouncements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

t his

C o mp a Kyfilédson Tuner20, &Gl#r aRiscpssiontof o n

ot her

Si

quarter]|

F

fiant
use

r

m

Thisrgpor t contains, and managelmeoaki mays tmatkeme nctesrd awint hiifrno r b
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, may beldakirmgd
statements. Wordsusc h as fAmay, o dwill, o6 Ashould, o Alikely, o
Abelieves, 0 fAestimatesd and si mil adiookiagkgaterments.i Thessateraente

include, among other things,the@p any 6 s st at ements about:

T the Companyds o0 u trdsultook operatiahs and fmandialiconditioa (including, among other things,
anticipatedpremium volume, premium ratesjargins,net andcoreincome, investment income and performanc
loss msts, return on equity, core return on eqaityl expected current returasd combined ratios);

91 share repurchase plans;

1 future pension plan contributions;

T the sufficiency of the Companyédés asbestos and

9 the impact of emerging claims issweswell as other insurance and finsurance litigation

91 the cost and availability of reinsurance coverage;

i1 catastrophe losses;

1 the impact of investment, econom{including inflation, potential changes in tax law and rapid changes in
commodity pricessuch as a significant decline in oil and gas prices, as well as fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rategnd underwriting market conditions;

i strategic initiativego improve profitability and competitiveness; and

1 the potential closingdateandimgt of t he Companyds acquisition of

The Company cautions investors that such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are difficult to
d t h eesulfsconffer matedially froro thdse exdressed h a t
in, or implied or projected by, the forwafdoking information and statements.

predict

and generally beyon
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Some of the factors that could caastual results to differ include, but are not limited to, the following:

il

catastrophe | osses could materially and adversely af
and/ or liquidity, and coul dgsad vtehres e oympi ampyaécst atbhiel i Goym
availability and cost of reinsurance;

i f actual c |l ai ms clagms and eladm adjhsamenCexpepsaervgspos if changes in the estimated

level of claims and claim adjustment expemsseres are necessarycluding as a result of, among other things,
changes in the legal, regulatory and economic environments in which the Company opetates, Co mpany 6
financial results could be materially and adversely affected;

during or following a pead of financial market disruptioorane c onomi ¢ downt urn, the Com
be materially and adversely affected,;

the Companyo6s i issubjacttoneeditriskpammiay sufbet materiatealized or unrealizetbsses

The Company s i nvest ment portfolio may also suffer reduce:
historically low levels for a prolonged period of time or decline further as a result of actions taken by central banks

(a risk which potentially coulh e i ncr eased by, among other things, t h
European Union);

the Companyds business could be harmed because of it

and related litigation;

the intense competitiothat the Company faceand the impact of innovation, technological change and changing
customer preferences on the insurance industry and the markets in which the Company copatdtesrm its

ability to maintain or increase its business volumesitaqtofitability;

di sruptions to the Companyo6s rel at ioan sthhiep sCowiptahn yidtss i
manage effectively a changing distribution landscapédd adversely affe¢dhe Company;

the Company is exposed to, and nfege adverse developments involving, mass tort claims such as those relating to
exposure to potentially harmful products or substances;

the effects of emerging claim and coverage issues o0on
the Company may not be ahbie collect all amounts due to it from reinsutaminsurance coverage may not be
available to the Company in the future at commercially reasonable rates ornatl ahe Company is exposed to

credit risk related to its structured settlements

the Compay isalsoexposed to credit risk in certain of itsurance operations and with respect to certain guarantee

or indemnification arrangements that it has with third parties

within the United States, he Company 6s b us i n ebythestatesanrwhich it @aductslbysinesse g u |
including licensing and supervisioa,nd changes in regulation may reduce t

growth;

a downgrade i n t-pagng@mu fmareial gt@rgth atingsiconlsl adverselyanpa t he Co mp an
business volumes, adversely impact the Companyds abil
borrowing costs;

the inability of the Companyds insurance subsidiari
sufficient amounts would har m t hpayfGtorenghaehgldersdividebds | i t vy

make future share repurchases

the Companyods efforts to develop new pr odandmagcreedr e X p :
enhanced risks;

the Company may be adversely affected if its pricing and capital models provide materially different indications
than actual results;

the Companyds business success and profitalstemsands dep
on continuing to develop and implement improvements in technology;

if the Company experiences difficulties with technology, datd networksecurity(including as a result of cyber
attacks),outsourcing relationshipsr cloudbased technology, he Companyds ability to cc
be negatively impacted,;

changes in U.S. tax laws or in the tax laws of other jurisdictions in which the Company operates could adversely
impact the Company;

the Company is also subject to a number ditimhal risks associated with its business outside the United States,
including foreign currency exchange fluctuations and restrictive regulations, as well as the risks and uncertainties
associated with the United Kinogmdombés withdrawal from
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1 regulatory changes outside of the United States, including in Canada and the European Union, could adversely

i mpact the Companyds riegrawtht s of operations and | i mit
1 loss of or significant restrictions on the use of particular types of underwriting criteria, such as credit scoring, or
ot her data or met hodol ogi es, in the pricing and un

Company 6 sfitabilist;, ur e pr o

1 acquisitions and integration of acquired businesses may result in operating difficulties and other unintended
consequences;

1 the Company could be adversely affected if its controls designed to ensure compliance with guidelines, policies and
legal and regulatory standards are not effective;

f the Companyds businesses may be adversely affected if
T intellectual property is important to t heectodepf@oey 6s «
its own intellectual property or the Company may be subject to claims for infringing the intellectual property of

others;

1 changes in federal regulati@ould impose significant burdens on the Company and otherwise adversely impact the
Compmyds results;

f changes to existing U.S. accounting standards may ad\y
T the ComspaengPsr chase plans depend on a v dimanceltpgsitiomf f ac
earnings, share price, eatrophe lossesnai nt ai ni ng capit al |l evel s desirednme n s |
ratings from independent rating agengciesf undi ng of the Companydés qualified

the Companyds operating segua®yabnstaints aher, investmaenadpportustigsu i r e r
(including mergers and acquisitions and related financimgajket conditionsind other factors

T he Co mfpravandyodking statements speak only as of the date ofrépsrtor as of the datéhey are made, arttie
Companyundertake no obligation to update forwaiidoking statements. For a more detailed discussion of these factors, see

the information under the captiofi P ad Item LA3 Risk Factordint he Co mp aAnpualRepd@tbilddavith the
SECand fAManagement 6s Discussion and Anal ysi dereinfandiRthem anci a
Company @snualRépbrea s updated by t he Comp a-Kfiedl enJaha 2052017t Repor t

WEBSITE AND SOCIAL MED IA DISCLOSURE

The Company may use its website and/or social media oWuleth, ag-acebook and Twitter, adistribution channels of
material company informationkinancial and othemportantinformation regarding th€ompany is routinelyposted on and
accessible through t h e C o mpveelsiyed sat http://investor.travelers.com its Facebook page at

https://www.facebook.com/traveleesd its Twitter account (@Taveler$ at https://twitter.com/Travelersin addition, you
may automatically receive email alerts and other information about the Comemyyou enrollyour emailaddressby

vi si ti ngNotiflcationsd E ma c Hittp:/bnuestar.travelers.com

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For t he G@isclogurasnapobitsmarket righ,I e a s Part H#oeltem 7AS Quantitative andQualitative Disclosures
About Ma r ktleetC o Rp a ROfI6ABNDal Report filed with the BC. There have been no material changes to the
C o mp a disgldssres about market riskPart 10 Item7A of theC 0 mp a 20¥6@&rnual Report.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined in RUtgg)18ad 15d.5(e) under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act)) that are designed to ensure that informatida bequire

di sclosed in the Companyb6s reports under the Exchange Ac
periods specified in theES26s rul es and for ms, and that such iinformat
C o mp a n yagament) éncluding its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures. Any controls and procedures, no matter halgsigeled and operated, can

provide only reasonable assucanof achieving the desired control objectivéshe Company&ds manageme
participation of the Companyds Chief Ex ecut effedgiven@dsfofi c er
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES, Continued

the design and operation of the Compan3p02017.dBasedgomthair e c ¢
evaluati on, t he Company 06 bkief ErfancialfOffiiexcencluded thag as Off Jine 8% 2017athed C
design and operation of the Companyds disclosure control
the reasonable assurance level.

Except forinternal controls overifiancial reporting related to thmplementatiorof a new investment accounting system for
private equity |limited partnerships, hedge funds and rea
control over financial reporting (asdt term is defined in Rules 1:3&(f) and 15€ll5(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2017 that have materially affe@ssheasonably likely to materially affect,

the Companyds i nt er nporting.cManagament reviewesl and festad dha effectivieness afteneal

controls over financial reporting related to ihglementation of the new investment accounting system and condheled
wereeffective.

The Companyregularly seeg to identify, develop and implement improvementsit® technology systems and business
processes, some of which may affgstinternal control over financial reporting. These changes may include such activities
as implementing new, more efficient systems, updatixigting systems or platforms, automating manual processes
utilizing technology developed by third partiebhese systems changes are often phased in over multiple periods in order to
limit the implementation risk in any one period, and as each changwiementedhe Companymonitorsits effectiveness

as part ofts internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il 7 OTHER INFORMATION
[tem1l. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required with respect to this item can be faumdd e r i C o nint nota 18 ef matestetkednaudited
consolidated financial statements contained in this quarterly report and is incorporated by reference intolthis Item

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

For a discussion of t he Comp ansg éeell Pmd@ titemitAd Rl s kr | Sk dhe oorrs ou |
C o mp a A0g6edAsNnual Report filed with theSEC I n addition, pl ease see fAManage
Financial Condition and Results of Operatdor@u t | btevekna n d Ciitical Accounting Estimatés her ei n and
Co mp a A0Y60ABNUal Repores updated by t he Co mp aKyilédson Jiner20, @0diiTheRe por t
have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed i® Rt 1A of theC 0 mp a 20y6@mual Report.

[tem?2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On April 20, 2017, the Board of Directors approved a share repurchase authorization that added an additional $5.0 billion of
repurchase capacity.

The table below sets forth information regdjag repurchases by the Company of its common stock during the periods
indicated.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Item2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS, Continued

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Approximate
dollar value of

Total number of shares that may
shares purchased yet be purchased
Total number of as part of under the
shares Average price paid publicly announced plans or programs
Period Beginning Period Ending purchased per share plans or programs (in millions)
April 1, 2017 April 30, 2017 514,590 $121.71 514,500 $5,646
May 1,2017 May 31, 20¥ 2,000,968 $121.31 1,999,431 $5,403
June 1, 201 June 30, 201 1,346,899 $126.13 1,346,723 $5,234
Total 3,862,457 $123.04 3,860,654 $5,234

TheC o mp a Board sfDirectorshas approved common share repurchase authorizatiwles whichrepurchasemay be

madefrom time to time in the open marketrsuant to prset trading plans meeting the requirements of Rule -10b&der

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in private transactions or otherWieeauthorizationslo not have a stated expiration

date. The timing and actual number of shared&repurchased in the futunéll depend on a variety dictors, including

the Companyb6s financi al posi t i onaintairéng capital kevels commensunate with the ¢ e
C o mp a degiedratings from independent rating agées funding of the Company6s quse
requirements of t he Companyds 0 p egulatory congtrairgsuother iinddsteneni e s
opportunities (including mergers and acquisitions and related financigggt conditionsand other factors

The Company acquired 1,803 shares for a total cost of approximately $0.2 million during the three months ended June 30,
2017 that were not part of the publicly announced share repurchase authorization. Thesersisted cbshares retained

to cover payroll withholding taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted stock unit awards and performance share
awards, and shares used by employees to cover the price of certain stock options that were exercised.

tem 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Executive Ownership and Sales Al | of the Companydés executive officers
ownership policy. For a summary of this policy d@&Swoclkurren
Ownership Guidelines, Antie dgi ng and Pl edging Policies, and Ot her Tr
statement filed withtheBBCon Mar ch 31, 2017. From time to time, some of
is advisable taiversify their investments for personal financial planning reasons, or may seek liquidity for other reasons, and
may, in compliance with the stock ownership policy, sell shares of common stock of the Company on the open market, in
private transactionsdaro t he Company. To effect such sales, from ti me
into trading plans designed to comply with the CEampranyo6s

the Securities Exchange Act of 39 . The trading plans wil/| not reduce any
shares below the applicable executive stock ownership guidelines. The Company does not undertake any obligation to report
Rule 10b51 plans that may be adopted by amppéoyee or director of the Company in the future, or to report any
modifications or termination of any publicly announced plan.

As of the date of this report, Jay S. Benet, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Offecet he onl y fAnamed
officeroc (i .e., an executive officer named in the compensati
with the EEC) that has entered into a Rule 16b%rading plan that remains ineffedbnder t he Companyds s
guidelines, M. Benet has a target ownership level established as the lesser of 30,000 shares or the equivalent value of 300%
of base salary (as such amount is calculated for purposks sfdack ownership guidelinesse e fiCompensati on
and Analysisi Stodk Ownership Guidelines, Antile dgi ng and Pl edging Policies, and
Company6s proxy stBEtoeMeech3l,20li71 ed with the S

Item 6. EXHIBITS

See Exhibit Index.
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The Travelers Companies, Inc. has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC.
(Regstrant)

Date: July 20, 2017 By /s/  KENNETHF. SPENCEIII
Kenneth F. Spence IlI
Executive Vice President and General Counsel
(Authorized Signatory)

Date: July 20, 2017 By /sl DouGLAS K. RUSSELL
Douglas K. Russell
Serior Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of The TravgBompanies, Inc. (the Company),
amended and restated May 23, 2013, were fil-e
filed on May 24, 2013, and are incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Bylaws of The Travelers Companies, Iras Amended and Restated November 3, 2016 were fil
Exhibit 3.2 to the Co mpKafieydhNovemberd, 2016, and arg iocorpor
herein by reference.

10.1 The Travelers Companies, Inc. Amended and Restatetl otk Incentive Plan was filed as Exhibit ]
to the Companyds c uk filed ont May BOp2Dt7t andois incérporated h@reir
reference.

1 2 . 1 Statement regarding the computation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges

3 1 . 1 Certification of Alan D. Schnitzer, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, as required by Sectior
the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

3 1. 2 Certification of Jay S. Benet, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of the Companygua®adeb
Section 302 of the Sarban€xley Act of 2002.

3 2 . 1 Certification of Alan D. Schnitzer, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, as required by Sectior
the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

3 2 . 2 Certification of Jay S. Benet, Vice haan and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, as require
Section 906 of the Sarban€xley Act of 2002.

101. 1The foll owing financial information from ThQ@
for the quarter ended June,ZD17 formatted in XBRL.: (i) Consolidated Statement of Income for the
months and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016; (ii) Consolidated Statement of Comg
Income for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016; §o)idaoed Balanc
Sheet at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 201
Equity for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016; (v) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flo
six months ended June 30, 204 2016; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

A Filed herewith.

The total amount of securities authorized pursuant to any instrument defining rights of holders-tefrionigbt of the
Company does not exceed 10% of the total agdgethe Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. Therefore, the Company
is not filing any instruments evidencing lotgrm debt. However, the Company will furnish copies of any such instrument to
the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

Copies of any of the exhibits referred to above will be furnished to security holders who make written request therefor to The
Travelers Companies, Inc., 385 Washington Street, Saint Paul, MN 55102, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

The agreements and ottewcuments filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual information or other
disclosure other than the terms of the agreements or other documents themselves, and you should not rely on them for that
purpose. In particular, any regzentations and warranties made by the Company in these agreements or other documents
were made solely within the specific context of the relevant agreement or document and may not describe the actual state of
affairs at the date they were made or at ahgrotime.
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Exhibit 12.1

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(in millions, except ratios) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Income before income taxes................. $ 790 $ 887 $ 1,550 $ 1,804
(] (=] (=) SN 92 93 181 184
Portion of rentals deemed to be interest 15 16 30 33

Income available for fixed charges..... $ 897 $ 996 $ 1,761 $ 2021

Fixed charges:

[0 (=T $ 92 $ 93 $ 181 $ 184
Portion of rentals deemed to be intere 15 16 30 33
Total fixed charges........cccoccvvvvennne. $ 107 $ 109 $ 211 $ 217
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges......... 8.39 9.13 8.34 9.33

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is computed by dividing income available for fixed charges by the total fixed charges.
For purposes of this ratio, fixed charges consist of interest and that portion of rentals deemed repeedehttiyppropriate
interest factor.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Alan D. Schnitzer, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FormQ@or the quarter ended June 30, 2017 of The Travelers Companies,
Inc. (the Company);

Basd on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, no
misleading with respeédo the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash fldves@dmpany as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The Companyés other certifying officer and | are resp
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules1Ba) and 15d.5(8) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18%(f) and 15€15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed uder our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) despgned such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of finaial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Companyés disclo
conclusions about the effectivenessh# disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d disclosed in this report any change in the Company
during t henoGd mpancyebnst fiscal quarter (the Companyods
report) that has materially affected, or i s reasone
over financial reporting; and

T h e Co mpherrcertysg afficer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financi al reporting, dtida tcloemmCd mpan yyds t dieedricCfoanrpsa nay
persons performing the equivalent fuoos):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably I|ikely to adversely
and report financianformation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the Companyds internal control over financi al repor

Date: July 2Q 2017 By: /sl ALAN D. SCHNITZER

Alan D. Schnitzer
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Jay S. Benet, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FormQ@or the quarter endetune 30, 2018f The Travelers Companies,
Inc. (the @mpany);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, no
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatioticash flows of the Company as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The Companyés other certifying officer and | are resp
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules1Bfa) and 15dl5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18%(f) and 15€15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and piodeelures
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being ppared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the peparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Companyés disclo
conclusions about theffectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d disclosed in this report any change in the Company
dui ng the Company6s most recent fiscal quarter (the
report) that has materially affected, or i s reasone
over financial reporting; and

The Companyds other certifying officer and | have dis
over financi al reporting, dtida tcloemmCd mpan yyds t dieedricCfoanrpsa nay
persons performing thequivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably I|ikely to adversely
ard report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the Companyds internal control over financi al repor

Date: July 20, 2017 By: /s/  Jay S. BENET

Jay S. Benet
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuantto Rule 1384 ( b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ('t
undersigned officer of The Travel ecresrtCdmmanitehsa,t Itnhce. ot
Reporton Form 1@ f or t he quarter ended June 30, 2017 (the fRep
13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and that the information contained in the Report fairly presalitmaterial respects,

the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 20, 2017 By: /sl ALAN D. SCHNITZER
Name: Alan D. Schnitzer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuantto Rule 1384 (b) of the Securities Eexchatn@g)e aArd 0§ U.93.4C.(t
undersigned officer of The Travelers Companies, Il nc. (t
Reporton Form 1@ f or t he quarter ended June 30, 2 ierienits df Belction i Re p
13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 20, 2017 By: /sl Jav S. BENET
Name: Jay S. Benet
Title: Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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